
 
1 of  4 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JUNE 18, 2018 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 
 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 4, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. Special Order of Business: 
 
1. Public hearing on the City's FY18-19 Consolidated Annual Plan for the Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published June 8, 2018) 

 
b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 

 
c. Oral comments. 

 
2. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY18-19 Consolidated Annual Plan 

for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program. 
 

F. Old Business: 
 
1. Pass Ordinance #2926, providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all 

property located within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, 
County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School 
District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on 
loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by 
the City in connection with the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, upon its third & final 
consideration. 
 

2. Pass Ordinance #2927, amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Greenhill Road from Hudson 
Road to West 27th Street, upon its third & final consideration. 
 

G. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of 



 
2 of  4 

 

members to Boards and Commissions: 
(1) Jeremy Rosel, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2022. 
(2) Mary-Sue Bartlett, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2022. 
(3) Susan Langan, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2021. 
(4) Andrew Morse, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2021. 
(5) Kei-Che Randle, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2021. 
(6) Jeffrey Zaputil, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2021. 
(7) David Sturch, Metropolitan Bus Board, term ending 06/30/2021. 
 

b. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of June 4, 2018 relative to the 
following items: 
(1) Water Quality Initiatives.  
(2) Streetscape Project Update. 
(3) FY19 Cash Management Report. 
(4) Bills & Payroll. 
 

c. Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of June 5, 2018. 
 

d. Receive and file bids received for the sale of $6,585,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 
2018. 
 

e. Receive and file the bids received for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail 
Improvement Project. 
 

f. Approve the following special event related requests:  
(1) Street closures, Sturgis Falls Celebration, June 20-24, 2018. 
(2) Street closure, Hearthside Drive, June 30, 2018. 
(3) Street closure, Abraham Drive, July 4, 2018. 
(4) Accel Triathlon, July 14, 2018. 
(5) Parking variance, Teacher Festival, July 26, 2018. 
 

g. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
(1) Bani's, 2128 College Street. 
(2) Five Corners Liquor & Wine, 809 East 18th Street. 
(3) Great Wall, 2125 College Street. 
(4) Hill Street News and Tobacco, 2217 College Street. 
(5) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive. 
(6) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street. 
(7) The Dragon's Cave, 2225 College Street. 
(8) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue. 
(9) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard. 
 

h. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Hong Kong Chinese Restaurant, 6306 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - 
renewal. 
(2) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
(3) NewAldaya Lifescapes, 7511 University Avenue, Class A liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
(4) Mulligan's Brick Oven Grill & Pub, 205 East 18th Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service 
- renewal. 
(5) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(6) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - change in 
ownership. 
(7) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer - adding Class B wine. 
(8) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor service. 
(July 13-July 14, 2018) 



 
3 of  4 

 

 
2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 

without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 
a. Resolution directing sale of $6,585,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018. 

 
b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of the renewal of the City's FY19-21 Long 

Term Disability policy and plan amendments with National Insurance Services. 
 

c. Resolution approving the renewal of the City's FY19-20 Group Life and Accidental Death & 
Dismemberment Renewal policy with Standard Insurance Company. 
 

d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Administrative Services Agreement 
with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield relative to the City's FY19 Employee Health Plan. 
 

e. Resolution approving the Group Insurance Policy with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield 
relative to the City's dental plan. 
 

f. Resolution approving an FY19 Health Plan Stop Loss Policy with Wellmark, Inc. 
 

g. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Client Authorization to Bind Coverage 
with Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. relative to Insurance Brokerage 
and Risk Management Services. 
 

h. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of two Claims Service Contracts with 
Alternative Service Concepts, LLC. 
 

i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support "Fulfilling the 
Vision" Campaign for Economic Vitality of the Greater Cedar Valley Alliance & Chamber 
relative to an FY19 Economic Development Grant. 
 

j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the College 
Hill Partnership relative to an FY19 Economic Development Grant. 
 

k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support Economic 
Development Program of the College Hill Partnership relative to FY19 Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds. 
 

l. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support Economic 
Development Program of Cedar Falls Community Main Street relative to an FY19 Economic 
Development Grant. 
 

m. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support Economic 
Development Program of Cedar Falls Community Main Street relative to FY19 Self-
Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds. 
 

n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Banking Services with 
Farmers State Bank. 
 

o. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Merchant Processing 
Services with Professional Solutions Financial Services. 
 

p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Purchase of Office 
Supplies and Copy Paper with Matt Parrott/Storey Kenworthy. 
 



 
4 of  4 

 

q. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Purchase of Uniforms 
with ServiceWear Apparel. 
 

r. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Purchase of Janitorial 
Products with Martin Bros. Distributing Co., Inc. 
 

s. Resolution designating certain streets for operation of off-road utility vehicles for the duration 
of one year. 
 

t. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid of Feldman Concrete, in the amount of 
$122,877.68, for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project. 
 

u. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contracted Education Proposal with 
Hartman Reserve Nature Center relative to providing public outreach and educational 
programs related to improving water quality and stormwater runoff. 
 

v. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Change of Work Order No. 2 to the 
contract with Peterson Contractors, Inc. relative to the 2018 Street Construction Project. 
 

w. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for façade 
improvements at 120 Main Street. 
 

x. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement for 
Grant Administration and Technical Services for Housing Projects with Iowa Northland 
Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) relative to Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Funding. 
 

y. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with 
Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) relative to preparation of a 
Resource Enhancement and Protection (REAP) Grant Application for the Clay Street Park 
Water Quality Improvements Project. 
 

z. Resolution approving five occupancy permits prior to the acceptance of the public 
improvements in Arbors Third Addition. 
 

H. Allow Bills and Payroll. 
 

I. City Council Referrals. 
 

J. City Council Updates. 
 

K. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected 
to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the 
governmental body would receive for that property, following Public Forum. 
 

L. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 
City business.) 
 

M. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JUNE 4, 2018 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the 
City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: None. 

 
51922 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of May 21, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
51923 - City Clerk Danielsen announced that Item G-2.i. was being removed from the 

Resolution Calendar. 
 
51924 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of May 25, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed plans, specifications, 
form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail 
Improvement Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
51925 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Resler commented briefly on the 
project. There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the 
proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

 
51926 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,130, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project, be adopted. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,130 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51927 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2923, providing 
that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located 
within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, 
in the City of Cedar Falls, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson 
Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for 
payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, 
including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the city in connection with the 
amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 
(Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Plan), be passed upon its third and final consideration. The Mayor put the question 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2923 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51928 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2924, amending 
Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to sanitary sewer rates, be 
passed upon its third and final consideration. The Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2924 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51929 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2925, amending 
Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to storm water management 
rates, be passed upon its third and final consideration. The Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2925 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51930 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2926, providing 
that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located 
within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, County 
of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of 
Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson 
Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for 
payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, 
including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the City in connection with the 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, be passed upon its second consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
 

51931 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that Ordinance #2927, amending 
Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Greenhill Road from Hudson Road to 
West 27th Street, be passed upon its second consideration. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
51932 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of MaraBeth 
Soneson to the Utilities Board of Trustees, term ending 08/31/2024. Councilmember 
Darrah expressed his thanks to MaraBeth Soneson. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of May 21, 2018 relative to the 
following items: 
 (1) Utilities Board of Trustees Interview - MaraBeth Soneson. 
 (2) Visitors & Tourism Initiatives/Update. 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 (3) Speed limit on South Main Street-University Avenue to Greenhill Road. 
 (4) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of May 14, 2018. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of April 2018. 
 
Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits: 
 (1) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street. 
 (2) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard. 
 (3) SUDS, 2223 1/2 College Street. 
 (4) Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
 (1) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - 

renewal. 
 (2) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer - renewal. 
 (3) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
 (4) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal. 
 (5) Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - 

renewal. 
 (6) Los Cabos Mexican Restaurant, 112-114 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service - renewal. 
 (7) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
 (8) Target, 214 Viking Plaza Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
 (9) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & 

outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (June 22-24, 
2018) 

 
Following a comment by Councilmember Darrah thanking Ms. Soneson for her 
continued service on the Utilities Board of Trustees, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

51933 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions be 
introduced and adopted: 

 
Resolution #21,131, directing the advertisement for sale of $6,585,000 General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2018, and approving electronic bidding procedures and 
Official Statement. 
 
Resolution #21,132, approving and authorizing execution of an Engagement Letter 
with Eide Bailly, LLP to perform the audit of FY18 financial statements and programs 
compliance. 
 
Resolution #21,133, approving and authorizing execution of an Actuarial Services 
Agreement with SilverStone Group, Incorporated relative to Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 75. 
 

  Resolution #21,134, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service 
Agreement with Carlson Dettmann Consulting, LLC relative to a Job Classification 
Review, in conjunction with the City’s pay plan study. 

-3-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 
 Resolution #21,135, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service 

Agreement with Carlson Dettmann Consulting, LLC relative to a Performance 
Development Program, in conjunction with the City’s pay plan study. 

 
Resolution #21,136, designating the dates and locations for the annual Sturgis Falls 
Celebration and Cedar Basin Jazz Festival Inc. 
 
Resolution #21,137, approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for the purchase 
of two dump trucks. 
 
Resolution #21,138, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work 
of Municipal Pipe Tool Company, LLC for the 2017 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 
Project. 

 
 Resolution #21,139, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 

Agreement No. 7 with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. relative to the Downtown 
Levee Improvements Project. 
 
Resolution #21,140, approving and accepting the contract and bond of K. 
Cunningham Construction Co. Inc. for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. 
 

  Resolution #21,141, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for 
Completion of Improvements with CF Gateway Park, Inc. relative to the final plat of 
Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 

 
Resolution #20,142, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service 
Agreement with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates for 2018 construction observation 
and testing services relative to new subdivisions. 
 

  Resolution #20,143, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates for construction observation 
and testing services relative to Gateway Business Park. (Contingent upon approval 
of Item G-2.m.) 
 
Resolution #20,144, approving a Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay Zoning 
District development site plan for construction of a hotel and conference center on 
Lot 1, Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 

 
Resolution #20,145, approving and authorizing execution of a Developmental 
Procedures Agreement with CF Gateway Park, Inc. relative to public improvements 
in Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 
 
Resolution #20,146, approving the final plat of Gateway Business Park at Cedar 
Falls I. 
 
Resolution #20,147, approving and authorizing execution of a Rehabilitation 
Contract with To Jo Construction Inc., relative to a Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) emergency repair project. 
 

-4-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 Resolution #20,148, approving and authorizing execution of a Rehabilitation 
Contract with Curran Plumbing Inc., relative to a Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) emergency repair project. 
 
Resolution #20,149, setting June 18, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the City's 
FY18-19 Consolidated Annual Plan for the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) & HOME Program. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,131 through #21,149 duly passed and 
adopted. 
 

51934 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the bills and payroll be 
allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue 
City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. 
Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  
 

51935 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse to refer to the Committee of the 
Whole, to review prior to Goal Setting, the process of the Pavement Management 
Program and modifications for unique circumstances.  Motion carried 5-2 with 
Councilmembers duBuhr and Wieland voting nay. 

 
51936 -   Councilmember Green recognized the professionalism of the Falls Aquatic Center 

staff during Memorial Day weekend opening. 
 
      Councilmember Green also recognized the great neighborhood attendance at the 

Sartori Park Memorial Day Picnic.  
 
51937 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:10 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 
 

-5-

Item C. 



 



Community & Economic Development 
Phone: 319-273-8606   

Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES 
 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Brown & City Council  
 
 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
 
 DATE: June 14, 2018 
 

RE: FY 2018-2019 Annual Action Plan for the Community Development Block Grant 
and HOME Program Funding   

  Public Hearing 
 
The Planning and Community Services Division is in the process of preparing its Annual 
Action Plan for the period of FY 2018-2019. An Annual Action Plan is a detailed document 
establishing the goals, objectives, priority housing needs, project descriptions, and other 
pertinent information for the upcoming CDBG Program Year. The plan must be consistent 
with the approved 5 year Consolidated Action Plan. This Annual Action Plan will allow the 
City of Cedar Falls will be eligible to utilize FY 2018-2019 Community Development Block 
Grant funds (CDGB) from the U.S. Department of Housing (HUD) in the amount of $248,026. 
The City will also receive HOME Investment Partnership funds in the approximate amount of 
$48,000 in accordance with the Consortium with Waterloo. The proposed FY2018-2019 
CDBG annual allocation is comparable to previous grants received.  All projected activities 
have been recognized as acceptable block grant activities, primarily providing benefit to low 
and moderate income citizens (one of the three HUD national program requirements).  
 
In its Annual Action Plan Cedar Falls seeks to: 

• Provide affordable housing and improvements to housing to address the growing gap 
between housing costs and local incomes, which leads to rising rates and 
overcrowding, overpayment, and substandard housing conditions for the area lowest 
income residents,  

• Improve community services, particularly in low income areas and provide a network 
of shelter, housing, and support services to prevent homelessness, moving the 
homeless to permanent housing and independence, and eliminating chronic 
homelessness are community objectives,  

• Promote economic development, create jobs, and increase the job skills of potential 
employees, and 

• Support services that increase the ability of seniors, persons with disabilities, and 

-7-

Item E.1. 



others with special needs to live independently and avoid institutions are supported by 
the City. 

 
The Housing Commission held a public meeting for the consideration of the FY 2018-2019 
Annual Action Plan on May 8th, 2018. The Annual Action Plan allocates 20% of the annual 
funds to administrative costs, 15% toward Service Agencies, and the remainder to the 
rehabilitation and emergency repair program. There were no public comments. After 
discussion, the Housing Commission unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the FY 
2018-2019 Annual Action Plan and to forward the Plan to City Council. Following HUD 
protocol a 30-day comment period was opened after the Housing Commission’s 
recommendation of approval. Written comments will continue to be collected by the 
Community Development Department until June 18th, 2018.  No comments have been 
submitted at this time. 
 
In further accordance with HUD requirements, a public hearing at City Council is required as 
part of the approval of an Annual Action Plan. To meet the requirement, Staff recommends 
holding the public hearing on Monday, June 18th, 2018 and that the FY 2018-2019 Annual 
Action Plan be approved, subject to noting any public comments received or as amended by 
City Council.  
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:   Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-8-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
FFY 2018 1 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
CDBG ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR  2018 (CITY FISCAL YEAR 2019) ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 
 
 
COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (30-day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan): 
Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; April 26th, 2018 
 
 
HOUSING COMMISSION (PUBLIC) MEETING ON: 
May 8th, 2018 (Recommendation to Council for approval; open 30-day public comment period) 
Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; April 26th, 2018 
 
 
 
ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL ON: 
(June 18th, 2018) (After a properly-noticed public hearing was conducted; close 30-day public comment period) 
Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; June XX, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW 
May 8th, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

-9-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
FFY 2018 2 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

 
Executive Summary  

 
AP-05 Executive Summary - 91.200(c), 91.220(b) 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The purpose of the Annual Action Plan (AP) is to guide federal funding decisions for the next year. The AP is guided 
by three overarching goals that are applied according to a community needs. The goals are:  
 

(1) To provide decent housing by preserving the affordable housing stock, increasing the availability of 
affordable housing, reducing discriminatory barriers; increasing the supply of supportive housing for those 
with special needs; and transitioning homeless persons and families into housing. 
  

(2) To provide a suitable living environment through safer, more livable neighborhoods, greater integration 
of low-and-moderate income residents throughout the city, increased housing opportunities, and 
reinvestment in deteriorating neighborhoods.  
 

(3) To expand economic opportunities through more jobs paying self-sufficient wages, homeownership 
opportunities, development activities that promote long-term community viability, and the 
empowerment of low- and moderate- income persons to achieve self-sufficiency.  
 

Cedar Falls is committed to allocating funds that serve the needs of the lowest income and most disadvantaged 
residents. Households with incomes less than 50% of the area median income, particularly those with extremely 
low incomes are particular priorities. The city has also identified special needs individuals as among those who face 
the greatest challenges and who should receive high priority in the expenditure of federal funds, including at-risk 
children and youth, low-income families, the homeless and persons threatened with homelessness, the elderly, 
and persons with disabilities. The following needs address these priorities: Affordable housing investment in 
community development activities in lower income and deteriorating neighborhoods and in facilities that serve 
lower income populations, and supportive services to maintain independence. Cedar Falls, by focusing on these 
needs, seeks to address the following community concerns: A need for additional affordable housing to address 
the growing gap between housing costs and local incomes, which leads to rising rates and overcrowding, 
overpayment, and substandard housing conditions for the area lowest income residents. Programs that improve 
community services, particularly in low income areas and provide a network of shelter, housing, and support 
services to prevent homelessness, moving the homeless to permanent housing and independence, and eliminating 
chronic homelessness are community objectives. Also, programs that promote economic development, create 
jobs, and increase the job skills of potential employees, and supportive services that increase the ability of seniors, 
persons with disabilities, and others with special needs to live independently and avoid institutions are supported 
by the City. 
 
2. Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan   
 
This could be a restatement of items or a table listed elsewhere in the plan or a reference to another location. It 
may also contain any essential items from the housing and homeless needs assessment, the housing market 
analysis or the strategic plan. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls will provide assistance and services to low-and-moderate income residents in accordance to 
the Annual Action Plan through designated projects. These projects and services include housing rehabilitation, 
accessibility improvements and public services and potentially demolition and clearance programs. These 
programs are designated to improve and preserve the housing stock, prevent homelessness and improve areas 
that meet the national objective in the community. By focusing on these overall priorities outlined in the Cedar 

-10-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
FFY 2018 3 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Falls Consolidated Plan, we are able to provide decent housing by preserving the affordable housing stock, 
providing a suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities. 
 
3. Evaluation of past performance  
 
This is an evaluation of past performance that helped lead the grantee to choose its goals or projects. As stated in 
the City of Cedar Falls’ Future Forward Plan, the community has identified unique and highly attractive housing 
options as a priority for the community.  In addition, with this Plan, affordable housing, community development, 
economic development, homelessness and social services are viewed as priority needs for the City. High priorities 
for FY 2015-2019 also include infrastructure improvements, public facility improvements, demolition and clearance 
of dilapidated structures, public services and the development and maintenance of affordable housing. The City 
has addressed some of those goals during prior years through its rehabilitation projects and public service agency 
awards. 
 
4. Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process  
 
Summary from citizen participation section of plan. The Consultation process consisted of a series of meetings with 
public agencies and non-profit organizations. The meetings were held to identify current issues and trends 
impacting the agencies and organizations. Topics discussed were homelessness; services to extremely low, low, 
and moderate-income families and individuals; and affordable housing. The information gathered was used in 
developing the Annual Action Plan. In addition, a public meeting with the Housing Commission was held on May 
8th, 2018 and also a City Council public hearing regarding the annual action plan on June 18th, 2018. No comments 
were received at either meeting. 
 
5. Summary of public comments 
 
This could be a brief narrative summary or reference an attached document from the Citizen Participation section 
of the Con Plan. 
 
No comments were received from the Housing Commission’s Public Meeting held on May 8th, 2018. No Comments 
were received from the City Council Public Hearing on June 18th, 2018. 
 
6. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them 
 
No comments were received for consideration. 
 
7. Summary 
 
Our current goals are to provide decent affordable housing stock and increase the availability of affordable housing 
through community outreach and citizen participation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

-11-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
FFY 2018 4 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies - 91.200(b) 
 
1. Agency/entity responsible for preparing/administering the Consolidated Plan 
 
The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible for 
administration of each grant program and funding source. 
 

Agency Role Name Department/Agency 
CDBG Administrator Cedar Falls Department of Community Development 

Table 1 – Responsible Agencies 
 
Narrative 
 
The City of Cedar Falls administers its own CDBG activities, and in addition, implements the City's share of HOME 
funds received through the Waterloo-Cedar Falls HOME Consortium. The City will carry out the activities described 
in this Annual Plan using these two program sources. 
 
Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
Department of Community Development 
Planning and Community Services Division 
220 Clay St. 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Contact: Planning and Community Services Manager 
Telephone: (319) 273-8600 
Website: http://www.cedarfalls.com 
  

-12-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
FFY 2018 5 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l) 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The consultation process for the City of Cedar Falls includes meetings and workshops with local public agencies 
and non-profit organizations in an effort to develop an Annual Action Plan that is community driven. The meetings 
were beneficial in identifying current issues and trends impacting the agencies and organizations. The information 
gathered is being used to develop the Annual Action Plan. 
 
Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between public and assisted 
housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health and service agencies (91.215(l)). 
 
Also, staff conducted monitoring visit meetings with the six public service agencies funded by CDBG during the 
prior year. These meeting provide necessary insight to the changing needs of the community. Staff also 
administers two housing trust funds and attended the Community Reinvestment Act training that was held in 
Waterloo. Trust fund meetings and the CRA meeting brought together a large group of nonprofit agencies and 
financial institutions to discuss housing needs and how to overcome community barriers. The Northeast Iowa Food 
Bank is also hosting monthly meetings bringing together agencies from all over the county to discuss food needs, 
including emergency food service provision to low income individuals and families. 
 
Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of homeless persons 
(particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans, and unaccompanied 
youth) and persons at risk of homelessness. 
 
Meetings were held with community organizations to discuss homelessness and affordable housing. The Salvation 
Army provides homeless individuals and families with shelter and services. Habitat for Humanity provides 
affordable housing to families assisting them with homeownership. Strategies were discussed on how to better 
assist and affirmatively further fair housing to those with the greatest need. The organizations provided in depth 
information on housing needs for homeless persons, in addition to persons at risk of homelessness. Staff also 
attends meetings held bi-monthly with representatives from the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating 
Board, the regional Continuum of Care (COC) organization. 
 
Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction’s area in determining how to 
allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate outcomes of projects and activities assisted 
by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS 
 
The City of Cedar Falls does not directly receive ESG funds. The Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating 
Board (LHCB) manages homelessness in the city of Cedar Falls. While the board focus is countywide, the majority 
of the county homeless persons receive services in the Waterloo/Cedar Falls area. Currently the Salvation Army 
uses the Service Point/Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) to collect and track client data. The data 
collected through HMIS will be used to determine future housing needs. 
 
2. Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process and consultations 

-13-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 6 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 
1 Agency/Group/Organization SALVATION ARMY 

Agency/Group/Organization Type 
 
 

Services – Housing Rent Inflation 
Services – Sheltering; Rapid Rehousing 
Services - Victims of Domestic Violence 
Services – Proximity to Services; Transportation 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Annual Goals and Objectives; Project Summary; 
Housing Need Assessment 
Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 
Homeless Needs - Families with children 
Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 
L/M Income Limited Clientele 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 
are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 
areas for improved coordination? 

A meeting was held with the Salvation Army. Staff 
discussed needs of the Salvation Army clients, relative 
to the shelters and services they manage.  Homeless in 
the jurisdiction. 

2 Agency/Group/Organization IOWA HEARTLAND HABITAT FOR HUMANITY 
Agency/Group/Organization Type 
 

Housing – Affordable and Rehab and Repair 
Services - Housing 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Annual Goals and Objectives; Project Summary; 
Housing Need Assessment; Non-Homeless Special 
Needs; L/M Income Limited Clientele 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 
are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 
areas for improved coordination? 

Staff has discussed working with Habitat for Humanity 
to identify how our organizations can work together to 
make the CBDG and HOME funds have a larger impact 
on the community. 

3 Agency/Group/Organization CONSUMER CREDIT COUNSELING SERVICES 
Agency/Group/Organization Type 
 

Services-Persons in Housing Jeopardy 
Services-Housing Education; Counseling; Financial 
Literacy 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Annual Goals and Objectives; Project Summary;  
Anti-poverty Strategy; Prevention of homelessness; 
L/M Income Limited Clientele 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 
are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 
areas for improved coordination? 

In meeting with the organization, they were able to 
give insight to the current issues they see with financial 
and credit management in the community, specific to 
housing. 

4 Agency/Group/Organization NORTHEAST IOWA FOOD BANK/FOOD PANTRY 
Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Emergency Food 
What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Annual Goals and Objectives; Project Summary; 
Services - Food Provision for Persons in Need 
L/M Income Limited Clientele 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 
are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 
areas for improved coordination? 

Staff met with NEIFB employees to discuss the food 
needs and demands of persons in need, specifically the 
working poor, and persons impacted by medical and 
unemployment circumstances; needs of senior citizens 
were also discussed. 
 
 
 
 
 

-14-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 7 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

5 Agency/Group/Organization VISITING NURSES ASSOCIATION 
Agency/Group/Organization Type Services – Home Health Care for Persons 

Service – At risk of losing housing because of medical 
circumstances 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Annual Goals and Objectives; Project Summary; 
Services – Home health care; L/M Income Limited 
Clientele 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 
are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 
areas for improved coordination? 

Staff met with VNA staff members to discuss the use of 
funds and needs of persons.  Client circumstances, 
relative to healthcare and housing were noted as a 
threat to residents in need. 

6 Agency/Group/Organization FAMILY AND CHILDREN’S COUNCIL 
Agency/Group/Organization Type Services – Abuse prevention; Education; Resource 

availability 
What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Annual Goals and Objectives; Project Summary; 
Services – Homeless Prevention; Parenting Education 
L/M Income Limited Clientele 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 
are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 
areas for improved coordination? 

Met with agency staff to discuss needs of clients 
relative to their impacts of abuse on housing and 
homelessness.  Discussed additional needs including 
funding for sexual abuse prevention, as well as 
employment and educational training. 

7 Agency/Group/Organization PATHWAYS BEHAVIORAL SERVICES 
Agency/Group/Organization Type Service – Substance abuse treatment and prevention 
What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Annual Goals and Objectives; Project Summary; Service 
– Homeless prevention 
L/M Income Limited Clientele 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 
are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 
areas for improved coordination? 

Staff met with Pathways staff regarding future needs 
of clients and the impact of substance abuse on 
housing and homelessness, specifically the new detox 
center being constructed; opioid epidemic; need for 
24/7 nursing staff needs. 

 
 
 
 
Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 
 
Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 
 
 

Name of Plan Lead Organization How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with 
the goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care 
Black Hawk County Local 
Homeless Coordinating Board 
(LHCB) 

The LHCB was reviewed to better understand the 
homeless housing and social service needs in developing 
the Annual Action Plan. 

Table 3 - Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 
 
  

-15-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 8 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Narrative 
 
AP-12 Participation - 91.401, 91.105, 91.200(c) 
 
1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation 
 
Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting 
 
A Housing Commission public meeting and a City Council public hearing were held to discuss citizen input. No 
comments were received during the public meeting or hearing. Other agencies are relied upon for goal setting, due 
to the lack of direct citizen participation. Through meetings with the various community organizations we were 
able to identify priority needs and conform a plan to address affordable housing needs and services to low-and 
moderate-income households and persons. 
 
Citizen Participation Outreach 
 
Sort O
rder 

Mode of 
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 

attendance 

Summary 
of 

comments 
received 

Summary of 
comments 

not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

1 Public 
Meeting 

Minorities 
  
Non-English 
Speaking - 
Specify 
other 
language: 
Spanish 
  
Persons 
with 
disabilities 
  
Non-
targeted/br
oad 
community 

A Housing 
Commission public 
meeting was held on 
Wednesday May 8th, 
2018 at 5:00 pm in 
the Duke Young 
Conference Room at 
the Cedar Falls City 
Hall. There were no 
attendees, other 
than agency 
representatives. No 
comments were 
received. No written 
comments were 
submitted.  

No 
comments 
received. 
 

  www.cedarfalls.c
om 

-16-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 9 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort O
rder 

Mode of 
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 

attendance 

Summary 
of 

comments 
received 

Summary of 
comments 

not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

2 Public 
Hearing 

Minorities 
  
Non-English 
Speaking - 
Specify 
other 
language: 
Spanish 
  
Persons 
with 
disabilities 
  
Non-
targeted/br
oad 
community 

A City Council public 
hearing was held on 
June 18th, 2018 at 
7:00pm. 
 

No 
comments 
were 
received. 
 

  www.cedarfalls.c
om 

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach  

-17-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 10 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Expected Resources 
 
AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2) 
 
Introduction 
 
The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving an allocation of $248,026 in Community Development Block Grant 
funding for Federal Fiscal Year 2018.  In addition, the City has unspent resources from four prior years, as noted in 
the Table below, that needs to be expended as well. 
 
Anticipated Resources 
 

Program Source 
of 

Funds 

Uses of 
Funds 

Amount Available Year 2018 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder 
of Con Plan  

$ 

Narrative 
Description 

Annual 
Allocation: 

$ 

Program 
Income: $ 

Prior Years 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

  

CDBG Public - 
federal 

Acquisition 
Admin and 
Planning, 
Economic 
Developmen
t, 
Housing, 
and 
Public 
Services 

 
$248,026 $1,000 

$19,032.70 
$12,624.00 

$151,333.89 
$232,573.00 
$415,563.59 

415,563.00 

 
$664,589.59 

664,589.00 
$664,589.59 

664,589.00 

Funds will be 
used for 
housing and 
non-housing 
community 
development. 

Table 5 - Expected Resources – Priority Table 
 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a 
description of how matching requirements will be satisfied 
 
CDBG funds are paired with HOME funds to provide rehabilitation grants for single family homeowners.  Also, 
CDBG funds, awarded to agencies, will be used in conjunction with other agency funding sources in order to 
provide services to Cedar Falls residents. 
 
If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to 
address the needs identified in the plan 
 
The City of Cedar Falls owns industrial property that allows the City flexibility in developing sites and encourages 
new firms to move to the industrial parks. 
 
Discussion 

-18-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 11 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Annual Goals and Objectives 
 
AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.420, 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 
 
Goals Summary Information  
 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding Goal Outcome 
Indicator 

1 Single Family 
Owner 
Occupied 
Rehabilitation 

2015 2019 Affordable 
Housing 

City of Cedar 
Falls 

Single Family 
Rehabilitation 

$345,000 
 

Homeowner 
Housing Rehab: 
Approximately 
10 
Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
Units 

2 Single Family 
Owner 
Occupied 
Repair Program 

2015 2019 Affordable 
Housing 

City of Cedar 
Falls 

Repair of 
existing, 
affordable 
housing; 
Housing Stock 
Preservation 

$125,000 
 

Homeowner 
Housing Repair: 
Approximately 
10 
Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
Units 

3 Public Service: 
Consumer 
Credit 
Counseling 

2015 2019 Public Services: 
Housing 
education and 
financial 
literacy 

City of Cedar 
Falls 
Residents  

Public Service: 
Debt 
Counseling 

$3,720 
 

Public service 
activities for 
Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele: 
Approximately 
40 Persons 
Assisted 

4 Public Service: 
Family and 
Children's 
Council 

2015 2019 Non-Homeless 
Special Needs 
Public Services; 
Child abuse 
prevention 

City of Cedar 
Falls 
Residents  

Public Services: 
Family and 
Children's 
Council 

$3,720 
 

Public service 
activities for 
Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele: 
Approximately 6 
Households 
Assisted 

5 Public Service: 
Emergency 
Shelter: 
Homeless 
Prevention 

2015 2019 Homeless: 
Women and 
children 
sheltering 

City of Cedar 
Falls 
Residents  

Emergency 
Shelter: 
Salvation Army 

$9,920 
 

Homelessness 
Prevention: 
Approximately 
20 
Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele 
Households 
Assisted 

-19-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 12 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding Goal Outcome 
Indicator 

6 Public Service: 
Northeast Iowa 
Food Bank 

2015 2019 Public Services: 
Emergency 
Food provision 

City of Cedar 
Falls 
Residents  

Public Services: 
Northeast Iowa 
Food Bank 

$9,920 
 

Public service 
for 
Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele: 
Approximately 
3,000 Persons 
Assisted 

7 Public Service: 
Visiting Nurses 
Association 

2015 2019 Non-Homeless 
Special Needs 
Public Services: 
Home health 
services 

City of Cedar 
Falls 
Residents  

Public Services: 
Visiting Nurses 
Association 

$4,960 
 

Public service 
for 
Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele: 
Approximately 
35 Persons 
Assisted 

8 Public Service: 
Pathways 
Behavioral 
Services 

2015 2019 Non-Homeless 
Special Needs 
Public Services: 
Substance 
abuse 
treatment 

City of Cedar 
Falls 
Residents  

Public Services: 
Pathway 
Behavioral 
Services 

$4,960 
 

Public service 
for 
Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele: 
Approximately 
10 Persons 
Assisted 

9 Demolition and 
Clearance 

2015 2019 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

City of Cedar 
Falls 

Demolition and 
Clearance 

$15,000 
 

Buildings 
Demolished: 
Approximately 2 
Buildings 

10 Interest Income 2015 2019  Not 
Applicable 

Not Applicable $1,000 
 

Lump Sum Draw 
Income 

11 Planning and 
Administration 

2015 2019 Administration Not 
Applicable 

Administration $59,889 
 

All Programs 

Table 6 – Goals Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-20-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 13 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

 
Goal Descriptions 
 
1 Goal Name Single Family Rehabilitation 

Goal 
Description 

The Housing Rehabilitation Program provides grants for low-and-moderate 
income homeowners for the purpose of housing rehabilitation, emergency repairs, 
handicapped accessibility and structural hazard removal in effort to preserve owner-occupied 
single-family housing stock. Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited 
to) repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, structural 
repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, windows and siding. 

2 Goal Name Single Family Homeowner Repair Program 
Goal 
Description 

Funds will be used for assisting qualified homeowners to improve or repair, either in 
emergency situations or on an individual basis; single family housing units. 

3 Goal Name Public Service: Consumer Credit Counseling 
Goal 
Description 

This public service agency provides housing education and counseling for residents of Cedar 
Falls as well as sponsors classes promoting literacy to enable residents to become more self-
sufficient. They provide financial management and debt assessment as well. 

4 Goal Name Public Service: Family and Children's Council 
Goal 
Description 

Family & Children’s Council (FCC) is a non-profit organization whose mission is to prevent child 
abuse and strengthen families. FCC works toward its mission through prevention education 
programs in the schools, parent education, and support for families and training for 
professionals and community members, as well as offers access to resources. 

5 Goal Name Public Service: Emergency Shelter: Homeless Prevention 
Goal 
Description 

The Salvation Army Emergency Shelter provides emergency housing to Cedar Falls persons 
experiencing homelessness. The agency also provides services to help individuals and families 
obtain permanent housing. 

6 Goal Name Public Service: Northeast Iowa Food Bank 
Goal 
Description 

The mission of the Northeast Iowa Food Bank is to provide nutritious food and grocery products 
to nonprofit organizations and individuals in Northeast Iowa.  This service is targeting the 
provision of emergency food to households in need through the Cedar Valley Food Pantry. 

7 Goal Name Public Service: Visiting Nurses Association 
Goal 
Description 

The Visiting Nurses Association provides medical services to home-bound persons in need 
medical assistance. 

8 Goal Name Public Service: Pathways Behavioral Services 
Goal 
Description 

Pathways Behavioral Services provides substance abuse services though outpatient counseling, 
halfway house residential treatment, and adult transitional housing and comprehensive 
prevention education. 

9 Goal Name Demolition and Clearance 
Goal 
Description 

The Demolition and Clearance Program provides funds for the demolition and clearance of 
dilapidated structures to eliminate specific conditions of blight or physical decay on a spot 
basis. Individual demolition clearance activities will be subject to CDBG eligibility verification. 

-21-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 14 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-35 Projects - 91.420, 91.220(d) 
 
Introduction  
 
The projects chosen for funding allocation all serve a purpose in efforts to prevent homelessness, preserve the 
current housing stock of affordable homes in the area and provide services that are essential to keeping residents 
in their homes. These programs were designated to improve the housing stock, prevent homelessness and 
improve areas that meet the national objective in the community. Funds will be utilized in an efficient manner and 
serve those with the greatest need. 
 

# Project Name 
1 Single Family Rehabilitation 
2 Single Family Repair Program 
3 Public Service: Consumer Credit Counseling 
4 Public Services: Family and Children's Council 
5 Public Services- Salvation Army Homeless Shelter 
6 Public Services: Northeast Iowa Food Bank 
7 Public Services: Visiting Nurses Association 
8 Public Services: Pathways Behavioral Services 
9 Demolition and Clearance 

10 Interest Income 
11 CDBG Planning and Administration 

Table 7 – Project Information 
 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs 
 
The funding that has been allocated was done so to support on ongoing efforts to eliminate poverty through 
making housing more affordable, preserving the condition and availability of existing housing stock, and helping 
citizens build human, social, physical, and natural assets. Each allocation serves a purpose to prevent 
homelessness, eliminate slum and blight and provide economic opportunity. A barrier to affordable housing for 
low-income residents in Cedar Falls has been the price of homes and land in the area. Declining local and federal 
resources have also been a key impediment to addressing needs. Unfortunately, as a result, the city's financial and 
staff resources have declined as well. 

-22-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 15 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-38 Project Summary 
 
Project Summary Information 
 
1 Project Name Single Family Rehabilitation 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls 
Goals Supported Single Family Rehabilitation 
Needs Addressed Single Family Rehabilitation 
Funding Target CDBG: $345,000 
Description Rehabilitation of Owner Occupied Units; LMI Households 
Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 10 households will benefit from the CBBG Rehabilitation 
Program 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls 
Planned Activities Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 

repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, 
structural repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, windows and 
siding. 

2 Project Name Single Family Owner Occupied Repair Program 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls 
Goals Supported Single Family Rehabilitation 
Needs Addressed Single Family Rehabilitation 
Funding Target $125,000 
Description Repair of Owner Occupied Units; LMI Households 
Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 10 households will benefit from this limited CBBG 
Rehabilitation Program 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls 
Planned Activities Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 

repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, HVAC, roofs, and other 
limited, minor emergency repairs. 

3 Project Name Public Service: Consumer Credit Counseling 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls Residents; LMI Limited Clientele 
Goals Supported Consumer Credit Counseling 
Needs Addressed Public Service: Housing Education and Debt Counseling 
Funding Target CDBG: $3,720 
Description Funds will be used to pay for education, literacy, and financial credit 

counseling services for Cedar Falls residents who are seeking housing 
assistance or to prevent foreclosure. 

Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 40 people in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description 1003 W. 4th St. Waterloo, Iowa 50702 
Planned Activities Consumer Credit Counseling provides financial counseling to those seeking 

housing assistance and foreclosure prevention. 

-23-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 16 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

4 Project Name Public Service: Family and Children's Council 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls Residents; LMI Limited Clientele 
Goals Supported Public Service: Family and Children's Council 
Needs Addressed Public Service: Family and Children's Council 
Funding Target CDBG: $3,720 
Description Funds will be used to pay for child abuse prevention (Parent Connection) 

program that provides in-home or group-based parent education, formal 
social support, and access to resources in the community for individuals 
parenting children ages birth to twelve years residing in Black Hawk County. 

Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

The program will assist approximately 6 families. 

Location Description FCC is located at 2051 Kimball Avenue, Waterloo, Iowa 50702 
Planned Activities Funds will be used to pay for the Parent Connection program that provides 

in-home or group-based parent education, formal social support, and access 
to resources in the community for individuals parenting children ages birth 
to twelve years residing in Black Hawk County. 

5 Project Name Public Service: Salvation Army Homeless Shelter 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls Residents; LMI Limited Clientele 
Goals Supported Public Service: Emergency Shelter: Homeless Prevention 
Needs Addressed Emergency Shelter: Salvation Army 
Funding Target CDBG: $9,920 
Description Funds will be used for the operations or capital repairs at the homeless 

shelters managed by The Salvation Army. 
Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

The Salvation Army will assist approximately 20 families in preventing 
homelessness. 

Location Description The Salvation Army has shelters at the following locations: 603 South 
Hackett, 229 Logan Avenue, 216-218 Logan Avenue, Waterloo Iowa 

Planned Activities The Salvation Army will use the funds to operate the shelters and pay utility 
costs. 

6 Project Name Public Service: Northeast Iowa Food Bank 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls Residents; LMI Limited Clientele  
Goals Supported Public Service: Northeast Iowa Food Bank 
Needs Addressed Public Service: Northeast Iowa Food Bank 
Funding Target CDBG: $9,920 
Description Funds will be used for the Cedar Valley Food Pantry. The Pantry provides 

emergency and supplemental food to people in need in Black Hawk County. 
Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

The Northeast Iowa Food Bank will assist approximately 3,000 people. 

Location Description 1605 Lafayette Street, Waterloo Iowa 50703 
Planned Activities Funds will be used for the Cedar Valley Food Pantry. The Pantry provides 

emergency and supplemental food to people in need in Black Hawk County. 
 

-24-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 17 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

7 Project Name Public Service: Visiting Nurses Association 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls Residents; LMI Limited Clientele 
Goals Supported Public Service: Visiting Nurses Association 
Needs Addressed Public Service: Visiting Nurses Association 
Funding Target CDBG: $4,960 
Description Funds will be used for citizens that live in Cedar Falls. The funds are used for 

individuals who are uninsured or underinsured who pay privately for home 
health services based on a sliding fee scale. 

Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

The Visiting Nurses Association will approximately 35 visits in the Cedar Falls 
area. 

Location Description VNA is located at 2530 University Avenue, Ste. 3, Waterloo, Iowa 50701 
Planned Activities Visiting Nurses provides home healthcare to individuals in the Cedar Falls 

area. 
 

8 Project Name Public Service: Pathways Behavioral Services 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls Residents; LMI Limited Clientele  
Goals Supported Public Service: Pathways Behavioral Services 
Needs Addressed Public Service: Pathway Behavioral Services 
Funding Target CDBG: $4,960 
Description Funds will be used to pay for Cedar Falls residents participation in the 

residential substance abuse treatment services in Pathways Residential 
Treatment Unit. (Recovery House) 

Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Pathways Behavioral Services will assist approximately 10 persons. 

Location Description 3362 University Ave. Waterloo, IA 50701 
 

Planned Activities Funds will be used to pay for Cedar Falls residents participation in the 
residential substance abuse treatment services in Pathways Residential 
Treatment Unit. (Recovery House) 

9 Project Name Demolition and Clearance 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls Residents 
Goals Supported Demolition and Clearance 
Needs Addressed Demolition and Clearance 
Funding Target CDBG: $15,000 
Description The funds will be used to prevent slum and blight throughout the Cedar 

Falls City limits by demolishing dilapidated building and structures or for 
clearance. 

Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Demolition of approximately 2 dilapidated units in the City 

Location Description Not Applicable 
Planned Activities Demolish approximately 2 dilapidated units within the City 

 

-25-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 18 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

10 Project Name Interest Income 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Programs Noted Above; #1-#9) 
Goals Supported All of the AAP goals are supported by this function or activity 
Needs Addressed All of the needs may be supported by this function or activity 
Funding Target $1,000 
Description Income generated by the lump sum draw by the City 
Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Funds will be used in the above-noted programs, #1-#9. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls 
Planned Activities Programs #1-#9 above 

11 Project Name CDBG Planning and Administration 
Target Area City of Cedar Falls  
Goals Supported All of the AAP goals are supported by this function or activity 
Needs Addressed Administration, including CDBG planning functions 
Funding Target CDBG: $59,889 
Description General management, oversight and coordination of the CDBG and HOME 

Program(s), policy planning, environmental reviews, report preparation, and 
administration. 

Target Date 6/30/2019 
Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Not Applicable 

Location Description Department of Community Development 220 Clay St. Cedar Falls, Iowa 
50613 
 

Planned Activities  Administrative and planning activities, associated with the CDBG program 

-26-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 19 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.420, 91.220(f) 
 
Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and minority 
concentration) where assistance will be directed  
 
CDBG funding is used throughout the City of Cedar Falls as well as for purchasing services from a limited number of 
agencies that may not be located in Cedar Falls, but which will provide services to Cedar Falls residents.  Our 
programs will serve Low-Moderate Income (LMI) households and LMI Limited Clientele agencies or organizations. 
The Cedar Falls Future Forward Plan identified characteristics of neighborhoods that could be the focus of 
neighborhood revitalization plans, including North Cedar, College Hill and Overman Park areas. 
 
Geographic Distribution 
 

Target Area Percentage of Funds 
  

Table 8 - Geographic Distribution  
 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  
 
The LMI percentage required for CDBG eligibility is 51% of residents. There are currently 7 census tracts with 9 
block groups that have a LMI percentage of 51% or greater. Specifically, Census tract 1600 block group 1; tract 
2200 block group 1 and 2; tract 2303 bock group 1; tract 2304 block group 2; tract 2500 block group 3; tract 2603 
block group 4; and tract 2604 block groups 3 and 5. 
 
Discussion 
 
The qualifying block groups are scattered throughout the city. Most of the programs funded through CDBG and 
this program are based on an individual household LMI determination or on a Limited Clientele basis.

-27-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 20 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.420, 91.220(k) 
 
Introduction 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is able to address obstacles to meeting the underserved needs through networking with 
public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to prevent homelessness and provide affordable housing to 
Cedar Falls residents. Also, the City is working to maintain the affordable housing stock in the area and provide 
decent and safe conditions to its residents. 
 
Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 
 
The City of Cedar Falls will continue to work with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure we 
are reaching the goal of assisting residents with the greatest need. In addition, we will work with code 
enforcement and other departments to identify potential at-risk residents. Declining resources have been a key 
impediment to addressing needs. By networking with other agencies, we can combine multiple funding sources to 
provide more services to low-and-moderate income residents. 
 
Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 
 
Cedar Falls continues to work to foster and maintain affordable housing. The Housing Rehabilitation and Repair 
Programs assist qualified homeowners with substantial home rehabilitation or repairs to existing units. Funding is 
also provided to Consumer Credit Counseling to provide financial education classes and planning, as well as family 
support services. Habitat for Humanity encourages affordable housing through new construction and housing 
rehabilitation programs that they manage within the community. In addition, the City offers reduced refuse, sewer 
and storm water fees to households below the 50% income guidelines.  This is accomplished by the City using its 
general funds to assist, which in-turn lowers the cost of housing. 
 
Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments directly, or through its subcontractor, provides lead risk 
assessment and completes lead- based paint clearance testing on the housing rehabilitation projects in Cedar Falls. 
The City will continue to work with local, county, and other government agencies to achieve lead safe homes. The 
city provides "Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home" brochure to educate CDBG applicants about the 
dangers of lead in the home. 
 
Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 
 
Cedar Falls has incorporated the Continuum of Care approach, providing an integrated system of services and 
programs to meet the various needs of individuals as they progress toward financial self-sufficiency. Cedar Falls 
has worked with local service providers to pursue resources and innovative partnerships to support the 
development of affordable housing; prevent homelessness, abuse, and substance abuse; offer housing education 
and literacy; and provide emergency food and shelter. 
 
Actions planned to develop institutional structure  
 
The close working relationship between the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board (LHCB) and the 
Cedar Falls Low Rent Housing Agency reduces the potential for a service delivery gap between public and non-
profit organizations. A gap has been found to exist in the participation of private industry. The Cedar Falls Low Rent 
Housing Agency continues to work with the private industry to increase affordable housing stock for low-
moderate-income residents. 
 
Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies 
 

-28-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 21 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Community outreach is key in enhancing coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. Staff attends Community Resource Fairs, and workshops with a number of local public service agencies 
and non-profit organizations. The meetings offer opportunities to foster relationships as well as identify the 
services each organization and/or agency is providing. By educating participating organizations on services 
available in the community, we are better positioned to meet the needs of the low-moderate-income individuals 
and households in the city. 
 
Discussion 
 

-29-

Item E.1. 



 Annual Action Plan 
 FFY 2018 22 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Program Specific Requirements 
 
AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - 91.420, 91.220(l)(1,2,4) 
 
Introduction 
 
See below 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)  
 

Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1)  
 

CDBG-funded projects that are expected to be implemented during the year are identified in the Projects Summary 
Table (AP-38) above. The following identifies any program income that may available for use in said projects.  
 

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next program year 

and that has not yet been reprogrammed 0 
2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to address the 

priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. 0 
3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements 0 
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not been 

included in a prior statement or plan 0 
5. The amount of income from float-funded activities 0 
Total Program Income: 0 

 
Other CDBG Requirements  

 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 
  
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit persons 

of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, two or three 
years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70% of CDBG funds is 
used to benefit persons of low-and-moderate income. Specify the years covered that 
include this Annual Action Plan. 70.00% 

 
 
Discussion 
 
The benefit period used for the overall benefit will be during Federal Fiscal Year 2018, or City Fiscal Year 2019. 
  
The City of Cedar Falls uses its HOME funds allocation in part, for lot acquisition and site preparation for Habitat for 
Humanity homes. Recapture guidelines are used for any homebuyer activity where the client receives direct 
financial assistance, and resale is used when the homeowner does not receive direct financial assistance. We have 
begun to use HOME funds for owner occupied housing rehabilitation as the availability of affordable lots for 
Habitat homes declines. 
 
Regarding resale guidelines, the City utilizes 24 CFR 92.254(a)(5)(i). The homebuyer activity of Habitat for 
Humanity includes acquisition of a lot and new construction. The housing rehabilitation project may provide 
forgivable loans between $15,000 and $20,000. These units are subject to resale guidelines.  A restrictive land 
covenant is recorded on the property for the applicable affordability period. If less than $15,000 is spent on the 
property, the affordability period is five years. If between $15,000 and $40,000 is spent, the period is 10 years, and 
if more than $40,000 is spent, the period is 15 years. 

-30-

Item E.1. 



 

 -1-

ORDINANCE NO. __2926___ 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING THAT GENERAL PROPERTY 
TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR ON ALL 
PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE SOUTH CEDAR FALLS 
URBAN RENEWAL AREA, IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, BY AND 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, CEDAR 
FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, HUDSON 
COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING 
DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT 
OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES 
ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS 
ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED, INCURRED BY THE CITY IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE SOUTH CEDAR FALLS URBAN 
RENEWAL AREA  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, after public notice 

and hearing as prescribed by law and pursuant to Resolution No. _21,109___ passed and 
approved on the 21st day of May, 2018, adopted an Urban Renewal Plan (the "Urban Renewal 
Plan") for an urban renewal area known as the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area (the 
"Urban Renewal Area"), which Urban Renewal Area includes the lots and parcels located within 
the area legally described as follows: 
 

That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 
of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 
 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 
of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 
 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 
extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 
said Lot 20; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 
line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 
East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 
Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 
right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 
of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

-31-

Item F.1. 



 

 -2-

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 
Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 
Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 
to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 
said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 
Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 
right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the East line of 
said Section 2; 

thence along said East line South to the South Corporate Limits line of the 
City of Cedar Falls; 

thence along said South Corporate Limits line West to the West line of 
said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 
3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 
of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 
 

WHEREAS, expenditures and indebtedness are anticipated to be incurred by the City of 
Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, in the future to finance urban renewal project activities carried out in 
furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, desires to provide 
for the division of revenue from taxation in the Urban Renewal Area, as above described, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as amended. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 
 

Section 1. That the taxes levied on the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area 
legally described in the preamble hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of 
Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson 
Community School District, and all other taxing districts from and after the effective date of this 
Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter in this Ordinance provided. 

Section 2. That portion of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax 
is levied each year by or for each of the taxing districts upon the total sum of the assessed value 
of the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area, as shown on the assessment roll as of 
January 1 of the calendar year preceding the first calendar year in which the City of Cedar Falls, 
State of Iowa, certifies to the Auditor of Black Hawk County, Iowa the amount of loans, 

-32-

Item F.1. 



 

 -3-

advances, indebtedness, or bonds payable from the division of property tax revenue described 
herein, shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing 
district as taxes by or for the taxing district into which all other property taxes are paid. 

Section 3. That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes 
determined as provided in Section 2 of this Ordinance shall be allocated to and when collected be 
paid into a special tax increment fund of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 
established, to pay the principal of and interest on loans, monies advanced to, indebtedness, 
whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including bonds or obligations issued under the 
authority of Section 403.9 or 403.12 of the Code of Iowa, as amended, incurred by the City of 
Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban renewal projects 
undertaken within the Urban Renewal Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, except that (i) 
taxes for the regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment levy of a school district 
imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 298.2 and taxes for the instructional support program of 
a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 257.19 (but in each case only to the 
extent required under Iowa Code Section 403.19(2)); (ii) taxes for the payment of bonds and 
interest of each taxing district; (iii) taxes imposed under Iowa Code Section 346.27(22) related to 
joint county-city buildings; and (iv) any other exceptions under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall 
be collected against all taxable property within the Urban Renewal Area without any limitation 
as hereinabove provided. 

Section 4. Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in the Urban 
Renewal Area exceeds the total assessed value of the taxable property in the Urban Renewal 
Area as shown by the assessment roll referred to in Section 2 of this Ordinance, all of the taxes 
levied and collected upon the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be paid into the 
funds for the respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner 
as all other property taxes. 

Section 5. At such time as the loans, advances, indebtedness, bonds and interest thereon 
of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, referred to in Section 3 hereof have been paid, all 
monies thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall 
be paid into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all other 
property. 

Section 6. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed.  The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and shall be 
construed so as to fully implement the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as 
amended, with respect to the division of taxes from property within the Urban Renewal Area as 
described above.  In the event that any provision of this Ordinance shall be determined to be 
contrary to law, it shall not affect other provisions or application of this Ordinance which shall at 
all times be construed to fully invoke the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa with 
reference to the Urban Renewal Area and the territory contained therein. 

Section 7. This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law. 

-33-

Item F.1. 



 

 -4-

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 2018. 
  

 
 
  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
City Clerk 

 

 
 
 
Read First Time: __ May 21  ___________, 2018  
 
 
Read Second Time: __June 4_____________, 2018  
 
 
Read Third Time: ___________________, 2018  
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED: ____________________, 2018. 
 

I, ____________________, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. __________ passed and 
approved by the City Council of the City at a meeting held ____________________, 2018, 
signed by the Mayor on ____________________, 2018, and published in the Waterloo-Cedar 
Falls Courier on ____________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 
01484032-1\10283-158 

-34-

Item F.1. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2927 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT AS 35 
MILES PER HOUR ON GREENHILL ROAD FROM HUDSON ROAD WEST TO 
WEST TWENTY SEVENTH STREET IN SUBSECTION 26-207(7) OF DIVISION 
5, SPEED, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF CHAPTER 26, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. Subsection 7, Thirty-five miles per hour, of Section 26-207, Speed limits 

enumerated, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, is hereby amended by adding the following unnumbered paragraph: 

 
Greenhill Road, from Hudson Road west and north to West 27th Street. 

 
 

 
INTRODUCED:     May 21, 2018______    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   May 21, 2018_____    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   June 4, 2018_______    
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
ADOPTED:      ____________    
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                             James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-35-

Item F.2. 



 



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

M E M O R A N D U M
Office of the Mayor

 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: June 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Appointment & Reappointments 

 

I am recommending the following appointment/reappointments: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Jeremy Rosel Art & Culture Board (replaces Gregory Angove) 07/01/2022 
Mary-Sue Bartlett Art & Culture Board (reappointment) 07/01/2022 
   
Susan Langan Human Rights Commission (reappointment) 07/01/2021 
Andrew Morse Human Rights Commission (reappointment) 07/01/2021 
Kei-Che Randle Human Rights Commission (reappointment) 07/01/2021 
Jeffrey Zaputil Human Rights Commission (reappointment) 07/01/2021 
   
David Sturch Metropolitan Bus Board (reappointment) 06/30/2021 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

 
 

-37-

Item G.1.a. 



 



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

The City of Cedar Falls appreciates your interest in serving the community and welcomes your application. 
Please complete all sections of this application. If you have any questions, please contact City Hall at (319) 
273-8600. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement. 

Name: ___________________________________________ Gender: ______ Date: __________________ 
      First                             MI                             Last     

Home Address: ______________________________________________   Phone:  __________________ 

Work Address: ______________________________________________    Phone: ___________________ 

Email Address: _______________________________________________   Cell: ____________________ 

Employer:  _______________________________   Position/Occupation: ___________________________  

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: _____________________________ Ward: ______________ 

NOMINEE FOR: _______________________________________________________ Board/Commission 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT:  Please describe your present and past community involvement including 
voluntary, social, city, church, school, business and professional that are applicable. (Include dates of 
involvement, and any offices or leadership positions held.) 

SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS:  Please list any special qualifications for serving on a board, including skills, 
training, licenses and certificates that are applicable. 

List reasons why you would like to be appointed and what contributions you believe you can make. 

Are you aware of any conflict of interest, or potential conflict of interest, that may prevent you from carrying 
out your responsibilities on this Board/Commission in the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls? If so, 
please describe. 

Please mail completed application to:  City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  
50613 or email to boards@cedarfalls.com.  

 Jeremy L Rosel                             Male                  6/4/2018

911 Lilac Lane, Cedar Falls. IA        641-529-6938

 205 Commons, University of Northern Iowa                         319-273-7111

jeremy.rosel@uni.edu                  641-529-6938

University of Northern Iowa Foundation         Asst. Dir. of Regional Development

7 years                                                                        5

Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board

Over the last seven years my community involvement has been centered around the UNI campus and the various student groups I 
have been a member of, now I help advise as full time staff. All of my off-campus volunteer work has been through the UNI Veterans 
Association or Kappa Sigma Fraternity which advocates and raises money for the annual JDRF walk, national Military Heroes 
campaign and local veteran groups. Through these organizations I have participated in Earth Day clean up events around the county, 
Special Olympics fundraisers and events to support local veteran causes. I was President of the UNIVA in 2014 and treasurer in 2016. 
I served as Vice President of our Kappa Sigma chapter in 2013 and currently serve as the staff treasurer for the UNIVA and alumni 
treasurer and advisor to the Kappa Sigma chapter.

I have first-hand knowledge of forming advisory boards and the daily work required at the University of Northern Iowa. Those 
include drafting the by-laws, having them reviewed and approved by senior university administrators, building initial budgets and 
setting board goals. Other skills include building marketing and branding policies to advertise to the surrounding community and 
state. 

I would like to be appointed because I firmly believe and enjoy serving my community. At the moment my community focuses on 
the University of Northern Iowa but expanding out into the Cedar Valley is something that I have been hoping to accomplish now 
that my time isn't occupied with graduate level classes. Although I am fairly new to the community I believe my professional 
relationships, passion to serve and drive to improve our community will be a benefit. 

I am not aware of any potential conflicts of interest at this time. 

-39-

Item G.1.a. 



City of Cedar Falls 

ART AND CULTURE BOARD 
Nominee’s Questionnaire 

1. Describe your interest in the Arts and past use of programs and facilities at the Hearst Center.

2. Do you have experience serving on boards for other agencies and organizations?  (Describe)

3. Fundraising for facilities, projects, and endowments is critical for this Board.  Do you have
experience and/or interest in this area?  (Describe)

4. Do you know that the Art and Culture Board is advisory in nature?  What do you see your role
will be if appointed?

5. What is your opinion of the Hearst Center and Cultural Arts Division?  Are there changes you
would like to see?  (Explain.)

________________________________ _________________________ 
Signature Date 

Because of my role on campus, my involvement and interest in the arts has been focused with the UNI Gallery of Art and the UNI 
Museum. My interest began back in high school and carried over into five years of military service that provided me the opportunity 
to explore a handful of historical locations. While stationed in DC I had the unique experience to visit our nation's museums and 
galleries, introducing me to the works of artists, composers and writers throughout our collective history. While serving overseas in 
Iraq I was actively aware of the historical significance of being in the Fertile Crescent - an experience I treasure today because of the 
added cultural value it has given me. As a student and now university staff my belief in the arts, the importance and preservation of 
our culture as a human race, rests in our ability to express who we are through the things we create, the music we enjoy and the 
literature we create. 

I currently serve on three boards and provide assistance to my hometown historical society board of directors. All three boards are 
UNI affiliated, two involve the arts: the Friends of the UNI Permanent Art Collection and Gallery (PACG) and the Friends of the 
Museum. With my hometown, Clear Lake, I offer my help to the historical society as a resource for fundraising and marketing. The 
distance and my work schedule prevents me from being a more active member. 

As the Assistant Director of Regional Development for the UNI Foundation I have two years of experience in fundraising for several 
different programs on campus. My most successful project is for the preservation of objects maintained by the UNI Gallery of Art. 
Through the creation of the Friends of the UNI Permanent Art Collection and Gallery Advisory Board we were able to reach our 
fundraising goal to qualify for matching support. Gifts were placed in a newly created quasi-endowment and made available for 
Darrell Taylor to preserve forty four pieces of art. Through the Friends of the Museum our current project would raise money for our 
endowment to provide scholarship money for students looking to study in the museum and the pieces they house in their collection. 

If I were appointed I see my role as an adviser to city administrators on how best to improve our community in terms of the art and 
culture we all can enjoy. Working as a team within the Art and Cultures Board I see myself working with the other appointed 
members using our collective experiences and skills to provide the city with our best suggestions and guidance to build a stronger 
community that values the arts and sets us as the standard across the state. 

Coming from a small town in northern Iowa that does not have a lot of well-known art centers or museums I feel lucky to have these 
options available to me now. Main street Cedar Falls is the envy of surrounding communities not only because of the shopping but also 
because of the art that dots the way, the historical significance along the river and the care that I see to preserve that atmosphere. If I had 
any recommendations on changes I would suggest the city move to expand beyond main street and out into some areas of town that 
seem to be void of art in general. We have several new roundabouts that could be ideal locations for objects. Parks, trails and growing 
shopping centers would also be interesting places to add pieces done by local artists or students looking to show off their skill. 

6/5/2018

-40-

Item G.1.a. 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

June 4, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 6:05 p.m. on June 4, 
2018, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland. Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Tom Nelson with the 
Waterloo Courier and other members of the community attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda of 
Water Quality Initiatives.  Sushil Tuladhar Stormwater Specialist reviewed the Best 
Management Practices for the Dry Run Creek watershed area.  It is a joint effort with 
the Black Hawk Soil & Water Conservation District and the City.  He explained the 
Interactive Web Mapping and gave the committee a demonstration of how it will work. 
He explained the purpose is to show locations of different practices and provide details 
of each of them, including pictures.  Mr. Tuladhar stated they are working on the next 
story map about Cedar Falls Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans.  He explained two 
students from the CAPS program constructed a bioretention cell model and the City has 
been using it at some educational outreach programs.  He reviewed educational 
outreach events for 2018.  Mayor Brown opened it for discussion.  Mr. Tuladhar 
answered questions with regards to water testing and improvements and maintenance 
of the bioretention cells.  He stated there is annual maintenance but it is minimal, such 
as replacement plantings.   

Mayor Brown introduced the second item on the agenda Streetscape Project Update.  
Stephanie Houk Sheetz Director of Community Development stated in July 2015 staff 
last updated the council on the downtown streetscape plan.  She explained it was 
integrated into the City’s Capital Improvements Project planning and we continue to 
work with Community Main Street on the details to implement the plan over the next five 
years.  She referred to the plan in the packet on locations of focus.  She also reviewed 
the different amenities to be incorporated.    Ms. Sheetz stated that Community Main 
Street will work on fundraising in support of the project.  She said the five year plan is 
estimated to cost $968,875.  Ms. Sheetz said city staff recommends continuing with the 
implementation of the streetscape project as outlined and authorizing staff to seek 
grants to support the project. Mayor Brown opened it for questions from the council.  
Ms. Sheetz stated they are reviewing the different types of brick to use on the Parkade.  
Mark Ripplinger director of Municipal Operations and Programs stated there was 
guidance 15 year ago for the type of ice melt products to use, but this information may 
have fallen by the wayside with the transition of new occupants of the stores.  David 
Wieland motioned for staff to continue with the implementation of the streetscape 
project as outlined and authorizing them to seek grants to support the project.  Daryl 
Kruse seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.  

Mayor Brown introduced the third item on the agenda FY19 Cash Management Report.  
Lisa Roeding Controller/City Treasurer reviewed the report prepared for the meeting.  
She stated this is the 30th year council has reviewed the cash management program.  
She stated earnings on our investments increase from 1.08% in FY17 to 1.88% in 

-41-

Item G.1.b. 



FY18.  She stated we continue to have more financial institutions bid on the investments 
and the rates are very competitive.     

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda bills and payroll.  Daryl Kruse 
moved to approve the bills as presented and Susan deBuhr seconded the motion. 

There being no further discussion Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:37 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-42-

Item G.1.b. 



 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
City Hall – Mayor’s Conference Room  

June 5, 2018 
 
 
The Administration Committee of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, convened 
in the Mayor’s Conference Room of City Hall at 4:07 p.m. on June 5, 2018, pursuant to law, 
the rules of said Committee and prior notice given each member. 

Committee Chairperson deBuhr called the meeting to order and announced the purpose of 
the Committee meeting as a hearing to discuss an employee grievance appeal. Committee 
members in attendance were Chairperson deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland and 
Green. 

It was moved by Green and seconded by Kruse to adjourn to closed session to hear an 
employee grievance appeal where records which are required or authorized by state or 
federal law to be kept confidential are likely to be discussed, pursuant to Iowa Code Section 
21.5(1)(a)(2017).  Upon call of the roll, the following named Committee members voted.  Aye: 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green.  Nay: None. Motion carried. 

The Administration Committee adjourned to Closed Session at 4:10 p.m. 

Chairperson deBuhr reconvened the Committee meeting to open session at 6:38 p.m. 

It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Darrah to deny the grievance appeal. Motion 
carried 4-2, with Green and Kruse voting nay. 

It was then moved by Wieland and seconded by Green to direct the City Attorney to draft a 
written decision of the Committee’s action within seven (7) days from the date of this hearing.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse to adjourn the meeting at 6:42 p.m.  Motion 
carried unanimously.  

-43-

Item G.1.c. 



 



-45-

Item G.1.d. 



-46-

Item G.1.d. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3148 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, June 12th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2018 
Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project. A total of three (3) bids were 
received, with Feldman Concrete the low bidder: 
 

 
Bid Total 

Feldman Concrete $122,877.68 
Lodge Construction, Inc. $143,607.13 
K Cunningham Construction Co., Inc. $162,644.76 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $136,429.38. Feldman Concrete of 
Dyersville, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $122,877.68, which is 9.9% 
below the Engineer's Estimate. Attached is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
As a result of the competitive bids, we recommend acceptance of the low bid from 
Feldman Concrete in the amount of $122,877.68. On July 9th, 2018, the Contract, 
Bonds and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
  
 

-47-

Item G.1.e. 



 



PROJECT BID TAB

PROJECT NAME: 2018 PUBLIC SIDEWALK AND PEDESTRIAN TRAIL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: SW - 000 - 3148

BID OPENING: June 12, 2018 (1) (2) (3)

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BID EST. UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.F. 2424.0 $1.75 $4,242.00 $1.75 $4,242.00 $2.50 $6,060.00 $3.55 $8,605.20

2 REMOVE PEDESTRIAN TRAIL., P.C.C. S.F. 6199.2 $2.00 $12,398.40 $1.75 $10,848.60 $2.50 $15,498.00 $2.55 $15,807.96

3 REMOVE DRIVEWAY, P.C.C. S.Y. 81.8 $6.00 $490.80 $9.00 $736.20 $20.00 $1,636.00 $13.10 $1,071.58

4 PLACE SIDEWALK, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.F. 5090.3 $4.75 $24,178.93 $4.75 $24,178.93 $3.75 $19,088.63 $5.80 $29,523.74

5 PLACE SIDEWALK, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH (PEDESTRIAN RAMPS) S.F. 965.4 $6.00 $5,792.40 $6.00 $5,792.40 $10.25 $9,895.35 $12.50 $12,067.50

6 PLACE DETECTABLE WARNING PANELS S.F. 164.0 $25.00 $4,100.00 $30.00 $4,920.00 $35.00 $5,740.00 $48.00 $7,872.00

7 PLACE PEDESTRIAN TRAIL., P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.F. 6199.2 $6.00 $37,195.20 $5.50 $34,095.60 $6.25 $38,745.00 $4.90 $30,376.08

8 PLACE DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. 80.4 $42.00 $3,376.80 $42.00 $3,376.80 $48.00 $3,859.20 $54.75 $4,401.90

9 EXCAVATION, SIDEWALK S.F. 6648.4 $1.50 $9,972.60 $1.25 $8,310.50 $1.75 $11,634.70 $1.25 $8,310.50

10 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. 140.70 $65.00 $9,145.50 $50.00 $7,035.00 $55.00 $7,738.50 $70.00 $9,849.00

11 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING S.F. 10549.0 $0.75 $7,911.75 $0.85 $8,966.65 $0.75 $7,911.75 $0.70 $7,384.30

12 VALVE ADJUSTMENT EACH 7.00 $175.00 $1,225.00 $125.00 $875.00 $500.00 $3,500.00 $250.00 $1,750.00

13 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT EACH 5.00 $200.00 $1,000.00 $200.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 $3,750.00 $575.00 $2,875.00

14 GRANULAR BACKFILL TONS 100.0 $25.00 $2,500.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 $45.00 $4,500.00

15 UNSTABLE MATERIAL, OVER EXCAVATION C.Y. 50.0 $18.00 $900.00 $20.00 $1,000.00 $21.00 $1,050.00 $65.00 $3,250.00

16 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

TOTAL $136,429.38 TOTAL $122,877.68 TOTAL $143,607.13 TOTAL $162,644.76

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

ENGINEERING DIVISION

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
Feldman Concrete Lodge Construciton Inc.

K. Cunningham 

Construciton Co., Inc.

-49-

Item
 G

.1.e. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  June 13, 2018 

Re:  Special Event Related Requests 

Police Operations has received the following special event related requests and 
recommends approval:  

(1) Street closures, Sturgis Falls Celebration, June 20-24, 2018. 
 

(2) Street closure, Hearthside Drive (neighborhood block party), June 30, 2018. 
 

(3) Street closure, Abraham Drive (neighborhood celebration), July 4, 2018. 

(4) Accel Triathlon, July 14, 2018. 

(5) Parking variance, Teacher Festival, July 26, 2018. 

-51-

Item G.1.f. 



 



-53-

Item G.1.f. 



-54-

Item G.1.f. 



-55-

Item G.1.f. 



-56-

Item G.1.f. 



-57-

Item G.1.f. 



-58-

Item G.1.f. 



-59-

Item G.1.f. 



-60-

Item G.1.f. 



-61-

Item G.1.f. 



-62-

Item G.1.f. 



-63-

Item G.1.f. 



-64-

Item G.1.f. 



-65-

Item G.1.f. 



-66-

Item G.1.f. 



-67-

Item G.1.f. 



-68-

Item G.1.f. 



-69-

Item G.1.f. 



-70-

Item G.1.f. 



-71-

Item G.1.f. 



-72-

Item G.1.f. 



-73-

Item G.1.f. 



-74-

Item G.1.f. 



-75-

Item G.1.f. 



-76-

Item G.1.f. 



-77-

Item G.1.f. 



-78-

Item G.1.f. 



-79-

Item G.1.f. 



-80-

Item G.1.f. 



-81-

Item G.1.f. 



-82-

Item G.1.f. 



-83-

Item G.1.g. 



-84-

Item G.1.g. 



-85-

Item G.1.g. 



-86-

Item G.1.g. 



-87-

Item G.1.g. 



-88-

Item G.1.g. 



-89-

Item G.1.g. 



-90-

Item G.1.g. 



-91-

Item G.1.g. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  June 14, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

 
(1) Hong Kong Chinese Restaurant, 6306 University Avenue, Special Class C 

liquor - renewal. 
(2) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
(3) NewAldaya Lifescapes, 7511 University Avenue, Class A liquor & outdoor service 

- renewal. 
(4) Mulligan's Brick Oven Grill & Pub, 205 East 18th Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service - renewal. 
(5) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(6) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - change 

in ownership. 
(7) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer – Carryout Wine – new (add –on) 
(8) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor 

service. (July 13-July 14, 2018) 
 

 

-93-

Item G.1.h. 



 



-95-

Item G.2.a. 



-96-

Item G.2.a. 



-97-

Item G.2.a. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     M E M O R A N D U M

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Brenda Balvanz, Personnel Specialist 

 DATE: June 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY19-21 Group Long-Term Disability Insurance Renewal and 
  May 1, 2018 Plan Amendments 
  
 
Attached is the City’s FY19-21 group Long-Term Disability (LTD) renewal letter from 
National Insurance Services, the coordinating carrier for this employee benefit that is 
administered by Madison National Life Insurance Company, Inc.   The City’s LTD rate will 
decrease from $0.37 to $0.33 per $100 of covered payroll and will be effective through 
June 30, 2021. Refer to the attached LTD renewal letter dated May 2018 for details.  
 
During the renewal process, National Insurance Services and benefits consultant Gallagher 
Benefits Services, Inc. recommended two zero-cost amendments to update the City’s plan. 
Attached is a page explaining various plan provisions and an updated Joinder Agreement 
for LTD insurance.   
 
The first amendment relates to the plan’s 180 day Elimination (waiting) Period before 
disability benefits become payable.  Effective May 1, 2018, the Cumulative Elimination 
Period increased from seven to 30 working days which is a reduced eligibility penalty to an 
employee. The increased Cumulative Elimination Period allows an eligible employee to 
partially work during the Elimination Period without being penalized or having to re-satisfy a 
new Elimination Period.  
 
The second amendment relates to the definition of disability.  Prior to May 1

st
, an employee 

was required to be totally disabled from their own occupation to be eligible for disability 
benefits.   The amendment changes the definition to “Zero Day”, which allows an eligible 
employee to qualify for benefits if his/her work earnings are less than 80% of their indexed 
pre-disability earnings, per the attached.  This would be helpful to an employee working  
part-time that would not otherwise qualify for benefits.   
 
If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact me at 268-5112 or Jennifer 
Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 
Attachments 

-99-

Item G.2.b. 



 



 

 

Corporate Headquarters  

250 South Executive Drive 

Suite 300 

Brookfield, WI 53005 

Indiana Office 

9100 Meridian Square 

50 East 91st Street 

Suite 315 

Indianapolis, IN 46240 

Michigan Offices 

310 East Michigan Avenue 

Suite 503 

Kalamazoo, MI 49007 

43120 Utica Road 

Suite 400 

Sterling Heights, MI 48314 

120 East Liberty 

Suite 220 

Ann Arbor, MI 48104 

Minnesota Office 

14852 Scenic Heights Road 

Suite 210 

Eden Prairie, MN 55344 

Nebraska Office 

9202 West Dodge Road 

Suite 302 

Omaha, NE 68114 

Pennsylvania Office 

375 Southpointe Blvd 
Suite 220 

Canonsburg, PA 15317 

 

May 2018 
 
Brenda Balvanz 
Personnel Specialist 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613-2783 
 
RE:  Insurance Renewal for City of Cedar Falls, Group # 026982 

Long-Term Disability, Madison National Life Insurance Company, Inc. 
Carrier Policy # 0377, NIS Policy # 2247 

 
Dear Ms. Balvanz: 
 
The Long-Term Disability Insurance renews July 1, 2018. After careful review of the current plan, 
Madison National Life Insurance Company, Inc. is adjusting the rates as follows:  
 
Long-Term Disability 
Class Title Current Rate Per  

$100 of Covered Payroll 
Renewal Rate Per  
$100 of Covered Payroll 

Impact 

All Classes $0.37 
 

$0.33 
 

Decrease 
 

 
These rates are guaranteed for 3 Years until July 1, 2021, assuming no changes to the current benefit 
structure. 
 
Plan adjustments as of 5/1/2018 include extending the Cumulative Elimination Period to 30 working days 
and changing the definition of disability to Zero Day. 
 
We believe our level of commitment to you is most evident in our ongoing efforts to secure both 
competitive pricing and extended rate guarantees. We truly appreciate your business and the opportunity 
to continue negotiating on your behalf. By signing below, you are acknowledging your reciprocal 3 Year 
commitment to National Insurance Services. 
 
Please complete the bottom portion and return a copy to National Insurance Services as indication of 
your acceptance of the renewal. Thank you for your continued business. Please do not hesitate to call 
me if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Megan McKown 
Account Representative 
 
cc: William Robinson 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
The July 1, 2018 renewal of Group Long-Term Disability Insurance as outlined above is accepted. 
 
 
___________________________________________________ ________________ 
Signature & Title        Date 

-101-

Item G.2.b. 



 



 

DEFINITIONS 

 

Indexed Predisability Earnings means your Predisability Earnings adjusted annually by the rate of increase in 

the CPI-W.  During the first year of Disability, Indexed Predisability Earnings are the same as the Predisability 

Earnings.  Thereafter, your Indexed Predisability Earnings are determined on each anniversary of your Disability 

using the above method.  The maximum adjustment in any year is 7%.   If the rate of the CPI-W decreases, your 

Indexed Predisability Earnings may reduce accordingly; however, such adjustments will never reduce your 

Indexed Predisability Earnings below the original amount. 

 

Work Earnings means your gross monthly earnings from work performed while Disabled. 

 

If you are paid in a lump sum or on a basis other than monthly, we will prorate your Work Earnings over the 

period of time to which they apply.  If no period of time is stated, we will use a reasonable one. 

 

In determining your Work Earnings, we: 

1. will use the financial accounting method you use for income tax purposes, if you use that method on a 

consistent basis; 

2. will not be limited to the taxable income you report to the Internal Revenue Service; 

3. may ignore expenses under section 179 of the IRC as a deduction from your gross earnings; 

4. may ignore depreciation as a deduction from your gross earnings; 

5. may adjust the financial information you give us in order to clearly reflect your Work Earnings. 

 

If we determine that your earnings vary substantially from month to month, we may determine Work Earnings by 

averaging your earnings over the most recent 12 month period. During the Own Occupation Period, you will no 

longer be Disabled when your average Work Earnings over the last 12 month period equal or exceed 80% of your 

Indexed Predisability Earnings, or when you are capable of earning 80% or more of your Indexed Predisability 

Earnings.  During the Any Occupation Period, you will no longer be Disabled when your average Work Earnings 

over the last 12 month period equal or exceed 80% of your Indexed Predisability Earnings, or when you are 

capable of earning 80% or more of your Indexed Predisability Earnings. 

 

DEFINITION OF DISABILITY 
 

A. Disability or Disabled means that during the Elimination Period and your Own Occupation Period you are, as 

a result of Physical Disease, Injury, Mental Disorder, Substance Abuse or Pregnancy, unable to perform one 

or more of the Material Duties of your Own Occupation, and, due to such inability, your Work Earnings are 

less than 80% of your Indexed Predisability Earnings, and you are incapable of earning 80% or more of your 

Indexed Predisability Earnings. 

 

 Your Work Earnings may be Deductible Income.  See the “LTD Benefit Calculation” and “Deductible 

Income” sections. 

 

B. After your Own Occupation Period ends, Disability and Disabled mean you are, as a result of Physical 

Disease, Injury, Mental Disorder, Substance Abuse or Pregnancy, unable to perform one or more of the 

Material Duties of Any Occupation, and, due to such inability, your Work Earnings are less than 80% of your 

Indexed Predisability Earnings, and you are incapable of earning 80% or more of your Indexed Predisability 

Earnings. 

 

 Your Work Earnings may be Deductible Income.  See the “LTD Benefit Calculation” and “Deductible 

Income” sections. 

 

C. Loss of License or Certification. For an Insured Person whose occupation requires a license, a restriction or 

loss of license does not, in itself, constitute a Disability.  

 

-103-

Item G.2.b. 



2 

D. Preventive Measures. Your inability to perform any of your Material Duties because of preventive treatments 

or other preventive measures does not, by itself, constitute a Disability. 

 

E. Your Own Occupation Period and Any Occupation Period are specified in the Schedule of Benefits. 
 

 

LTD BENEFIT CALCULATION 
 

A. Your monthly Gross LTD Benefit is equal to the lesser of your monthly Predisability Earnings times the 

LTD Benefit Percentage, or the Maximum Monthly Benefit. 

 

B. Your monthly LTD Benefit is calculated as follows: 

 

1. During the Work Incentive Period, Your LTD Benefit will be equal to your monthly Gross LTD Benefit 

minus monthly Deductible Income (subject to the Minimum Monthly Benefit); 

 

2. Upon expiration of the Work Incentive Period, your LTD Benefit will be calculated as follows (subject to 

the Minimum Monthly Benefit):(A ÷ B) x C, where: 

A = monthly Indexed Predisability Earnings minus Work Earnings for that same period. 

B = monthly Indexed Predisability Earnings. 

C = monthly Gross LTD Benefit minus monthly Deductible Income (exclusive of Work Earnings). 
 

 

DEDUCTIBLE INCOME – WORK EARNINGS 
 

Work Earnings will be considered Deductible Income as follows: 

a) During the First 12 months of Disability with Work Earnings (the “Work Incentive Period”), if the total 

amount of your Gross LTD Benefit plus the amount you receive from Work Earnings exceeds 100% of 

your Predisability Earnings, the amount in excess of 100% of your Predisability Earnings will be included 

in Deductible Income; 

 

b) Upon expiration of the Work Incentive Period, your Work Earnings will be offset as provided as stated 

above under LTD BENEFIT CALCULATION. 

 

 

-104-

Item G.2.b. 



 

City of Cedar Falls 

0377 

  Page 1 

NATIONAL INSURANCE SERVICES OF WISCONSIN INSURANCE TRUST  

JOINDER AGREEMENT FOR 

LONG-TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE 

 

City of Cedar Falls (the “Employer”) hereby requests application for participation in National 

Insurance Services of Wisconsin Insurance Trust (the “Trust”) for group long-term disability insurance 

benefits under a master group policy underwritten by Madison National Life Insurance Company, Inc. 

(the “Insurer”). The “Group Policy” means only the provisions of the master group policy that apply to 

the Employer, based upon the coverage requested under this Joinder Agreement. 

   

A. Administrative 

1. Employer: City of Cedar Falls 

  220 Clay Street 

  Cedar Falls, IA  50613-2783 

2. Plan Number: 0377 

3. Nature of Business: Government 

4. Frequency of Billing: Monthly 

5. Original Plan Effective Date: July 1, 1994 

6. Revised Joinder Effective Date: May 1, 2018 

 

B. Class and Benefit Summary 

 

Class Number: 01 02 

Eligible Class: Administrators All Other Eligible Employees 

Employer Premium 

Contribution: 

100% 100% 

Initial Premium Rate: 0.37% of covered payroll 0.37% of covered payroll 

Initial Premium Rate Guarantee: 2 months until July 1, 2018 2 months until July 1, 2018 

Elimination Period: 180 consecutive calendar days 180 consecutive calendar days 

Minimum Hourly Work 

Requirement: 

40 hours per week on a regular 

year-round basis unless serving 

in an acting capacity and 

provided with benefits in 

accordance with City policy 

40 hours per week on a regular 

year-round basis unless serving 

in an acting capacity and 

provided with benefits in 

accordance with City policy 

Waiting Period: None None 

Evidence of Insurability: Required for Late Enrollees, 

Increases and amounts 

exceeding the Guarantee Issue 

Required for Late Enrollees, 

Increases and amounts 

exceeding the Guarantee Issue 

New Employee Eligibility Date: First of month following 

completion of the Waiting 

Period 

First of month following 

completion of the Waiting 

Period 

-105-

Item G.2.b. 



 

City of Cedar Falls 

0377 

  Page 2 

Class Number: 01 02 

Eligible Class: Administrators All Other Eligible Employees 

Minimum Participation 

Required: 

100% 100% 

Leaves and Sabbaticals: Coverage with premium 

payment while on FMLA leave; 

Coverage with premium 

payment for up to 1 year while 

on Paid or Unpaid Sabbatical; 

Coverage with premium 

payment for up to 1 year while 

on Paid or Unpaid Leave 

Coverage with premium 

payment while on FMLA leave; 

Coverage with premium 

payment for up to 1 year while 

on Paid or Unpaid Sabbatical; 

Coverage with premium 

payment for up to 1 year while 

on Paid or Unpaid Leave 

Definition of Disability: Zero Day Zero Day 

Own Occupation Period: 24 months following the end of 

the Elimination Period 

24 months following the end of 

the Elimination Period 

Any Occupation Period: From the end of the Own 

Occupation Period to the end of 

the Maximum Benefit Period 

From the end of the Own 

Occupation Period to the end of 

the Maximum Benefit Period 

Cumulative Elimination Period: 30 Calendar Days 30 Calendar Days 

Recurrent Disability: 6 months 6 months 

Predisability Earnings: Base pay only Base pay only 

Maximum Monthly Covered 

Salary: 

$12,500 $10,000 

LTD Benefit Percentage: 90% for the first 6 months; 70% 

thereafter 

60% 

Maximum Monthly Benefit: $11,250 for the first 6 months; 

$8,750 thereafter 

$6,000 

Guarantee Issue: $11,250 for the first 6 months; 

$8,750 thereafter 

$6,000 

Minimum Monthly Benefit: $50 $50 

Work Incentive Period: First 12 months of Disability 

with Work Earnings 

First 12 months of Disability 

with Work Earnings 

LTD Benefit Calculation: Non-Standard - Non-Contract 

Day 

Non-Standard - Non-Contract 

Day 

Social Security Integration: Primary Only Primary Only 

Freeze Type: General Freeze General Freeze 

Mental Disorder Limitation: 24 Months Lifetime unless 

hospital confined 

24 Months Lifetime unless 

hospital confined 

-106-

Item G.2.b. 



 

City of Cedar Falls 

0377 

  Page 3 

Class Number: 01 02 

Eligible Class: Administrators All Other Eligible Employees 

Substance Abuse Limitation: Not Covered Not Covered 

Claim Payment Method: Monthly Monthly 

Lifestyle LTD Benefit: Included N/A 

Rehabilitation Benefit: Included Included 

Step Up to 85% Benefit: Included N/A 

 

Maximum Benefit Period: 

 

Age at 

Disablement 

Benefit  

Duration 

Before age 60 

The day before attaining 

the Social Security 

Normal Retirement Age as 

stated in the 1983 

Revision or any later 

revision of the United 

Stated Social Security Act 

60-64 
To the later of the above 

or 30 months 

65-67 18 months 

68-69 12 months 

70-71 9 months 

72 and over 6 months 
 

 

 

C. Payment of Premiums 

1. Premium Due Date. Premium is due on the 1st of the month to which coverage for such premium 

applies (e.g., premium for coverage in October would be due October 1st). 

 

2. The premium due on each Premium Due Date is the sum of the premiums for all Insured Persons 

under the Group Policy.  Premium rates for each Employer covered under the Group Policy are 

shown in the Employer’s Joinder Agreement. 

 

3. The Employer determines the amount, if any, of each Insured Person’s contribution toward the 

cost of insurance. 

 

4. Each premium is payable on or before its Premium Due Date directly to the Insurer at their home 

office. 

 

 

-107-

Item G.2.b. 



 

City of Cedar Falls 

0377 

  Page 4 

5. Premium is due for an Insured Person for each month in which such employee is covered under 

the Group Policy.  The Employer must notify the Insurer immediately whenever an employee 

becomes eligible or ceases to be eligible for coverage. Effective dates of coverage or termination 

dates which occur mid-month will be billed as follows: 

 

a) If the effective date of coverage is between the 1st of the month and 15th of the month, 

premium for an entire month will be due to the Insurer.  If the effective date of coverage is 

between the 16th of the month and the end of the month the Employer will be billed for the 

next full month of coverage.  The Insurer does not prorate premium. 

 

b) If the date coverage ends is between the 1st of the month and the 15th of the month, no 

premium will be due for that month.  If the date of termination is between the 16th of the 

month and the end of the month the Employer will be responsible for an entire month’s 

premium. 

 

6. All premiums will be based upon information provided by the Employer in the Census Reports. 

 

D. Changes in Premium Rates. 

 

1. Special Circumstances. The Insurer may change premium rates, to be effective on the next 

Premium Due Date, if any of the following occur: 

a) A change or clarification in a law or governmental regulation affects the amount payable 

under the Group Policy.  Any such change in premium rates will reflect only the change in the 

Insurer’s obligations. 

b) One or more changes occur in the factors material to the underwriting risk the Insurer 

assumed under the Group Policy with respect to the Employer, including, but not limited to, 

the number of persons insured, age, Predisability Earnings, gender and occupational 

classification. 

c) The premium contribution arrangement for insured employees changes or varies from that 

stated in the Employer’s Joinder Agreement when issued or last renewed. 

d) Plan design changes are requested by the Employer. 

e) The Insurer and the Employer mutually agree to change premium rates. 

  

2. In all other cases, and subject to a period for which the Insurer has provided the Employer with a 

written rate guarantee, the Insurer may change premium rates upon 90 days advance written 

notice to the Employer.  Any such change in premium rates may be made effective on any 

Premium Due Date, but no such change will be made more than once in any Contract Year.  

Contract Years means successive 12-month periods computed from the end of the initial rate 

guarantee period, or from a time agreed to in writing by the Employer and Insurer. 

 

E. Premium Adjustments. Premium adjustments involving a return of unearned premiums to an 

Employer will be limited to the 12 months just before the date the Insurer receives a request for 

premium adjustment. 

 

 

 

 

 

-108-

Item G.2.b. 



 

City of Cedar Falls 

0377 

  Page 5 

F. Information Required from Employer 

1. The Employer will furnish all information reasonably necessary to administer the Group Policy, 

including but not limited to the following:  

a) At least one Census Report during each plan year, no later than six months prior to the next 

plan renewal date. The Census Report means a written report providing the following 

information for each Employee insured under the Group Policy: name, social security 

number, date of birth, gender, occupational class, annual Pre-disability Earnings as defined 

under the Group Policy and the amount of coverage. 

b) A list of all eligible employees and documentation supporting employee eligibility under the 

Group Policy. 

c) Information about employees who become eligible, whose amounts of coverage change 

and/or whose coverage ends. 

d) Occupational information and any other information that may be required to manage a claim. 

e) Notification of an Employer’s change in legal status, expansion of business, dissolution, 

merger, buyout or any other significant business operational change. 

f) Notice of any additional eligible employee segment(s). 

g) Any other information that may be reasonably required. 

 

2. The Employer must provide such information to the Insurer or its agents in a regular and timely 

manner as may be reasonably specified by the Insurer and/or its agents. The Insurer and its agents 

have the right at all reasonable times to inspect the payroll and other records of the Employer 

which relate to insurance under the Group Policy. 

 

G. Grace Period and Termination for Nonpayment 

 

1. If a premium is not paid on or before its Premium Due Date, it may be paid during the Grace 

Period.  The coverage under the Group Policy will remain in force during the Grace Period. 

 

2. Grace Period means the 31 days following the Premium Due Date. 

 

3. If the premium for coverage is not paid during the Grace Period, the coverage under the Group 

Policy will terminate automatically at the end of the Grace Period. 

 

4. The Employer is liable for premium for coverage during the Grace Period. The Insurer may 

charge interest at the legal rate for any premium which is not paid during the Grace Period, 

beginning with the first day after the Grace Period.  

 

H. Termination for Other Reasons 

1. The Policyowner may terminate the Group Policy and the Employer may terminate coverage 

under the Group Policy by giving the Insurer at least 60 days written notice.  The effective date of 

termination will be the later of: 

a) The date stated in the notice; or 

b) The Premium Due Date immediately following date the Insurer receives the notice. 

 

2. The Insurer may terminate coverage under the Group Policy as follows: 

a) On any Premium Due Date if the number of persons insured is less than the minimum 

participation number or less than the minimum participation percentage provided for under 

Employer’s Joinder Agreement. 

-109-

Item G.2.b. 



 

City of Cedar Falls 

0377 

  Page 6 

b) On any Premium Due Date if the Insurer determines that the Employer has failed to promptly 

furnish any necessary information requested or has failed to perform any other obligations 

relating to the Group Policy or coverage under the Group Policy. 

c) On any Premium Due Date by giving the Employer at least 60 days advance written notice. 

d) On the date the Employer breaches any part of the Entire Contract. 

 

I. Certificates. The Insurer will prepare Group Long Term Disability Certificates of Coverage setting 

forth the main features of the Group Policy applicable to each Insured Person.  The Insurer and 

Employer may agree to distribute the Certificates to Insured Persons in paper format, or to make the 

document available and accessible for review by Insured Persons on the Employer’s website. The 

Employer will be responsible for providing sufficient notice to the Insured Person of the existence and 

availability of the Certificate, including instructions on how to view the document, and a statement 

that a paper copy of the document will be made available upon request. Upon receiving such a request 

from either the Employer or Insured Person, the Insurer will provide a written copy of the Certificate 

to the Employer for distribution to the Insured Person.  If the terms of the Certificate of Coverage 

differ from the terms of the Employer’s coverage under the Group Policy, the latter will govern. 

 

J. Agency and Release. Individuals selected by the Employer to secure coverage under the Group Policy 

or to perform their administrative function under it, represent and act on behalf of the person selecting 

them and do not represent or act on behalf of Madison National Life Insurance Company.  The 

Policyowner, Employer and such individuals have no authority to alter, expand or extend the Insurer’s 

liability or to waive, modify or compromise any defense or right the Insurer may have under the 

Group Policy.  The Policyowner and Employer hereby release, hold harmless and indemnify Madison 

National Life Insurance Company from any liability arising from or related to any negligence, error, 

omission, misrepresentation or dishonesty of the Policyowner or Employer respectively, or any of 

their respective representatives, agents or employees. 

  

K. Notice of Suit. The Policyowner and Employer shall promptly give the Insurer written notice of any 

lawsuit or other legal proceedings arising under the Group Policy. 

 

L. Entire Contract and Changes 

1. The Group Policy, the Group Long Term Disability Insurance Certificate of Coverage, the 

Employer Joinder Agreement, the applications of the Policyowner, Employers and employees and 

any applicable riders, addenda and/or amendments constitute the Entire Contract.  

 

2. The Group Policy may be changed in whole or in part.  No change in the Group Policy will be 

valid unless it is approved in writing by one of the Insurer’s executive officers and given to the 

Policyowner for attachment to the Group Policy.  No change in an Employer’s coverage under the 

Group Policy will be valid unless it is approved in writing by one of the Insurer’s executive 

officers and given to the Employer for attachment to their Joinder Agreement.  No agent has 

authority to change the Group Policy or an Employer’s coverage under the Group Policy or to 

waive any provisions thereof. 

 

M. Effect on Workers’ Compensation, State Disability Insurance. The coverage provided under the 

Group Policy is not a substitute for coverage under a Workers’ Compensation or state disability 

income benefit law and does not relieve the Employer of any obligation to provide such coverage. 

 

-110-

Item G.2.b. 



 

City of Cedar Falls 

0377 

  Page 7 

N. The undersigned Employer adopts and agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of National 

Insurance Services of Wisconsin Insurance Trust Trust Agreement, as amended from time to time (the 

“Trust Agreement”) and master group policy. Copies of these documents are available for employer 

review at Madison National Life Insurance Company, 1241 John Q. Hammons Drive, Madison, WI 

53717. 

 

O. The Trust is a vehicle for obtaining group insurance plans in which employers join together as a 

single policyholder for the purchase and maintenance of group insurance policies. 

 

P. The Trust's Administrator shall provide participating employers the necessary information for 

applicable State and Federal compliance reporting requirements. 

 

Q. The signatures below constitute acceptance of the undersigned employer as a participating member of 

the Trust. 

 

 

Signed into effect this _______ day of ________________________, 20____. 

 

 

 

              

Signature of Authorized Employee of Employer Printed Name & Title of Authorized  

 Employee 

 

 

 

              

Signature of Authorized Employee of Employer Printed Name & Title of Authorized  

 Employee 

 

Administrator: 

National Insurance Services of Wisconsin, Inc. 

 

By:    

Bruce A. Miller, President 

 May 18, 2018 

 

-111-

Item G.2.b. 



 

[FORM_NUMBER]  
-112-

Item G.2.b. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     M E M O R A N D U M

Finance Division

   DEPARTMENT OF  

 

 

  

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Brenda Balvanz, Personnel Specialist 

 DATE: June 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY19-20 Group Life/Accidental Death &Dismemberment Renewal 

 
Attached is the City’s FY19-20 group life/accidental death & dismemberment insurance 
renewal summary from The Standard, the City’s carrier for this employee benefit.  The 
attached rates will be effective through June 30, 2020 and have remained the same 
since July 1, 2012. 
 
If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact me at 268-5112 or 
Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 
 
Attachment 

-113-

Item G.2.c. 



 



City of Cedar Falls
2018 Renewal Summary

Policy 151806

Thank you for choosing Standard Insurance Company (The Standard) as your employee benefits partner
since July 1, 2010. We appreciate your business and the opportunity to renew our commitment. We strive
to provide City of Cedar Falls and your employees outstanding value, expertise and personal service.

As always, our goal is to help you take care of your business and your employees. Our team remains
committed to helping you achieve strategic goals for your benefits program, streamline administration and
increase employee satisfaction. In short — better results with less noise. Thank you again for your
continued business.

Our Approach to Renewals — Continued Partnership

The renewal rates for your Group Life insurance will be effective July 1, 2018.

For your renewal, we utilized manual rates to determine the appropriate rate for renewal. Our manual
rates use the demographics of your employees to determine the appropriate rates. Factors such as
gender, age, salary, occupation and plan design contribute to determining the manual rate.

Please consider this renewal package the next step in our ongoing conversation about how we can best
meet your needs. We may be able to work together to help you get more value out of your benefits
program or reduce overall costs. We’d be happy to re-evaluate your plan design and benefits usage and
discuss your options.

Your Basic Life Renewal

We understand that handling a Life insurance claim takes a special touch. Our Life benefits analysts
complete annual grief training. This program helps them empathize with beneficiaries and recognize
when they need special attention. We strive to help you make a tough time easier. Our goal is to provide
support with easy claim filing, timely decisions, and prompt payment of approved claims.

Census Demographics for Basic Life

Categories Prior Calculation Current Calculation Change

Female Lives 45 47 2

Male Lives 165 160 -5

Benefit Volume $10,542,500 $11,217,000 $674,500

% Benefit Volume Age 50 + 48% 49% 1%

-115-

Item G.2.c. 



Based on our thorough analysis, we’re offering the renewal rate[s] listed below.

Renewal Date Current Rate * Renewal Rate * Monthly Premium
Change **

July 1, 2018 $0.245 $0.245 $0

* Rate mode is Per $1000 of Benefit

** Final premium change will be determined based on your group’s composition at billing time

Rate will be guaranteed for 2 years until July 1, 2020.

The Standard is committed to helping you provide employees and their beneficiaries with the support they
need. Below is a reminder of the additional services and tools offered with your Life plan.

The Life Services Toolkit

For employees, online services include estate planning and state-specific will preparation, identity theft
prevention, financial calculators, wellness resources and more. For beneficiaries, the Life Services Toolkit
offers grief and loss support by phone, online and face-to-face. They can also take advantage of access
to financial counselors, legal consultation and other support services. This service is offered through a
vendor that is not affiliated with The Standard.

Travel Assistance

Travel Assistance can provide a sense of security for your employees and their eligible family members
anytime they travel from home or internationally for business or pleasure with minimal restrictions.
Available 24 hours a day — with access online or through a single phone call — Travel Assistance offers
a full range of trip planning and travel support, including emergency evacuation services, 24-hour nurse
hotline and referrals to medical, legal and translation services. This service is offered through a vendor
that is not affiliated with The Standard.

Thank You and Next Steps

We appreciate the opportunity to continue our partnership with City of Cedar Falls.

A summary of our Renewal Offer is in the chart below. Thank you for allowing Standard Insurance
Company the opportunity to support your insurance needs.

Product & Services * Through 06/30/18 Effective 07/01/18

Basic Life $0.245 Per $1000 of Benefit $0.245 Per $1000 of Benefit

Basic AD&D $0.035 Per $1000 of Benefit $0.035 Per $1000 of Benefit

* The above shown rates are monthly

You can count on us to help you retain and attract employees by providing the benefits and services they
value – now and for years to come. We’re always available to address any questions you have about this
renewal or for any service needs. Please reach out to the Denver group office at (303) 759-8702 and we’ll
be happy to help.

-116-

Item G.2.c. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Brenda Balvanz, Personnel Specialist 

 DATE:  June 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY19 Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield Health Plan                             
                         Administrative Services Agreement   
 

Attached for your approval is the health plan Administrative Services Agreement for FY19 
from Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield.   If you have questions regarding the attached, 
please contact Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 
Attachment 
 

-117-

Item G.2.d. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Agreement Effective Date:  July 1, 2018 
 
Form Number: IA WBCBSSD LG SF – Custom 6/14/2018 Version: 10/17 
 

 
 
 

A D M I N I S T R A T I V E  S E R V I C E S  A G R E E M E N T  
 
 
 
 
 

WELLMARK BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD 
 
 

and 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
 

-119-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 1 Version: 10/17 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into effective as of the first day of July 2018, ("Effective Date") by and between Wellmark of South 
Dakota, Inc., doing business as Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota, an 
insurance company authorized to administer self-funded group health plans in Iowa,  (herein 
“Wellmark”), and City of Cedar Falls (herein “Account”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
1. Account is the plan sponsor of a self-funded group health plan within the meaning of and 

in accordance with applicable federal or state law for its common law employees and other 
eligible individuals and this Agreement is issued to Account as the "group policyholder". 

 
2. The group health plan is sponsored and funded by Account. Account wishes to enter into 

a financial arrangement with Wellmark under which Account is solely responsible for the 
Claims Paid for Covered Services provided to its Members. Wellmark does not assume 
any financial risk or obligation with respect to the Claims Paid for Covered Services 
provided to Members of the Plan. 

 
3. Account desires that Wellmark provide administrative services for its self-funded group 

health plan and Wellmark agrees to provide such services subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth herein. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1  
AGREEMENT DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1 “Accountable Care Organization” or “ACO” means a group of health care providers who 

agree to deliver coordinated care and meet performance benchmarks for quality and 
affordability to manage the total cost of care for their member populations. 

 
1.2 “Administrative Fee” means an amount or amounts per Plan Member that Wellmark 

charges the Account for Administrative Services and which includes allocations for 
Wellmark’s cost of administering the Plan, general operating costs, and profit margin. The 
monthly Administrative Fee is shown on Exhibit “A”, Administrative Fees, Network 
Access Fees, Other Fees, attached to this Agreement and incorporated by this reference. 

 
1.3 “Administrative Services” means those services to be performed by Wellmark for 

Account or the Plan under this Agreement, as described in Article 3 of this Agreement. 
Administrative Services expressly exclude any services for the administration of continued 
health coverage pursuant to COBRA or any state or federal law relating to continuation 
coverage of the Plan, except as may be specified in a COBRA Administrative Services 
Agreement or Addendum. 

 
1.4 “Affordable Care Act” or “ACA” means the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, 

enacted March 23, 2010, and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act, as 
amended, (collectively, “ACA”), including implementing regulations. 

 

-120-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 2 Version: 10/17 

1.5 “Agreement” means this Administrative Services Agreement, including all Exhibits, 
Benefits Document(s), amendments, Plan Member enrollment form(s), Medical 
Management and Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit, and any COBRA Administrative 
Services Agreement or Addendum. This Agreement also incorporates by this reference 
the terms of the HIPAA Business Associate Agreement entered into between Wellmark 
and the Plan. 

 
1.6 “Amounts Not Covered” means the amounts that are the liability of the Member under 

the Plan. These include charges for services that are not covered by the Plan, charges for 
services that are determined to be not medically necessary, reductions in benefits for 
failure to follow notification requirements, and charges for services that have reached a 
Plan maximum. Amounts Not Covered does not include amounts that are the responsibility 
of a health care provider under a provider’s contract with Wellmark. 

 
1.7 “Benefits Document” means the written document(s) made available to Members that 

describe and define the terms, benefits, and limitations of the Plan and may be titled 
Benefits Certificate, Coverage Manual, or something similar. Account may at its option 
incorporate the Benefits Document into its ERISA Summary Plan Description (SPD).  

 
1.8 “Care Coordinator Fee” means a fixed amount paid by a Host Blue to providers 

periodically for Care Coordination under a Value-Based Program. “Care Coordination” is 
organized, information-driven patient care activities intended to facilitate the appropriate 
responses to a Member’s health care needs across the continuum of care. 

 
1.9 “Claims Paid” means the dollar amount of Wellmark’s payment on behalf of the Account 

for Incurred Claims. 
 
1.10 “COBRA” means the group health coverage continuation provisions of the Consolidated 

Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, including implementing 
regulations and similar state or federal laws. 

 
1.11 “Confidential Information” means all non-public confidential or proprietary information, 

in any form, delivered or made available (whether pursuant to this Agreement or 
otherwise) by one party or its affiliates, directors, officers, employees and agents (the 
“Disclosing Party”) to the other party, its affiliates, directors, officers, employees and 
agents (the “Receiving Party”). Confidential Information shall include, but not be limited 
to, employee, Plan Member, and Member information (including names, addresses and 
Social Security numbers), Protected Health Information, personally identifiable 
information, medical records, Plan claims data, and payment data. Any information with 
respect to Wellmark’s systems, procedures, methodologies and practices used by it in 
connection with claims processing, claims payment or utilization management, together 
with the fees, terms, payment arrangements, discounts with providers, and related 
information shall be deemed to be Wellmark Confidential Information. Confidential 
Information shall not include information which (a), at the time of disclosure, is available 
to the general public; (b) becomes at a later date available to the general public through 
no fault of Receiving Party and then only after such later date; (c) Receiving Party can 
demonstrate was in its possession before receipt from Disclosing Party; (d) Receiving 
Party can demonstrate was independently developed; or (e) is disclosed to Receiving 
Party without restriction on disclosure by a third party who has the lawful right to disclose 
such information. 

 

-121-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 3 Version: 10/17 

1.12 “Covered Charges” means the dollar amount a health care provider bills a Member or 
Wellmark for Covered Services in accordance with the terms of the Benefits Document. 

 
1.13 “Covered Services” means the medically necessary health care services provided to a 

Member as described in and covered by the applicable Benefits Document. 
 
1.14 “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, 

including implementing regulations. 
 
1.15 “Global Payment/Total Cost of Care” means a payment methodology that is defined at 

the patient level and accounts for either all patient care or for a specific group of services 
delivered to the patient such as outpatient, physician, ancillary, hospital services, and 
prescription drugs. 

 
1.16 “Grandfathered Health Plan or Non-Grandfathered Health Plan” mean the same as 

such terms are used in ACA. 
 
1.17 “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as 

amended, including implementing regulations. 
 
1.18 “Host Blue” means the local Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield plan or licensee in a 

geographic area outside of the Wellmark service area. 
 
1.19 “Incurred Claims” means claims for payment of health care services that are provided to 

Members pursuant to the Plan with a date of service during the Rating Period. 
 
1.20 “Incurred Date” means the date health care services are provided to Members. With 

regard to inpatient hospital or facility services, the date of the Member's admission to the 
facility is considered as the Incurred Date. 

 
1.21 “Maximum Allowable Fee” means a dollar amount Wellmark establishes using various 

methodologies for Covered Services and supplies. For medical services, this amount is 
developed from various sources, such as charges billed for the same service or supply by 
most health care providers within Iowa, economic indicators, or relative value indices 
developed or approved by Wellmark, and is based on the simplicity or complexity of the 
service provided. For medical services received outside of Iowa or South Dakota, the 
Maximum Allowable Fee is either determined in accordance with the section of this 
Agreement entitled Out-of-Area Services or is the amount as described in the preceding 
sentence. 

 
For all dental procedures covered under this Agreement, the fee schedule is developed 
based on Wellmark’s contracts with dentists, input from its dental consultants, and the 
charges billed for the same procedure by dentists in Iowa. 

 
1.22 “Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Enrollee” means a 

person, including a Plan Member’s spouse or eligible dependent children, eligible and 
enrolled to receive Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services under the 
Plan as determined by Account, but who is not otherwise enrolled in the Plan. 

 
1.23 “Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services” means health 

management and wellness services Wellmark may provide to Members designed to 

-122-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 4 Version: 10/17 

encourage good health and help them make decisions about health care. These services 
may include, but are not limited to, BeWell 24/7, condition support, pregnancy support, 
advanced care management, or other programs. 

 
1.24 “Member” means a person, including a Plan Member’s spouse or eligible dependent 

children, who is eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the terms of the Plan 
as determined and identified by Account. 

 
1.25 “Network Access Fee” means the amount charged to Account to gain the collective 

advantages of the network of providers with which Wellmark, a Host Blue, or any 
subcontractor of either, has contracted for the provision of Covered Services. The fee is a 
monthly amount as shown on Exhibit “A”, and may include funding for provider incentives. 
If the Network Access Fee is expressed as a percentage of Network Savings as shown 
on Exhibit “A”, the fee applies to Incurred Claims regardless of the date the claim is paid. 
A portion of the Network Access Fee may include an allocation for administrative 
expenses above the Administrative Fee. 

 
1.26 “Network Savings” means the amount saved due to payment arrangements between 

Wellmark or a Host Blue and health care providers. It is generally calculated as the 
difference between the Covered Charge and the Maximum Allowable Fee. This result is 
then added to any other reductions in the liability to a provider pursuant to a contract 
between Wellmark and the provider, including, but not limited to, reductions for failure to 
satisfy any notification requirements and medical necessity determinations. If the amount 
paid to a provider on any claim exceeds the Covered Charges, the Network Savings may 
be reflected as a negative dollar amount on Account’s bill. 

 
1.27 “Patient-Centered Medical Home” or “PCMH” means a model of care in which each 

patient has an ongoing relationship with a primary care physician who coordinates a team 
to take collective responsibility for patient care and, when appropriate, arranges for care 
with other qualified physicians. 

 
1.28 “Plan” means the group health plan or plans established, sponsored and maintained by 

Account, the terms of which are described in the applicable Benefits Document. 
 
1.29 “Plan Member” means a common law employee or other individual identified by Account 

as a person eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the Plan subject to the 
terms, conditions, and limitations described in the Plan documents and who is the 
applicant on a completed enrollment form that has been provided to and accepted by 
Wellmark. 

 
1.30 “Plan Year” means the year designated by the plan sponsor as the plan year in the plan 

document or as set forth on Exhibit “A”. 
 
1.31 “Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means the same as the term “protected health 

information” in 45 CFR §160.103. 
 
1.32 “Provider Incentive” means an additional amount of compensation paid to a health care 

provider, based on the provider’s compliance with agreed-upon procedural and/or 
outcome measures for a particular population of covered persons. 

 

-123-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 5 Version: 10/17 

1.33 “Rating Period” means the period of time set forth on Exhibit “A” or the most recent 
revision to Exhibit “A”. 

 
1.34 “Shared Savings” means a payment mechanism in which the provider and payer share 

cost savings achieved against a target cost budget based upon agreed upon terms and 
may include downside risk. 

 
1.35 “Telehealth Services” means the Covered Services provided to a Member during a 

telehealth visit, or virtual visit. A “telehealth visit” is an actual real time video interaction 
between a health care provider and a Member in the geographic area served by Wellmark 
when an evaluation and management like service is provided. 

 
1.36 “Value-Based Program” means an outcomes-based payment arrangement and/or a 

coordinated care model facilitated with one or more local providers that is evaluated 
against cost and quality metrics/factors and is reflected in provider payment. 

 
ARTICLE 2  

RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACCOUNT 
 
2.1 Group Health Plan Compliance. Account is the plan administrator and plan sponsor of 

the Plan for purposes of this Agreement and applicable law, and is responsible for group 
health plan design and compliance. Account will exercise its responsibilities in the time 
required by law and has full responsibility for all of the following: 

 
a. Maintaining the Plan, determining Plan design, and funding payment of Incurred 

Claims; 
 

b. Determining eligibility criteria for Members subject to certain Wellmark enrollment 
and underwriting guidelines, including the requirements for locations or Members 
located outside of Iowa; Account is responsible for enrolling and canceling 
individuals in the Plan in accordance with such criteria and agrees to terminate 
coverage for ineligible individuals; 

 
c. Designating the Plan Year for the Plan; 

 
d. Complying with all applicable laws, reporting and disclosure requirements, 

including specifically, (i) preparing and furnishing Members with Plan documents 
or notices as may be required by law, including the summary of benefits and 
coverage (“SBC”), any notice of material modification, employer notice of the 
availability of coverage options under the health insurance marketplace, and 
applicable HIPAA notices relating to health coverage portability such as the 
Special Enrollment Notice. Account will also make available to Members on 
request the uniform glossary of insurance-related terms; (ii) complying with any 
applicable non-discrimination laws; and (iii) furnishing any notices and 
requirements with regard to COBRA continuation coverage. Account's 
responsibilities for COBRA administration requirements may be delegated to 
Wellmark, but only to the extent expressly specified and agreed upon with 
Wellmark in a COBRA Administrative Services Agreement or Addendum;  

 
e. Reviewing and approving promptly templates or drafts of Benefits Document(s) 

provided by Wellmark, and delivering or making available Benefits Document(s), 

-124-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 6 Version: 10/17 

and Provider directories if applicable, to Plan Members. Based on the eligibility and 
benefit information Account provides, Wellmark will draft written Benefits 
Document(s) stating the benefits, terms and conditions of the Plan. Account is 
responsible for reviewing the draft Benefits Document(s) promptly, typically within 
thirty (30) days of receiving the draft document(s), and determining to Account’s 
satisfaction that the document(s) meet all of Account’s legal and business 
obligations and advising Wellmark of any necessary revisions or approval. The 
absence of Account’s express timely approval of any Benefits Documents provided 
by Wellmark will be considered Account’s approval that the draft documents are 
consistent with benefit information provided by Account, and Wellmark will 
administer the benefits in accordance with the proposed documents; 

 
f. Making final determinations regarding claims, claims internal appeals, or claims 

exceptions, except to the extent expressly delegated to, and accepted by, 
Wellmark in Sections 3.1 and 3.7 of this Agreement; 

 
g. Providing to Wellmark written notice of benefit selections, limitations, and 

exclusions, changes in the benefits at renewal, or material modifications at any 
time during the Rating Period. Account shall provide such notice(s) in the time and 
manner required by Wellmark to fulfill the issuance of SBCs, preparation of 
Benefits Document templates, or the issuance of other required notices within the 
time required by law; 

 
h. If the coverage of any Plan Member or Member is terminated retroactively, Account 

represents that it either has not collected any premium contribution from the 
retroactively terminated Member, or has refunded any premium contribution to the 
retroactively terminated Member, for the period following the effective date of the 
termination; 

 
i. Payment of any state premium tax, use tax, or similar tax, or any similar benefit or 

Plan-related charge, tax, surcharge or assessment, however denominated, that 
may be assessed on the Plan or related to the administration of the Plan, including 
any penalties and interest payable with respect thereto; 

 
j. Compliance with any income and employment tax withholding, depositing, and 

reporting obligations (including state or federal income tax withholding, FICA tax 
withholding, employer, FUTA taxes, and Form W-2 wage reporting) applicable to 
rewards incentives or value-added benefits that may be provided under this 
employer-sponsored group health plan to Members covered under the Plan. 
Account is responsible for including the value of any such incentives or value-
added benefits as reported by Wellmark to Account in the applicable employees’ 
wages for federal or state income tax, employment tax, and Form W-2 reporting 
purposes; 

 
k. Account shall maintain a process for external review of final internal adverse 

benefit determinations as required by ACA, except to the extent expressly 
delegated to, and accepted by, Wellmark in this Agreement; and 

 
l. Calculating, reporting, and payment of any fees and assessments, however 

denominated, required for all group health plans under ACA, including specifically, 
the per Member Patient-Centered Outcomes Research fees. 

-125-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 7 Version: 10/17 

 
2.2 Enrollment Information; Social Security Number Reporting; Information 

Requirements. Account agrees to furnish Wellmark with reports, data, and information, 
including but not limited to, eligibility, enrollment information, physical home address, and 
Social Security number for each Member or Medical Management and Well-being 
Consulting Services Enrollee, benefit selection or benefit changes for the Plan, claims 
history, and information necessary for the administration of the Plan. Account shall provide 
all such information in a time, form, format, and manner required by Wellmark and is 
responsible for the timeliness, integrity, retention, and accuracy of information and records 
provided to Wellmark. Wellmark shall be entitled to rely upon such information in 
determining any person’s rights to benefits under the Plan, in making required filings with 
state or federal government agencies, and in discharging its responsibilities under this 
Agreement. Account recognizes the importance to the successful provision of the 
Administrative Services the timely, accurate, and complete reporting of the information set 
forth in this section and that should reporting be inaccurate, untimely, or incomplete, 
Wellmark shall not be responsible for the provision of the Administrative Services affected 
by such inaccuracy or delay. 

 
Eligibility or enrollment information shall be provided to Wellmark in a standard medium 
and layout using Wellmark’s proprietary format, the HIPAA ANSI 834 standard format, or 
an application such as BluesEnroll, unless the parties agree in writing to a non-standard 
format or application. Account acknowledges that it may be responsible for additional fees 
if it uses a non-standard format or if Wellmark is required to perform a comparison study 
of the full eligibility file. 

 
2.3 Account Representation regarding Eligibility; Notice of Persons Eligible for 

Coverage; Changes in Eligibility. Account represents to Wellmark that the terms of any 
eligibility criteria, conditions, and/or waiting period imposed under the Plan are, and shall 
be for so long as this Agreement is in effect, in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations, including specifically, the prohibition on excessive waiting periods and 
applicable provisions on non-discrimination. Account shall enroll persons eligible for 
coverage in the Plan in advance of each person’s effective date of coverage and shall 
provide Wellmark with each person’s name, Plan selection, Social Security number, and 
other required identifying information. Account shall provide all initial enrollment 
information in advance of the Effective Date of this Agreement. As new persons become 
eligible, or as eligibility changes occur, including any special enrollment events that require 
a person to be offered coverage or changed to a different enrollment status such as 
COBRA, Account shall provide Wellmark with updated required information as such 
changes occur. Account shall provide Wellmark with enrollment updates no less often than 
weekly and in advance of the effective date of the change if possible. Account's delay in 
providing eligibility changes more than three (3) months following the effective date of the 
change shall delay the requested effective date of coverage for the person and may cause 
Incurred Claims not to be paid. 

 
2.4 Notice of Persons Terminated or No Longer Eligible for Coverage; Account’s 

Liability for Claims Paid for Ineligible Individuals. Account shall notify Wellmark of 
each person’s termination or ineligibility for coverage under the Plan in advance, but in no 
event no later than three (3) months following the requested date of coverage termination. 
No requested coverage termination shall be effective any earlier than three (3) months 
prior to the date Wellmark receives the required notice from Account. If Incurred Claims 
prior to the date Wellmark is notified of the coverage termination have been paid and are 

-126-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 8 Version: 10/17 

not recouped, Account shall be responsible for the Claims Paid. For Claims Paid prior to 
the date Wellmark is notified of the coverage termination, Wellmark shall, at its election, 
(a) attempt to recoup such payments from the individual or the involved provider, unless 
Wellmark determines recoupment is not feasible under the circumstances, or extends 
beyond an eighteen (18) month recoupment period; or (b) bill Account for such Claims 
Paid and associated Administrative Fee and Account shall pay the amount due to 
Wellmark. 

 
2.5 Medicare Secondary Payer (“MSP”). Federal law mandates coordination of health care 

benefits in certain instances where a Member is covered under both a group health plan 
and Medicare. Proper coordination of benefits in this context depends on obtaining and 
maintaining accurate and timely information regarding such dual health coverage. 
Pursuant to contract and applicable law, Wellmark provides information to Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) regarding such dual health coverage for 
Members and Account enrollment on a quarterly or more frequent basis. 

 
Account is solely responsible for compliance with MSP laws and other requirements. 
Wellmark shall use all information provided by Account to properly coordinate benefits. In 
the event Account does not timely provide to Wellmark information requested by Wellmark 
regarding Account’s size and status and Employer Identification Number (“EIN”)(s), or 
does not gather and timely provide information to Wellmark concerning the Medicare 
enrollment of Members, Account enrollment, and related information (including, without 
limitation, Member Social Security numbers), or such other information as requested by 
Wellmark for inclusion on the Confirmation of MSP form submissions and other 
disclosures, Account shall be solely responsible for non-compliance with MSP laws and 
other requirements, including, without limitation, any damages, losses, taxes, interest 
charges, and administrative penalties (including, without limitation, any civil money 
penalties) that may be assessed or otherwise result in connection therewith (including, 
without limitation, any claims by Members, providers or other claimants), and mistaken 
payments to CMS on behalf of Medicare enrolled Members. 

 
2.6 Stop Loss Insurance Coverage. Account is solely responsible for the Claims Paid for 

Members of the Plan. Account may at its option separately purchase stop loss insurance 
coverage from Wellmark, Inc., which shall be reflected in a separate policy issued by 
Wellmark. If Account purchases stop loss insurance coverage from a carrier other than 
Wellmark, Account shall advise Wellmark of the terms of such coverage. Account shall be 
solely responsible for all reporting, submission of claims, payment of premiums, and any 
other obligation required by its stop loss policy with the other carrier, however, upon 
request Wellmark will provide Account with standard stop loss reports necessary for 
Account to file stop loss insurance claims with its stop loss carrier. 

 
2.7 Outside Services Vendor(s) to the Plan. If Account arranges for health plan 

administration services for the Plan from vendor(s) other than Wellmark or a Wellmark-
contracted vendor, such as, for example, pharmacy benefits management services or 
telehealth management services, Account shall be responsible for compliance with laws, 
the accuracy and submission of reports, claims data reporting, payments, and for any 
other obligation required by its vendor agreements. If Account requires its vendor to submit 
claims for Covered Services to Wellmark, such vendor shall also enter into an agreement 
with Wellmark that requires vendor to comply with Wellmark’s claims procedures. If 
Account or the Plan requires coordination or health plan accumulations between its third 
party vendor's administration and the health plan administration provided by Wellmark, 

-127-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 9 Version: 10/17 

Account shall be responsible for providing Wellmark with all enrollment information and 
claims or payment data reasonably necessary for Wellmark to provide Administrative 
Services under this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 3  

WELLMARK’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3.1 Determination of Claims; Administrative Services. During the Term of this Agreement 

and subject to Account’s payment to Wellmark, when due, of the charges for Claims Paid 
and other fees specified in this Agreement, Wellmark shall provide Administrative Services 
as specified in this section as follows: 

 
a. Wellmark shall provide Account with a written draft of Benefits Document(s) based 

on the plan design and Member eligibility criteria information provided by Account, 
for Account's review and approval as required by Section 2.1(e), setting forth the 
benefits, terms and conditions of the Plan for delivery to Plan Members; 

 
b. Wellmark shall provide access to a network(s) of health care providers and shall 

make information about the network and network providers available to Members; 
 

c. Wellmark shall prepare, print, and deliver identification cards to Plan Members and 
to Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Enrollees, as 
deemed appropriate by Wellmark; 

 
d. Wellmark will perform its Administrative Services and maintain all records 

regarding such Administrative Services in compliance with applicable laws, 
including, but not limited to, applicable provisions on non-discrimination; 

 
e. Wellmark shall provide or make available to Account forms of ACA or HIPAA 

required notices, including the summary of benefits and coverage (“SBC”) and 
applicable HIPAA notices relating to health coverage portability such as the 
Special Enrollment Notice. Wellmark shall make available the uniform glossary of 
insurance-related terms; 

 
f. Subject to Section 6.1(c), Wellmark shall administer benefits and process Incurred 

Claims for health care services furnished Members in accordance with the terms, 
limitations and conditions set forth in the Plan, the Benefits Document(s), this 
Agreement, applicable laws and regulations, the terms of the applicable provider 
agreements, and the claims administration and medical policies of Wellmark, all of 
which may be revised from time to time. Processing of claims may include payment 
by Wellmark on behalf of Account and reporting of benefits to providers or 
Members, coordination of benefits, and the monitoring, detection, and investigation 
of potentially abusive or fraudulent claims submitted by providers or Members. 
Wellmark may initiate adjustments to processed claims, generally for a period of 
up to eighteen (18) months after the Incurred Claim was first processed, if 
Wellmark determines in its sole discretion that such adjustments are necessary 
and appropriate. If a Paid Claim adjustment results in a recovery of a prior 
payment, Wellmark shall credit Account for such adjustments to the extent of the 
amount recovered. Notwithstanding the preceding two sentences and except as 
provided in Sections 2.3 and 2.4 of this Agreement, Wellmark shall not be required 
to reprocess claims as a result of any changes made to information relating to a 

-128-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 10 Version: 10/17 

Member or the Member's benefits unless (i) in addition to submitting changes to 
Wellmark, Account expressly requests in writing that Wellmark reprocess specific 
Member claims; and (ii) such reprocessing does not extend beyond eighteen (18) 
months prior to the date Wellmark receives Account's request; 

 
g. Wellmark shall process claims for benefits and shall maintain a single-level internal 

appeal procedure for Members to appeal adverse benefit determinations each in 
accordance with the requirements of the Plan and applicable law. Wellmark shall 
also maintain a procedure for processing external review requests of final internal 
adverse benefit determinations with appropriate independent review 
organizations, pursuant to the requirements of the Plan and applicable law. Fees 
and costs for external review billed by independent review organizations ("IROs") 
will be billed to Account; and 

 
h. To the extent that Account has delegated discretionary authority to Wellmark, 

Wellmark shall exercise its discretion to make determinations in connection with 
the administration of this Agreement and the Plan including, without limitation, 
determinations regarding whether health care services are medically necessary in 
accordance with Plan terms or whether charges for health care services are 
reasonable. Wellmark shall make determinations that are not arbitrary or 
capricious and such determinations shall be final and conclusive to the extent 
permitted by this Agreement, the terms of the Benefits Document, and by law. 

 
3.2 Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services. Wellmark may, at its sole 

discretion, offer or arrange for various Medical Management and Well-being Consulting 
Services to be available to Members or purchased by Account for its Members. Such 
services that may be offered are further described in the Medical Management and Well-
being Consulting Services Exhibit, attached to this Agreement and incorporated by this 
reference, and including those services, if any, specifically selected or purchased by 
Account as shown on Exhibit “A” attached to this Agreement. Medical Management and 
Well-being Consulting Services may be changed, replaced, or discontinued from time to 
time and may be modified or removed in accordance with the Medical Management and 
Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit. 

 
3.3 Telehealth Services. Wellmark has offered to arrange for Telehealth Services for 

Members and Account has elected to accept the Telehealth Services as offered by 
Wellmark and as described in the Benefits Document. The Telehealth Services will be 
provided for no additional administrative fee, although Account shall be responsible for 
any and all Claims Paid for Telehealth Services. 

 
3.4 Value-Added Services; Identity Protection. Wellmark, at its sole discretion, may offer 

or arrange for value-added services or benefits for Account and its Members, including, 
for example, Member Identity Protection services from a third-party vendor. Identity 
Protection services are offered at no additional charge to Account or Members. Account 
may at its option accept or reject Identity Protection services for its Members. 

 
3.5 IRS Form 1095-C Reporting. At the written request of Account, Wellmark will provide 

certain coverage information for purposes of Account’s Form 1095-C reporting to the 
Internal Revenue Service. Wellmark does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of 
the information provided, and expressly disclaims any liability for any penalties or costs 
that may be incurred due to alleged or actual inaccuracy or incompleteness, including but 

-129-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 11 Version: 10/17 

not limited to information reporting or other penalties that may be imposed if such 
information is relied upon or used in conjunction with any tax or other regulatory filing. 
Wellmark does not provide federal or state legal or tax advice, and does not prepare or 
otherwise assist in preparing, in any way, any federal or state tax returns or reports on 
behalf of its customers, including but not limited to IRS Form 1095-C. Account assumes 
all liability in connection with the preparation of such documents and has the responsibility 
to consult with its own legal or tax advisors for information or assistance. 

 
3.6 Subrogation. Wellmark shall provide subrogation recovery service for Claims Paid while 

this Agreement is in force, but shall have no obligation to initiate subrogation recovery 
services after this Agreement is terminated and shall have no obligation to continue 
subrogation recovery services initiated prior to termination more than twelve (12) months 
following termination of the Agreement. Following the twelve (12) month run-out period, 
Wellmark will forward any open subrogation files information to Account. The nature and 
extent of efforts to pursue subrogation recovery are within the sole discretion of Wellmark. 
Such subrogation recovery service may include all steps necessary to recover Claims Paid 
that may be found to be the liability of a third party or other insurance carrier. The Account 
shall be responsible for all fees or costs, including attorney’s fees and the fees and costs 
of any third party utilized by Wellmark to perform subrogation recovery services, incurred 
in the recovery process, with those costs and fees first paid from any funds recovered and 
the net amount only credited to Account’s Claims Paid amounts. Account acknowledges 
that its stop loss carrier has priority of any recovery in the event the Claims Paid exceed 
the stop loss attachment level and there is insufficient recovery to reimburse stop loss 
carrier and Account in full. The Account shall accept any such recoveries as negotiated 
by Wellmark as payment in full and the determination of the recovery amount is within the 
sole discretion of Wellmark. 

 
Wellmark has sole discretion with regard to the choice of counsel to pursue subrogation 
recovery. Wellmark may choose to allow a Member’s counsel to represent the Account’s 
subrogation interest. However, if the fee charged for collection of the subrogation interest 
by legal counsel retained by the Member exceeds the prevalent fees for such services, 
Wellmark shall not authorize pursuit or settlement of the subrogation claim by said 
Member’s attorney or payment of that attorney’s fee without Account’s written 
authorization. Further, if in the opinion of Wellmark, recovery of funds shall not offset the 
costs associated with such recovery, or recovery of the funds is not otherwise practicable, 
Wellmark shall inform the Account in writing of its opinion. Thereafter, unless the Account 
directs otherwise, Wellmark shall not further pursue the claim. In the event Account directs 
Wellmark to pursue Account’s subrogation interest notwithstanding Wellmark’s notice to 
Account of its opinion that the recovery shall not offset the involved costs, Account shall 
be responsible for all attorney’s fees and costs incurred by Wellmark to pursue recovery, 
including the reasonable cost of Wellmark’s staff time as determined by Wellmark.  

 
Wellmark does not guarantee the recovery of funds and nothing in this section or 
Agreement obligates Wellmark to participate in or initiate any subrogation efforts or 
litigation to recover Claims Paid. 

 
3.7 Discretionary Authority. Wellmark is delegated the authority to determine claims for 

benefits and to determine internal appeals of adverse benefit determinations of Members, 
provided such determinations are consistent with the terms of the Plan as provided by 
Account, this Agreement, the applicable Benefits Document, and applicable law, unless 
otherwise directed in writing by the Account. In making decisions regarding claims for 

-130-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 12 Version: 10/17 

benefits and appeals of denied claims, Wellmark shall have discretionary authority only to 
the limited extent necessary to construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and to 
determine whether a claim is properly payable under the Plan. Notwithstanding anything 
in this Agreement to the contrary, Account shall have full responsibility for Plan design, for 
making any and all determinations whether an individual has satisfied the Account's 
requirements to be an eligible Member, and for making any determination regarding an 
individual’s eligibility for continued coverage pursuant to COBRA. 

 
ARTICLE 4  

BILLING AND PAYMENT 
 
4.1 Billing; Account’s Payment to Wellmark. Account authorizes Wellmark and Wellmark 

agrees to process Incurred Claims as received, subject to the limitations, conditions, and 
exclusions stated in the Benefits Document. 

 
Wellmark shall bill Account for Claims Paid, Network Access Fee, Administrative Fee, 
Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Fees, and other fees, based on 
the billing and payment method set forth on Exhibit “A”, attached to this Agreement. Any 
adjustments due to membership or eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for 
the month in which the membership or eligibility change is made. Adjustments to Network 
Access Fee, Administrative Fee, and other fees, billed on a per Plan Member or per 
Member basis, shall be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to the date Wellmark 
processes the Member eligibility change. Wellmark shall provide a bill to Account that 
shows the amounts due and, if applicable, the amounts of any weekly payments received 
by Wellmark and other credits during the preceding month. Account shall promptly pay 
Wellmark at Wellmark’s office, the total amount due, no later than the due date on the bill. 
Such payment may be made by wire transfer, electronic (ebilling) payment, or automatic 
funds withdrawal. If Account elects automatic funds withdrawal, it shall execute the 
necessary authorization. 

 
If Account elects to authorize automatic funds withdrawal from a deposit account, the 
automatic withdrawal will change to correspond with the applicable billing, including 
applicable taxes or fees. Account’s authorization for automatic funds withdrawal shall 
include authorization for automatic withdrawal of any changed amount unless Account 
calls or provides its bank with written notice not less than three (3) business days before 
a scheduled withdrawal to stop the payment. If Account calls its bank to stop payment, 
Account may be required to provide a written request within fourteen (14) days after the 
call. Account will be responsible for any fee assessed by its bank for stop-payment orders 
made by Account. 

 
4.2 Late Payments. All payments from Account to Wellmark must be paid on time and when 

due in accordance with Section 4.1. If the Account fails to make payments in full when 
due, Wellmark may in its discretion do any or all of the following: impose interest or late 
fees; setoff late payments from other amounts that may be due to Account under the 
Agreement; stop the payment of all claims for Members, regardless of the Incurred Date; 
require an alternative billing and payment method; or require an alternative financial 
arrangement. Payments not made when due shall include an interest charge on the 
outstanding amount from the due date until payment is made in full at the then current 
prime rate as published in the Midwest edition of The Wall Street Journal plus two percent 
(2%). The acceptance by Wellmark of any late payments or partial payments shall not 
constitute a waiver of any rights under this Agreement. If Account fails to make payments 

-131-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 13 Version: 10/17 

when due for two or more consecutive months, Wellmark may impose additional late fees 
of up to eighteen percent (18%) per annum. 

 
ARTICLE 5  

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; REPORTING; EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
 
5.1 Protected Health Information. The rights and responsibilities of the parties and permitted 

uses and disclosures with respect to Protected Health Information shall be set forth in the 
separately executed Business Associate Agreement. If Account utilizes third-party 
vendors to provide any administrative services to the Plan and directs Wellmark to provide 
or exchange any PHI with such vendors, Account represents it has the legally required 
business associate and data security agreements in place with such third-party vendors. 
If Account desires access to mental health information, Account shall file an applicable 
statement with the Iowa Insurance Division, as may be required pursuant to Iowa Code 
Section 228.7. 

 
5.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

 
a. Subject to the terms of the Business Associate Agreement and as permitted by 

applicable law, the Receiving Party will: (i) not disclose Confidential Information to 
any third party that is not an agent, consultant or business associate to Wellmark 
without the written authorization of the Disclosing Party; (ii) restrict disclosure of 
Confidential Information only to those employees, agents or consultants who have 
a need to know the Confidential Information for purposes related to this Agreement 
or the administration of the Plan and who are bound by confidentiality terms 
substantially similar to those in this Agreement; (iii) use the same degree of care 
as for its own information of like importance, but at least use reasonable care, in 
safeguarding against disclosure of Confidential Information; and (iv) without 
unreasonable delay and in accordance with applicable law notify the Disclosing 
Party of any unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information and 
take reasonable steps to regain possession of the Confidential Information and 
prevent further unauthorized actions or other breach of this Agreement. 
 

b. If the Receiving Party is required to disclose Confidential Information pursuant to 
applicable law, statute, or regulation, or court order, for a purpose other than 
contemplated in this Agreement, the Receiving Party will give to the Disclosing 
Party prompt written notice of the request and a reasonable opportunity to object 
to such disclosure and seek a protective order or appropriate remedy. If, in the 
absence of a protective order, the Receiving Party determines, upon the advice of 
counsel, that it is required to disclose such information, it may disclose only 
Confidential Information specifically required and only to the extent compelled to 
do so. 
 

c. All Confidential Information remains the property of the Disclosing Party and will 
not be copied or reproduced without the express written permission of the 
Disclosing Party, except for copies that are necessary to fulfill the confidentiality 
obligations contained in this Agreement, to render the services under this 
Agreement, or as otherwise allowed under the Business Associate Agreement or 
applicable law. A party may retain Confidential Information when obligated to do 
so as a matter of law, and may also retain any Protected Health Information as set 
forth in the Business Associate Agreement.  

-132-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 14 Version: 10/17 

 
5.3 Wellmark’s Right to Use Confidential Information. Wellmark shall have the right to de-

identify or remove direct identifiers from the Confidential Information so that it no longer 
constitutes Protected Health Information, and so that such Confidential Information is no 
longer identifiable with respect to Account, and to aggregate such de-identified 
Confidential Information for any purpose whatsoever; provided that such use is in 
accordance with all applicable laws, including but not limited to HIPAA. Such Confidential 
Information, after it is de-identified or limited pursuant to HIPAA, shall no longer be subject 
to Section 5.2 and shall thereafter be Wellmark’s property. 

 
5.4 Right to Examine Records; Audit. Wellmark or its authorized representative may at its 

own expense examine the financial, enrollment, and claims records of Account reasonably 
related to the administration of this Agreement, as reasonably often as Wellmark deems 
appropriate, to reconcile enrollment information and records, to determine whether 
Account can make the payments required by this Agreement, or to determine payment of 
benefits under the Plan. Such examination shall be conducted during regular business 
hours, upon reasonable advance written notice. The examination period may cover the 
most recent twenty-four (24) months only, if applicable. Upon completion of the 
examination, Wellmark shall share its examination findings with Account and conduct an 
exit conference with Account. Any third party conducting such audit on Wellmark's behalf 
must agree in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Business Associate 
Agreement between Account and Wellmark. 

 
Account's third-party authorized representative or auditor may, at Account's own expense, 
examine Wellmark’s records reasonably and necessarily related to Wellmark’s discharge 
of its responsibilities under this Agreement no more frequently than annually. Account 
shall provide Wellmark with written authorization specifying the Account or Plan 
information that Wellmark may disclose to the auditor. The auditor must be acceptable to 
Wellmark, must not compete directly or indirectly with Wellmark, and must execute a non-
disclosure agreement with Wellmark prior to receiving any Protected Health Information 
or Wellmark Confidential Information. Such examination shall be conducted during regular 
business hours, upon advance written notice reasonable under the circumstances and 
shall include the following Wellmark records: claims records (but not including individually 
identifiable sensitive diagnosis information unless Account specifically authorizes such 
disclosure), third-party explanations of health care benefits, enrollment records, and 
coordination of benefits procedures. Any other audit or examination request must be 
coordinated with Wellmark. The examination period may cover the most recent twenty-
four (24) months only, notwithstanding the period for claim adjustments as may be 
specified in Section 3.1. Upon completion of the examination, Account shall share its 
examination findings with Wellmark and conduct an exit conference with Wellmark. Audits 
conducted by auditors compensated on a contingency fee basis are not permitted by 
Wellmark as such compensation arrangements are not consistent with professional 
auditing standards. Such standards consider these compensation arrangements to impair 
the auditor's or consultant's independence and objectivity. Audit practice and procedure 
under this Agreement will conform to generally accepted auditing and accounting 
principles. 

 
5.5 Website Access and Reporting. Wellmark may provide Account while this Agreement is 

in force with secured access to Wellmark’s website, web-based applications, or other 
electronic databases with respect to the Plan and Members for the purpose of Plan 
administration and health care operations, reporting, billing, or for self-service. Web-based 

-133-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 15 Version: 10/17 

applications or databases with Member and Plan specific Confidential Information may be 
hosted or supported by third parties on Wellmark's behalf. If Account or a third party acting 
on Account's behalf accesses such websites or information, Account is subject to and 
agrees to all of the terms and conditions, including the confidentiality requirements of this 
Agreement, and security restrictions and user requirements as established by Wellmark 
with respect to such access, as such terms are set forth in a data use agreement and in 
the applicable Terms and Conditions posted at Wellmark's website (Wellmark.com). 

 
5.6 Survival. Any obligations of either party to the other under this Article of the Agreement 

survive any termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 6  
PROVIDER PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS; CLAIMS RECOVERIES; REBATES; VALUE-

BASED PROGRAMS; DISCLOSURE OF COMPENSATION 
 
6.1 Provider Payment Arrangements. Wellmark will be responsible for negotiating and 

entering into separate payment arrangements with health care providers. Such provider 
payment arrangements and agreements shall apply to services by such providers for all 
Members entitled to benefits under plans insured or administered by Wellmark, including 
Members under this Plan. 

 
Wellmark shall determine, in its sole discretion, the payment arrangements with health 
care providers including, without limitation, the Maximum Allowable Fees for Incurred 
Claims. Without limiting the foregoing, Wellmark may compensate providers pursuant to 
a variety of payment arrangements, including the following: 

 
a. Fee for service arrangements, including, without limitation, per diem and percent 

of charge arrangements; 
 

b. Fixed fee or other payment methodology that is based on pre-determined criteria; 
or 

 
c. Episode of care arrangements under which payment is based on a pre-established 

rate for a health care encounter, including, without limitation, a hospital stay or 
outpatient visit. In the event such an arrangement is utilized, consistent with the 
methodology established by Wellmark for such arrangement, Wellmark is not 
required to impose cost share responsibility on Members for each Covered Service 
Members receive. An episode of care arrangement payment may cover both 
Covered Services and non-Covered Services that are incidental to the Covered 
Services. 

 
6.2 Network Savings Allocations. Any Network Savings amounts allocated to the Account 

shall be reflected in the amount of Claims Paid. Based on Wellmark’s payment 
arrangements with health care providers, and in accordance with Section 6.1, the amount 
paid on an individual claim may be more or less than the Covered Charge minus any 
applicable Amounts Not Covered, deductible, copayment, and coinsurance amounts. If 
the amount paid to a provider on any claim exceeds the Covered Charge, the Network 
Savings is reflected as a negative dollar amount. Any Network Savings amounts allocated 
to Plan Members shall be reflected in the calculation of coinsurance, where applicable. 
The calculation of coinsurance depends on the type and location of the services provided 

-134-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 16 Version: 10/17 

and the contracting status of the health care provider. The calculation of coinsurance is 
further described in the applicable Benefits Document. 

 
6.3 Non-Contracting or Non-Network Providers. If the applicable Benefits Document 

provides benefits for Covered Services rendered by health care providers that have not 
contracted with Wellmark or another Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plan (“Non-Contracting 
Providers”), Members may be liable to Non-Contracting Providers for any difference 
between the Covered Charges and the Maximum Allowable Fee and Members are 
responsible for paying the provider in full. 

 
6.4 Claims Recoveries. From time to time, Wellmark, Account, or Plan may receive notice of 

a pending or potential lawsuit (including, without limitation, a class action lawsuit) that 
seeks recovery of health care claims expenses on behalf of one or more group health 
plans or payors and that may include Wellmark, Account, or the Plan as a party or potential 
class member (a “Lawsuit”). Notwithstanding any language to the contrary in this 
Agreement, Wellmark shall not participate in a Lawsuit on behalf of Account or Plan or 
pursue recovery on behalf of Account or Plan unless Wellmark and Account enter into a 
separate written agreement relating to participation, recovery, and expenses in such 
Lawsuit. Wellmark has no duty to notify Account or Plan of Wellmark’s receipt of any 
notices in connection with any Lawsuit and each party is free to make its own 
determination whether to initiate or participate in any Lawsuit on its own behalf. 

 
6.5 Value-Based Programs. Wellmark or Host Blues may enter into collaborative 

arrangements with Value-Based Programs (as described in Section 9.3 Out-of-Area 
Services) under which the health care organizations participating in such programs are 
eligible for financial incentives relating to quality and cost-effective care of Wellmark 
members. Identifiable Data regarding Account's Members may be included in information 
Wellmark or Host Blues provide to Value-Based Programs and used by the Value-Based 
Program and its providers. Account has elected not to participate in Wellmark’s Value-
Based Program, although Account’s Members may access Covered Services from 
providers that participate in a Host Blue’s Value-Based Program as described in Section 
9.3. 

 
6.6 Disclosure of Compensation. Wellmark shall comply with Department of Labor 

requirements regarding the disclosure of compensation received from all sources in 
connection with this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 7  

LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES 
 
7.1 Responsibility for Claims. Account is solely responsible for all Claims Paid for its 

Members, including, without limitation, an individual added or deleted as a result of a 
retroactive eligibility change. Wellmark provides Administrative Services and network 
access only and does not assume any financial risk or obligation with respect to claims, 
including, without limitation, any Claims Paid. Wellmark has no obligation to pay Incurred 
Claims if Account fails to pay or reimburse Wellmark in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
7.2 No Duty to Defend. Wellmark shall have no duty or obligation to defend against any action 

or proceeding brought against Account or Plan to recover a claim for benefits. Wellmark 
shall, however, make available to Account and its counsel, such evidence relevant to such 

-135-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 17 Version: 10/17 

action or proceeding as Wellmark may have as a result of its administration of the 
contested benefit determination. 

 
7.3 Account’s Liability. Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement, Account 

shall accept the tender of defense and have the liability for all Plan benefit claims and all 
expenses incident to the Plan, and agrees to release, hold harmless, and indemnify 
Wellmark and its employees, officers, and directors against any and all amounts, 
expenses, losses, liability, claims, lawsuits, injuries, damages, taxes, interest charges, 
administrative penalties, and other costs or obligations, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and court costs, for which Wellmark may become liable: 

 
a. due to any state premium tax, use tax, or similar tax, or any similar benefit or plan-

related charge, surcharge or assessment, federal tax, excise tax, or fee imposed 
on group health plans or plan sponsors under ACA, however denominated, 
including any penalties and interest payable with respect thereto, assessed against 
Wellmark on the basis of and/or measured by the amount of Plan benefits 
administered by Wellmark pursuant to this Agreement; 

 
b. due to any action or proceeding brought by a third party to recover benefits under 

the Plan; 
 

c. due to any action or proceeding brought by a third party alleging Wellmark provided 
significant assistance to Account to aid or perpetuate any discrimination activity; 

 
d. due to a release of Confidential Information to Account, the Plan, or a third party 

at Account’s direction or arising out of any improper use of Confidential Information 
by Account or such third party; 

 
e. due to Account’s failure to timely provide requested information to Wellmark for 

inclusion on the Confirmation of MSP form submissions and other disclosures that 
relate to Account’s size and status, EIN(s), the Medicare enrollment of Members, 
Account enrollment, and related information (including, without limitation, Member 
Social Security numbers), or such other information requested by Wellmark 
resulting in processing of claims not in compliance with MSP laws and other 
requirements in accordance with Section 2.5; 

 
f. due to Account’s failure to comply with applicable law relating to issuing or failing 

to issue the required notices in accordance with Section 2.1(d); 
 

g. due to Account’s failure or delay in providing accurate reports, data, and 
information regarding eligibility, enrollment, and Social Security numbers for each 
Member, benefit selection, limitations, exclusions, or benefit changes for the Plan, 
claims history, and other information necessary for Wellmark to administer the 
terms, coordination of benefits, limitations, and exclusions contained in the Plan; 

 
h. due to the Account’s or its employees’ or agents’ negligence or material breach of 

their obligations under this Agreement, except to the extent that any such losses 
are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Wellmark; 

 
i. arising from any other acts or omissions of Account that constitute a material 

breach of an obligation hereunder or which, in the aggregate, constitute a failure 

-136-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 18 Version: 10/17 

on the part of Account to perform its obligations under this Agreement in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement; or 

 
j. due to or arising out of Wellmark’s adherence with any direction from Account or 

decision made by Account with regard to the Plan design, benefits, or eligibility 
provisions in the Benefits Document, or the Administrative Services provided under 
this Agreement. 

 
7.4 Selection of Counsel. In the event litigation is instituted by a third party against the 

Account and/or Wellmark concerning any matter under the Plan, including a suit for Plan 
benefits, each party to this Agreement shall, to the extent possible, advise the other of the 
legal action, and shall have sole authority to select legal counsel of its choice. 

 
7.5 Wellmark’s Liability. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, Wellmark shall 

use reasonable diligence and that degree of skill and judgment possessed by one 
experienced in furnishing claim administration services to group health plans of similar 
size and characteristics as the Plan. Wellmark agrees to release, hold harmless, and 
indemnify Account and its employees, officers, and directors against any and all amounts, 
expenses, losses, liability, claims, lawsuits, injuries, damages, taxes, interest charges, 
administrative penalties, and other costs or obligations, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and court costs, for which Account may become liable: 

 
a. arising from any acts or omission of Wellmark which constitute a material breach 

of an obligation hereunder or which, in the aggregate, constitute a failure on the 
part of Wellmark to perform its obligations under this Agreement in accordance 
with the provisions of this Agreement; and 

 
b. arising from any allegation of a breach of confidentiality arising out of release of 

Confidential Information to Wellmark or a third party at Wellmark’s direction or 
arising out of any improper use of Confidential Information by Wellmark or such 
third party. 

 
7.6 Disclaimer of Warranties; Limitation of Liability. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET 

FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, WELLMARK DOES NOT MAKE AND HEREBY 
DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, REGARDING ANY OF THE SERVICES WELLMARK 
PROVIDES OR ARRANGES TO PROVIDE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. IN NO EVENT 
SHALL ANY PARTY BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, 
PUNITIVE, OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, LOSS OF DATA OR LOST PROFITS, EVEN IF 
THAT PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE 
FOREGOING LIMITATION OF LIABILITY REPRESENTS THE ALLOCATION OF RISK 
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS REFLECTED IN THE PRICING HEREUNDER AND IS AN 
ESSENTIAL ELEMENT OF THE BASIS OF THE BARGAIN BETWEEN THE PARTIES. 
ADDITIONAL DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITIES 
REGARDING MEDICAL MANAGEMENT AND WELL-BEING CONSULTING SERVICES 
ARE SET FORTH IN THE MEDICAL MANAGEMENT AND WELL-BEING CONSULTING 
SERVICES EXHIBIT. 

 

-137-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 19 Version: 10/17 

7.7 Grandfathered Health Plan Disclaimer. Account has the sole obligation to determine the 
status of its Plan as either a Grandfathered Health Plan or a Non-Grandfathered Health 
Plan and has advised that its Plan is Non-Grandfathered. 

 
7.8 No Testing for Health Plans. Wellmark will not determine whether coverage is 

discriminatory or otherwise in violation of Internal Revenue Code Section 105(h). 
Wellmark also will not provide any testing for compliance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 105(h) and will not be held liable for any penalties or other losses resulting from 
Account offering coverage in violation of Section 105(h). 

 
7.9 Survival. The indemnities set forth in this Article, including any liability of either party to 

the other for indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 8  
TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
8.1 Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and 

shall continue in force for the Rating Period (the “Term”). 
 
8.2 Renewal Terms. Upon expiration of the Term, this Agreement shall continue in force from 

year to year until replaced by a subsequently executed Agreement, or as amended or 
terminated as provided in this Agreement. Wellmark shall have the right to change any of 
the Administrative Fees or other fees for any renewal term upon not less than thirty (30) 
days advance written notice. Any such changes shall be reflected on a revised or new 
Exhibit “A” issued by Wellmark, to be attached to this Agreement and incorporated by this 
reference. 

 
8.3 Termination Notice. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 

written notice of termination delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days in advance 
of the effective date of termination. 

 
8.4 Termination for Nonpayment. Wellmark may terminate this Agreement at any time, upon 

ten (10) days written notice to Account, if Account fails to make complete payments, 
including late fees, when due in accordance with this Agreement or Wellmark determines 
that Account has inadequate funds to make payments required by this Agreement and, in 
either case, Account fails to cure such non-payments or cure the inadequacy of funds 
within the ten (10) day notice period. Account is solely responsible for notifying its Plan 
Members of the termination of this Agreement for nonpayment or for any other reason. 

 
8.5 Effects of Termination. If Wellmark terminates this Agreement for nonpayment, 

Wellmark shall not be required to pay on behalf of Account any Incurred Claims beyond 
the effective date of the termination and Wellmark reserves all rights to recoup any Paid 
Claims for which Account has not paid Wellmark, regardless of when services were 
received. 

 
8.6 Termination and Claims Administration. If, following termination of this Agreement for 

reasons other than Account’s nonpayment, Incurred Claims with Incurred Dates prior to 
the date of termination are submitted to Wellmark in the period specified in the Benefits 
Document for timely filing of claims, Wellmark shall pay these claims on behalf of Account 
in accordance with this Agreement and submit bills to the Account for the payment of 
Claims Paid for a period of twelve (12) months following termination. The bills shall also 

-138-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 20 Version: 10/17 

include a Network Access Fee amount when the Network Access Fee, shown on Exhibit 
“A”, is reflected as a percentage of Network Savings or when Account makes retroactive 
changes to add or delete a Plan Member from coverage during the Rating Period. The 
Account shall pay all bills in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 4.1. 
Wellmark shall not, on behalf of Account, pay Incurred Claims with dates of service 
following the date of termination. Unless Account and Wellmark otherwise agree in writing, 
Wellmark shall not continue any other services for Account after the effective date of 
termination. 

 
8.7 Availability of Records. Upon written request by the Account, Wellmark will make 

available to any successor benefit services administrator, designated by the Account, 
standard reports and materials in its possession at the time of termination that are 
reasonably necessary to continue the administration of the Plan. Wellmark shall provide 
such materials in its standard format and Account shall pay a reasonable fee for such 
services. 

 
8.8 Survival. Any liability of either party to the other for amounts owed or owing under this 

Agreement, unless such amounts are de minimus, shall not be extinguished by the 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 9  

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD DISCLOSURES AND INTER-PLAN ARRANGEMENTS 
 
9.1 Blue Cross and Blue Shield Disclosure Statement. Account on behalf of itself and its 

Members, hereby expressly acknowledges its understanding this Agreement constitutes 
a contract solely between Account and Wellmark, which is an independent corporation 
operating under licenses from the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association, an association of 
independent Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans (the "Association"), permitting Wellmark 
to use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Service Marks in the state of Iowa, and that 
Wellmark is not contracting as the agent of the Association. Account on behalf of itself and 
its Members, further acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered into this Agreement 
based upon representations by any person other than Wellmark and that no person, entity, 
or organization other than Wellmark shall be accountable or liable to Account for any of 
Wellmark’s obligations to Account created under this Agreement. This section shall not 
create any additional obligations whatsoever on the part of Wellmark other than those 
obligations created under other provisions of this Agreement. 

 
9.2 Account Locations or Members Outside of Iowa. Account understands and agrees that 

Wellmark defines a National Account as a company headquartered and located in Iowa 
that also has employees in other states whose claims are processed through Inter-Plan 
Arrangements. If Account is headquartered in Iowa, any employees or persons associated 
with Account are eligible for coverage under the Account’s Plan, including those employed 
or working at Account locations outside Iowa. If Account is not headquartered in Iowa, 
only those employees or individuals associated with the Iowa business locations are 
eligible for coverage under the Account’s Plan, and coverage will be void for any persons 
associated with Account locations outside of Iowa. Eligibility of persons located outside of 
Iowa, or associated with Account locations outside of Iowa, is subject to applicable law 
and Association guidelines. 

 
9.3 Out-of-Area Services. Wellmark has a variety of relationships with other Blue Cross 

and/or Blue Shield Licensees referred to generally as “Inter-Plan Arrangements.” These 

-139-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 21 Version: 10/17 

Inter-Plan Arrangements operate under rules and procedures issued by the Blue Cross 
Blue Shield Association (“Association”). Whenever Members access health care services 
outside the geographic area Wellmark serves, the claim for those services may be 
processed through one of these Inter-Plan Arrangements. The Inter-Plan Arrangements 
are described generally below. 

 
Typically, when accessing care outside the geographic area Wellmark serves, Members 
obtain care from health care providers that have a contractual agreement (“participating 
providers”) with the local Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield Licensee in that other geographic 
area (“Host Blue”). In some instances, Members may obtain care from health care 
providers in the Host Blue geographic area that do not have a contractual agreement 
(“nonparticipating providers”) with the Host Blue. Wellmark remains responsible for 
fulfilling its contractual obligations to Account. Wellmark payment practices in both 
instances are described below. 

 
This disclosure describes how claims are administered for Inter-Plan Arrangements and 
the fees that are charged in connection with Inter-Plan Arrangements.  

 
a. BlueCard® Program. The BlueCard® Program is an Inter-Plan Arrangement. 

Under this Arrangement, when Members access Covered Services within the 
geographic area served by a Host Blue, the Host Blue will be responsible for 
contracting and handling all interactions with its participating providers. The 
financial terms of the BlueCard Program are described generally below. 

 
i. Member Liability Calculation Method Per Claim. Unless subject to a 

fixed dollar copayment, the calculation of the Member liability on claims for 
Covered Services processed through the BlueCard Program will be based 
on the lower of the participating provider’s billed charges for Covered 
Services or the negotiated price made available to Wellmark by the Host 
Blue. 

 
ii. Account Liability Calculation Method Per Claim. The calculation of 

Account’s liability on claims for Covered Services processed through the 
BlueCard Program will be based on the negotiated price made available to 
Wellmark by the Host Blue under the contract between the Host Blue and 
the provider. Sometimes, this negotiated price may be greater for a given 
service or services than the billed charge in accordance with how the Host 
Blue has negotiated with its participating provider(s) for specific health care 
services. In cases where negotiated price exceeds the billed charge, 
Account may be liable for the excess amount even when the Member’s 
deductible has not been satisfied. This excess amount reflects an amount 
that may be necessary to secure (a) the provider’s participation in the 
network and/or (b) the overall discount negotiated by the Host Blue. In such 
a case, the entire contracted price is paid to the provider, even when the 
contracted price is greater than the billed charge. 

 
iii. Claims Pricing. Host Blues determine a negotiated price, which is 

reflected in the terms of each Host Blue’s provider contracts. The 
negotiated price made available to Wellmark by the Host Blue may be 
represented by one of the following: 

-140-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 22 Version: 10/17 

 
a) An actual price. An actual price is a negotiated rate of payment in 

effect at the time a claim is processed without any other increases 
or decreases; or 

 
b) An estimated price. An estimated price is a negotiated rate of 

payment in effect at the time a claim is processed, reduced or 
increased by a percentage to take into account certain payments 
negotiated with the provider and other claim- and non-claim-related 
transactions. Such transactions may include, but are not limited to, 
anti-fraud and abuse recoveries, provider refunds not applied on a 
claim-specific basis, retrospective settlements, and performance-
related bonuses or incentives; or 

 
c) An average price. An average price is a percentage of billed 

charges for Covered Services in effect at the time a claim is 
processed representing the aggregate payments negotiated by the 
Host Blue with all of its health care providers or a similar 
classification of its providers and other claim- and non-claim-related 
transactions. Such transactions may include the same ones as 
noted above for an estimated price. 

 
The Host Blue determines whether it will use an actual, estimated, or 
average price. The use of estimated or average pricing may result in a 
difference (positive or negative), between the price Account pays on a 
specific claim and the actual amount the Host Blue pays to the provider. 
However, the BlueCard Program requires that the amount paid by the 
Member and Account is a final price; no future price adjustment will result 
in increases or decreases to the pricing of past claims.  
 
In some instances federal or state laws or regulations may impose a 
surcharge, tax or other fee. If applicable, Wellmark will disclose any such 
surcharge, tax or other fee to Account, which will be Account’s liability. 

 
Any positive or negative differences in estimated or average pricing are 
accounted for through variance accounts maintained by the Host Blue and 
incorporated into future claim prices. As a result, the amounts charged to 
Account will be adjusted in a following year, as necessary, to account for 
over- or underestimation of the past years’ prices. The Host Blue will not 
receive compensation from how the estimated price or average price 
methods, described above, are calculated. Because all amounts paid are 
final, neither positive variance account amounts (funds available to be paid 
in the following year), nor negative variance amounts (the funds needed to 
be received in the following year), are due to or from Account. If Account 
terminates, Account will not receive a refund or charge from the variance 
account.  
 
Variance account balances are small amounts relative to the overall paid 
claims amounts and will be liquidated over time. The timeframe for their 
liquidation depends on variables, including, but not limited to, overall 
volume/number of claims processed and variance account balance. 

-141-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 23 Version: 10/17 

Variance account balances may earn interest. Host Blues may retain 
interest earned, if any, on funds held in variance accounts. 

 
iv. BlueCard Program Fees and Compensation. Account understands and 

agrees to reimburse Wellmark for certain fees and compensation which 
Wellmark is obligated under the BlueCard Program to pay to the Host 
Blues, to the Association, and/or to vendors of BlueCard Program-related 
services. The specific BlueCard Program fees and compensation that are 
charged to Account, if any, are set forth in Exhibit “A”. BlueCard Program 
Fees and compensation may be revised from time to time as described in 
subsection f below. All BlueCard Program-related fees, including any 
Access Fees paid to Host Blues, and Administrative Expense Allowance 
(“AEA”) Fees are included in Wellmark's general Administrative Fee as set 
forth in Exhibit “A”. Wellmark has elected to not separately charge any 
Inter-Plan Arrangement-related fees to Account. 

 
b. Special Cases: Value-Based Programs. Account’s Members may access 

Covered Services from providers that participate in a Host Blue’s Value-Based 
Program. Value-Based Programs may be delivered through the BlueCard 
Program. These Value-Based Programs may include, but are not limited to, 
Accountable Care Organizations, Global Payment/Total Cost of Care 
arrangements, Patient Centered Medical Homes, and Shared Savings 
arrangements. 
 
i. Value-Based Programs under the BlueCard Program; Program 

Administration. Under Value-Based Programs, a Host Blue may pay 
providers for reaching agreed-upon cost/quality goals in the following ways: 
retrospective settlements, Provider Incentives, share of target savings, 
Care Coordinator Fees and/or other allowed amounts. The Host Blue may 
pass these provider payments to Wellmark, which Wellmark will pass 
directly on to Account as an amount included in the price of the claim. 
 
When such amounts are included in the price of the claim, the claim may 
be billed using one of the following pricing methods, as determined by the 
Host Blue: 
 
a) Actual Pricing: The charge to accounts for Value-Based Programs 

incentives/Shared Savings settlements is part of the claim. These 
charges are passed to Account via an enhanced provider fee 
schedule. 
 

b) Supplemental Factor: The charge to accounts for Value-Based 
Programs incentives/Shared Savings settlements is a supplemental 
amount that is included in the claim as an amount based on a 
specified supplemental factor (e.g., a small percentage increase in 
the claim amount). The supplemental factor may be adjusted from 
time to time. 

 
The amounts used to calculate the supplemental factors for estimated 
pricing are fixed amounts that are estimated to be necessary to finance the 
cost of a particular Value-Based Program. Because amounts are 

-142-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 24 Version: 10/17 

estimates, there may be positive or negative differences based on actual 
experience and such differences will be accounted for in a variance 
account maintained by the Host Blue (in the same manner as described in 
the BlueCard claim pricing section above) until the end of the applicable 
Value-Based Program payment and/or reconciliation measurement period. 
The amounts needed to fund a Value-Based Program may be changed 
before the end of the measurement period if it is determined that amounts 
being collected are projected to exceed the amount necessary to fund the 
programs or if they are projected to be insufficient to fund the program. 
 
At the end of the Value-Based Program payment and/or reconciliation 
measurement period for these arrangements, Host Blues will take one of 
the following actions: 
 
a) Use any surplus in funds in the variance account to fund Value-

Based Program payments or reconciliation amounts in the next 
measurement period. 
 

b) Address any deficit in funds in the variance account through the 
reconciliation billing amount for the next measurement period. 

 
The Host Blue will not receive compensation resulting from how estimated 
or average price methods, described above, are calculated. If Account 
terminates, Account will not receive a refund or charge from the variance 
account. This is because any resulting surpluses or deficits would be 
eventually exhausted through prospective adjustment to the settlement 
billings in the case of Value-Based Programs. The measurement period for 
determining these surpluses or deficits may differ from the term of this 
Agreement. 
 
Variance account balances are small amounts relative to the overall paid 
claims amounts and will be liquidated over time. The timeframe for their 
liquidation depends on variables, including, but not limited to, overall 
volume/number of claims processed and variance account balance. 
Variance account balances may earn interest. Host Blues may retain 
interest earned on funds held in variance accounts. 
 
Note: Members will not bear any portion of the cost of Value-Based 
Programs except when a Host Blue uses either average pricing or actual 
pricing to pay providers under Value-Based Programs. 
 

ii. Care Coordinator Fees. Host Blues may also bill Wellmark for Care 
Coordinator Fees for provider services which Wellmark will pass on to 
Account as follows: 

 
Individual claim billings through applicable care coordination codes from 
the most current edition of either Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) 
published by the American Medical Association (AMA) or Healthcare 
Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) published by the Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). 
 

-143-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 25 Version: 10/17 

As part of this Agreement, Wellmark and Account will not impose Member 
cost sharing for Care Coordinator Fees. 

 
c. Return of Overpayments. Recoveries of overpayments from a Host Blue or its 

participating providers can arise in several ways including, but not limited to, anti-
fraud and abuse recoveries, health care provider/hospital bill audits, credit balance 
audits, utilization review refunds, and unsolicited refunds. Recoveries will be 
applied in general, on either a claim-by-claim or prospective basis. If recovery 
amounts are passed on a claim-by-claim basis from a Host Blue to Wellmark they 
will be credited to Account. In some cases, the Host Blue will engage a third party 
to assist in identification or collection of overpayments. The fees of such a third 
party may be charged to Account as a percentage of the recovery.  

 
d. Nonparticipating Providers Outside Wellmark’s Service Area.  

 
i. Member Liability Calculation. 

 
a) In General. When Covered Services are provided outside of 

Wellmark’s service area by nonparticipating providers, the 
amount(s) a Member pays for such services will be based on either 
the Host Blue’s nonparticipating provider local payment or the 
pricing arrangements required by applicable state law. In these 
situations, the Member may be responsible for the difference 
between the amount that the nonparticipating provider bills and the 
payment Wellmark will make for the Covered Services as set forth 
in this paragraph. Payments for out-of-network emergency services 
will be governed by applicable federal and state law. 

 
b) Exceptions. In some exception cases, Wellmark may pay claims 

from nonparticipating providers for Covered Services outside of 
Wellmark's service area based on the provider’s billed charge. This 
may occur in situations where a Member did not have reasonable 
access to a participating provider, as determined by Wellmark or by 
applicable law. In other exception cases, Wellmark may pay such 
claims based on the payment Wellmark would make if Wellmark 
were paying a nonparticipating provider for the same Covered 
Services inside of Wellmark’s service area. This may occur where 
the Host Blue’s corresponding payment would be more than 
Wellmark’s in-service area nonparticipating provider payment. 
Wellmark may choose to negotiate a payment with such a provider 
on an exception basis. 

 
Unless otherwise stated, in any of these exception situations, the 
Member may be responsible for the difference between the amount 
that the nonparticipating provider bills and the payment Wellmark 
will make for the Covered Services as set forth in this paragraph. 

 
ii. Fees and Compensation. Account understands and agrees to reimburse 

Wellmark for certain fees and compensation which Wellmark is obligated 
under applicable Inter-Plan Arrangement requirements to pay to the Host 
Blues, to the Association, and/or to vendors of Inter-Plan Arrangement-

-144-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 26 Version: 10/17 

related services. The specific fees and compensation that are charged to 
Account, if any, are set forth in Exhibit “A”. Fees and compensation under 
applicable Inter-Plan Arrangements may be revised from time to time as 
provided for in subsection f below. 

 
e. Blue Cross Blue Shield Global™ Core.  

 
i. General Information. If Members are outside the United States, the 

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands (hereinafter: 
“BlueCard service area”), they may be able to take advantage of the Blue 
Cross Blue Shield Global Core when accessing Covered Services. The 
Blue Cross Blue Shield Global Core is not served by a Host Blue.  

 
Inpatient Services. In most cases, if Members contact the Blue Cross Blue 
Shield Global Core Service Center for assistance, hospitals will not require 
Members to pay for covered inpatient services, except for their cost-share 
amounts. In such cases, the hospital will submit Member claims to the Blue 
Cross Blue Shield Global Core Service Center to initiate claims processing. 
However, if the Member paid in full at the time of service, the Member must 
submit a claim to obtain reimbursement for Covered Services. Members 
must contact Wellmark to obtain precertification for non-emergency 
inpatient services. 

 
ii. Blue Cross Blue Shield Global Core Related Fees. Account understands 

and agrees to reimburse Wellmark for certain fees and compensation which 
Wellmark is obligated under applicable Inter-Plan Arrangement 
requirements to pay to the Host Blues, to the Association, and/or to vendors 
of Inter-Plan Arrangement-related services. The specific fees and 
compensation that are charged to Account under the Blue Cross Blue 
Shield Global Core, if any, are set forth in Exhibit “A”. Fees and 
compensation under applicable Inter-Plan Arrangements may be revised 
from time to time as provided for in subsection f below. 

 
f. Modifications or Changes to Inter-Plan Arrangement Fees or Compensation. 

Modifications or changes to Inter-Plan Arrangement fees are generally made 
effective January 1 of the calendar year but they may occur at any time during the 
year. In the case of any such modifications or changes, Wellmark shall provide 
Account with at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of any modification or 
change to such Inter-Plan Arrangement fees or compensation describing the 
change and the effective date thereof and Account’s right to terminate this 
Agreement without penalty by giving written notice of termination before the 
effective date of the change. If Account fails to respond to the notice and does not 
terminate this Agreement during the notice period, Account will be deemed to have 
approved the proposed changes, and Wellmark will then allow such modifications 
to become part of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 10  

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
10.1 Change of Agreement. If Account makes changes in the Plan or Benefits Document, 

Account shall give Wellmark sufficient advance notice of such changes. If Account makes 

-145-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 27 Version: 10/17 

any material changes in the Plan, or if material changes are required by law, including the 
addition or deletion of benefits, a material change in group composition or membership or 
eligibility requirements, such as a change in the number of eligible or enrolled individuals 
of ten percent (10%) or more, percentage of individuals enrolled, types of coverage 
offered, business entities covered, or offerings of other health insurers’ coverage to eligible 
individuals, Wellmark shall have the right at its option to amend this Agreement, including 
an adjustment to the financial terms shown on Exhibit “A”, or to terminate this Agreement 
in accordance with Section 8.3. 

 
10.2 Iowa Code Chapter 509A Compliance; No Actuarial Certification. Nothing contained 

in this Agreement or on Exhibit “A” shall be construed or considered to be an actuarial 
opinion or certification by Wellmark in connection with Iowa Code Chapter 509A regarding 
the adequacy of reserves, rates, or financial condition of Account or the Plan. Account is 
solely responsible for compliance with all provisions of Iowa Code Chapter 509A and 
implementing regulations and, if applicable, is responsible for reporting any paid losses 
for the Account’s self-funded operation of the Plan, as required by Iowa Code Section 
513C.10, and for paying any assessment related to those paid losses. 

 
10.3 Use of Trademarks and Names. Wellmark and Account reserve the right to control the 

use of their respective corporate names and any other respective symbols, assumed 
names, trademarks, and service marks, presently existing or subsequently established. 
Wellmark and Account agree not to use the corporate name, symbol, assumed names, 
trademarks, or service marks of the other in advertising, promotional materials, or 
otherwise without the prior written consent of the other. Any previously approved usage 
shall cease immediately upon the termination of this Agreement and any materials using 
such names or marks are the property of the appropriate namesake and shall be returned 
to the appropriate property owner upon request or at the termination of this Agreement. 

 
10.4 Complete Agreement; Amendments. The parties agree that this Agreement, including, 

without limitation, any Exhibits or amendments hereto, applicable Business Associate 
Agreement, the Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit, and 
COBRA Administrative Services Agreement or Addendum, if any, constitute the complete 
and exclusive agreement and statement of the relationship between the parties with 
regard to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all related discussions, 
understandings, proposals, exhibits, amendments, prior and concurrent agreements, 
representations and warranties, whether oral or written, and any other communications 
between the parties in regard to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement, including, 
without limitation, any Exhibits hereto, may be amended from time to time by the parties. 
Any amendment to this Agreement, or change, modification, or waiver of any of the terms 
or provisions of this Agreement shall be effective only when made in writing and signed 
by an authorized representative of each party and delivered in accordance with Section 
10.11. This Agreement shall take precedence over any other documents that may be in 
conflict with it. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if this Agreement supersedes a prior Agreement, health 
services with an Incurred Date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement shall be 
processed pursuant to the terms of the applicable superseded Agreement. 

 
10.5 Force Majeure. The parties to this Agreement shall be excused from any performance 

under this Agreement, other than payment of amounts due, for any period and to the extent 
they are delayed, restricted, or prevented from performing under this Agreement as a 

-146-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 28 Version: 10/17 

result of an act of God, war, civil disturbance, court order, labor dispute, act of terrorism, 
or other cause beyond their reasonable control. 

 
10.6 Limitation of Action. Notwithstanding Sections 5.6, 7.9, and 8.8, no legal or equitable 

action or claim, may be brought against Wellmark for an action or claim arising under or 
relating to this Agreement more than two (2) years after the cause of action arose. 

 
10.7 Assignment. The Agreement shall be binding on the parties and their respective 

successors and permitted assigns. Neither party may assign this Agreement to any third 
party, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other; provided, however, 
Wellmark may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, to any entity that controls, is 
controlled by, or is under common control with Wellmark. Further, Wellmark may, in its 
sole and unfettered discretion, contract with a third party to perform some Administrative 
Services or other of Wellmark’s duties under this Agreement, including, without limitation, 
the subrogation recovery services for Claims Paid. To the extent Wellmark contracts with 
a third party to perform any such services or duties, the term “Wellmark” as used in this 
Agreement shall be deemed to include the contracted third party, as the context so 
requires. 

 
10.8 Waiver. The failure of any party to enforce any terms or provisions of the Agreement shall 

not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of the enforceability of such provision. 
Similarly, the failure to enforce any remedy arising from a default under the terms of the 
Agreement shall not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of such default. Any waiver 
of any provision of this Agreement, and any consent to any departure from the terms of 
any provision of this Agreement, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the 
specific purpose for which made or given. 

 
10.9 Nature of Relationship; Authority of Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement and 

no action taken or omitted to be taken by Account or Wellmark pursuant hereto shall be 
deemed to constitute Account and Wellmark a partnership, an association, a joint venture 
or other entity whatsoever. Wellmark shall at all times be acting as an independent 
contractor under this Agreement. No party has the authority to bind the other in any respect 
whatsoever. 

 
10.10 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the benefit of Account and Wellmark 

and not for any other person. It shall not create any legal relationship between Wellmark 
and any employee, Member, or any other party claiming any right, whether legal or 
equitable, under the terms of this Agreement or of the Plan. 

 
10.11 Notices and Communication. The parties shall be entitled to rely upon any 

communication or notice from the other in connection with this Agreement to be genuine, 
truthful, and accurate, and to have been authorized, signed, or issued by an officer or 
agent of such entity empowered to make such representation on behalf of the entity. 

 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed given when delivered personally, placed in the U.S. mail (postage 
prepaid), delivered to a recognized courier service for delivery (delivery charges prepaid), 
or sent by electronic means and addressed to the last address furnished in writing. Until 
another address is furnished in writing, notice to Account may be addressed to the address 
shown on Exhibit "A" attached to this Agreement. 

 

-147-

Item G.2.d. 



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 29 Version: 10/17 

Notice to Wellmark may be addressed: 
 

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota 
Attention: Procurement and Contracts 
1331 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, Iowa  50309-2901 

 
10.12 State of Issue; Applicable Law; Venue; and Waiver of Jury Trial. This Agreement is 

issued and delivered in the state of Iowa and is performed in Des Moines, Iowa. To the 
extent not superseded by the laws of the United States and without regard to any conflict 
of law rule, this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the 
laws of the state of Iowa. Any action in regard to this Agreement or arising out of the terms 
of this Agreement shall be instituted and litigated in the Iowa District Court or the United 
States District Court located in Des Moines, Polk County, Iowa and no other. ACCOUNT 
AND WELLMARK WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESPECT TO AND IN 
ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, DEMAND OR OTHER 
MATTER WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date first 
stated above. 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ 
 
Print Name:  _____________________ 
 
Title:  ___________________________ 
 

Wellmark of South Dakota, Inc., doing business as 
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South 
Dakota 
 
By:  ______________________________ 
 
David S. Brown 
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 
and Treasurer 
 

 

-148-

Item G.2.d. 



Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

Administrative Services Agreement

Exhibit A

Administrative Fees, Network Access Fees, Other Fees

Account Full Legal Name and Legal Address:

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA  50613-2726

Benefit Plan(s) Administered By:

Rating Period:

The Rating Period begins on 7/01/2018 and ends on 6/30/2019. 

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

The Plan Year begins on 07/01 and ends on 06/30. 

Plan Year:

Administrative Fee:

Health: $38.19 per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on 

last day of billing month (subject to limitations listed under Billing 

and Payment Method below).

Pharmacy Administrative Fee:

per Plan Member per month based on active Plan 

Members on last day of billing month (subject to 

limitations listed under Billing and Payment Method 

          $2.00     

Network Access Fee: per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on 

last day of billing month (subject to limitations listed under Billing 

and Payment Method below).

$8.01

Subject to the terms of the Medical Management and Well -being Consulting Services Exhibit and to the                                      

limitations listed under Billing and Payment Method below.

Medical Management and Well-being Consulting:

For the period beginning on 07/01/2018 and ending on 06/30/2019.

Well-being Services

$3,096.91Per Package    Well-being Package

*Participant means only those individuals who are participating in the respective Medical Management and

Well-being Consulting Services for the applicable month.

379Page 1 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7-149-

Item G.2.d. 



Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

Administrative Services Agreement

Exhibit A

Administrative Fees, Network Access Fees, Other Fees

Account Full Legal Name and Legal Address:

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA  50613-2726

External Review:

External review fees for Independent Review Organizations (IROs), if applicable, will be on a per case 

or per external review basis and all such fees attributable to Members under the Plan shall be billed to 

Account in the amount billed to Wellmark by the IRO.

Subrogation Vendor Fees:

The subrogation recovery vendor(s) retain a service fee calculated as a percentage of the recovered 

amount after deductions for attorneys’ fees and costs. For subrogation cases initiated on or after July 1, 

2016, the subrogation recovery vendor’s service fee is 19.5% of the recovered amount.  This fee is 

subject to change. The final recovered amount received from the vendor is credited to Account. 

Wellmark’s agreement with the subrogation recovery vendor may from time to time allow for the 

application of no vendor service fees to amounts recovered during that period of time.  Any subrogation 

recovery amount obtained by the vendor on behalf of the Account during such time period will be provided 

to Account without application of the vendor service fee.

BlueCard Program-related Fees: 

All BlueCard Program-related fees, including any Access Fees paid to Host Blues and Administrative 

Expense Allowance (“AEA”) Fee, are included in Wellmark’s general Administrative Fee stated above. 

Wellmark has elected to not separately charge any Inter-Plan Arrangement-related fees to Account. The 

general Administrative Fee encompasses fees Wellmark charges to Account for administering Account’s 

benefit plan.  Fees may include both local and Inter-Plan fees. Other BlueCard Program-related fees 

included in the general Administrative Fee include the Central Financial Agency Fee, ITS Transaction 

Fee, Toll-Free Number Fee, PPO Provider Directory Fee, and the Blue Cross Blue Shield Global Coverage 

Fees, if applicable.

Billing and Payment Method:

Wellmark shall notify Account weekly of the total Claims Paid amount for the week.  Account shall 

make payment to Wellmark within forty-eight hours of receipt of the notification.  Wellmark shall bill 

Account monthly for Claims Paid (if any), Administrative Fee, other fees, and reflect the 

payments/credits received.

Limitations:  Any adjustments to Administrative Fee, Network Access Fee, and other fees due to 

membership or eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for the month in which the 

membership or eligibility change is made and shall be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to

the date Wellmark processes the Member eligibility change.

Exhibit A Issue Date: 5/17/2018

379Page 2 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7-150-

Item G.2.d. 



Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit – SF SCH Version: 01/01/2018 
1 

MEDICAL MANAGEMENT AND WELL-BEING CONSULTING SERVICES EXHIBIT 
 

THIS EXHIBIT (“Exhibit”) is attached to and constitutes a part of the Administrative Services 
Agreement by and between Wellmark and Account (the “Administrative Services Agreement”). Any 
capitalized term not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Administrative 
Services Agreement. 
 

I. RECITALS 
 
A. Pursuant to the Administrative Services Agreement, Wellmark provides certain claims administration, 
enrollment, and medical management and well-being consulting services for Account. 
 
B. Wellmark delivers these various medical management and well-being consulting services described in 
Section II of this Exhibit (“Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services”) to Wellmark’s 
Members and other eligible individuals, either directly or through agreements with third-party vendors (the 
“Vendors”) (each, a “Vendor Agreement”). 
 
C. Account desires to obtain, and Wellmark desires to provide, Medical Management and Well-being 
Consulting Services all as further described herein. 

 
II. SERVICES 

 
Wellmark may, at its sole discretion, make certain Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services 
available to Account, the cost for which is included in the Administrative Fee. Wellmark may, at its sole 
discretion, make certain other Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services available for 
Account’s purchase at a fee in addition to the Administrative Fee. Account has signified which Medical 
Management and Well-being Consulting Services it wishes to purchase and such services and fees are stated 
in Exhibit “A”, Administrative Fees, Network Access Fees, Other Fees, to the Administrative Services 
Agreement. In consideration of the Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services to be received 
by Account from Wellmark, Account shall pay to Wellmark the fees, if any, set forth on Exhibit “A” to the 
Administrative Services Agreement. Account acknowledges the fees may change from time to time. 
 
BEWELL 24/7.  BeWell 24/7 is generally comprised of a dedicated toll-free telephone number, available 
twenty four hours per day, seven days per week, three hundred sixty-five days per year, that will be staffed by 
a registered nurse, licensed practical nurse or non-nurse personnel, who assist Members by providing 
information, education, decision-making assistance, advocacy and help in navigating the health care system. 
 
ADVANCED CARE MANAGEMENT.  Advanced Care Management is generally comprised of 
individualized coaching and support to Members with severe or complex conditions. 
 
WELLNESS SERVICES.  If Account’s election includes Wellness Services, which may include any of the 
following: Online Wellness Center and Wellness Assessment; Paper Wellness Assessment; Telephonic Health 
Coaching; Wellness Screenings (biometrics); Tobacco Cessation Coaching; Wellness Challenges; Health 
Program Referrals; or Debit Card Redemption, the following provision applies: Wellness Services are designed 
to help Members reduce lifestyle-related health risk factors and develop healthy behaviors. Wellness Services 
include assessments and behavior change tools meant to help individuals improve health, increase productivity, 
and decrease absenteeism. 
 

 
CONDITION SUPPORT.  If Account’s election includes Condition Support, which may include any of the 
following: Asthma, Coronary Artery Disease (“CAD”), or Diabetes Condition Support Services, the following 

-151-

Item G.2.d. 



Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit – SF SCH Version: 01/01/2018 
2 

 

provision applies: Condition Support Services are generally comprised of the identification of Members with 
conditions that require significant self-care and the rendering of support through coordinated interventions and 
communications. 
 
PREGNANCY SUPPORT.  If Account’s election includes Pregnancy Support (“Pregnancy Support”), the 
following provision applies: Pregnancy Support offers maternity education and personal support for pregnant 
women, and assesses and identifies at-risk or high-risk pregnancies. The goal is for participants to better 
understand and make medical and lifestyle choices that reduce the incidence of pre-term deliveries, low birth-
weight babies, and other pregnancy-related complications. Participants receive educational materials and 
telephone-based counseling with a registered nurse during pregnancy and up to six weeks postpartum.  
 
WELL-BEING CONSULTING SERVICES.  If Account elects Well-being Consulting Services 
(“Consulting Services”), which may include any of the following: Workplace Assessment; Well-being 
Communication Strategy; Well-being Committee Development; Vending and Cafeteria Audit; Employer 
Incentive Design; Customized Well-being Dashboard and Metrics; Community Based Vendor Selection; 
Worksite Policy and Practice Review; Well-being Certification/Accreditation; or Worksite Well-being 
Consulting, the following provision applies: Consulting Services are generally comprised of assisting 
employers with creating well-being solutions or wellness programs at their worksites for their workforce. 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1. Term and Termination. This Exhibit 
shall cover the Medical Management and Well-
being Consulting Services provided to Account 
as set forth in Exhibit “A” to the Administrative 
Services Agreement, effective as of the effective 
date set forth therein. 
 
1.1 Wellmark may terminate this Exhibit or 
any Medical Management and Well-being 
Consulting Services immediately by written 
notice to Account upon the termination or 
expiration of the Administrative Services 
Agreement or any Vendor Agreement or any 
attachment thereunder. 
 
1.2 Wellmark may, at any time, in its 
discretion, terminate this Exhibit in the event of 
Account’s failure to pay when due the fees and 
other amounts payable to Wellmark under this 
Exhibit, where such failure is not cured within ten 
(10) days following Wellmark’s written notice to 
Account specifying such failure. 
 
1.3 This Exhibit may be terminated by 
Wellmark or by Account at any time, with or 
without cause, for any reason or no reason, 
effective thirty (30) days following the 
terminating party giving written notice to the 
other party of its intent to terminate this Exhibit. 
 

2. Representations and Warranties of 
Account. Account hereby represents and 
warrants to Wellmark as follows: 
 
2.1 In the performance of its obligations under 
this Exhibit, Account has the responsibility for 
the design and implementation of its employer-
sponsored wellness program and shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state or local laws and 
regulations, including, without limitation, 
HIPAA, as modified by the Health Information 
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 
Act (“HITECH” Act), as incorporated in the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009, and as modified by the ACA, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended by 
the Americans with Disabilities Amendments 
Act, the Genetic Information Non-Discrimination 
Act, laws and regulations regarding employer-
sponsored wellness programs, and the laws and 
regulations regarding the maintenance and 
confidentiality of health, financial and other 
information and records. Account will only 
access, use and disclose health, financial and 
other information and records in accordance with 
all applicable laws. 
 
2.2 Account will not describe, discuss or 
promote the web portal used in connection with 
the Medical Management and Well-being 

-152-

Item G.2.d. 



 

 
Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit – SF SCH Version: 01/01/2018 

3 

 

Consulting Services (the “Web Portal”) in any 
way that is inconsistent with, or would add to, the 
terms and conditions of use set forth on the Web 
Portal. 
 
3. Performance Level Specifications. 
Wellmark may provide or the Vendor 
Agreements may contain certain performance 
guarantees obligating Wellmark or its Vendors to 
meet the attributes of performance that the 
Medical Management and Well-being Consulting 
Services shall achieve, all as set forth in detail in 
the respective Vendor Agreement or the 
applicable sections of the Performance 
Guarantee Schedule, attached to this Exhibit 
and incorporated by this reference (the 
“Performance Level Specifications” or “PLS”). 
If a Vendor does not achieve a specific PLS, 
pursuant to that Vendor Agreement, Wellmark 
shall be entitled to reimbursement of a specified 
percentage of the fees relating to the Medical 
Management and Well-being Consulting Service 
at issue that are earned by that Vendor under the 
Vendor Agreement (the “PLS Fees”). In turn, for 
those Medical Management and Well-being 
Consulting Services described in Section II, 
above, Wellmark shall reimburse Account either 
its pro-rata share or specific PLS Fees received 
by Wellmark that relate to Medical Management 
and Well-being Consulting Services specifically 
purchased by Account. Further, if Wellmark does 
not achieve a specific PLS for a Medical 
Management and Well-being Consulting Service 
purchased by Account, Wellmark shall reimburse 
Account its pro-rata share of PLS Fees that relate 
to that specific service, all in accordance with the 
Performance Guarantee Schedule to this Exhibit. 
To be eligible to receive reimbursement of any 
PLS Fees, Account must (i) have purchased the 
relevant Medical Management and Well-being 
Consulting Service for all 12 months of the 
relevant program year, and (ii) remain a customer 
of Wellmark through the date Wellmark receives 
PLS Fees relating to Account for the applicable 
time period from its Vendors. Account will not 
receive any PLS Fees for any Medical 
Management and Well-being Consulting 
Services it did not purchase and Account will not 
receive PLS Fees for any Consulting Services 
purchased hereunder. 
 

4. Ownership of Medical Management and 
Well-being Consulting Services. The Medical 
Management and Well-being Consulting 
Services and their content are proprietary to 
Wellmark, the Vendors and their respective 
affiliates or suppliers, as the case may be. Except 
as expressly set forth in this Exhibit, the Medical 
Management and Well-being Consulting 
Services may not be duplicated, modified, 
reproduced, or used for the benefit of any third 
party. Account acknowledges and agrees that it 
does not now own, nor by virtue of this Exhibit 
or the Medical Management and Well-being 
Consulting Services rendered hereunder shall it 
acquire, any right, title or interest in or to the 
Medical Management and Well-being Consulting 
Services or the intellectual property underlying 
such Medical Management and Well-being 
Consulting Services, including, without 
limitation, educational materials, software, 
source code, hardware, technology, content, 
information, know how, forms, policies, 
procedures, manuals, specifications, service 
models, and designs, or any confidential 
information belonging to Wellmark or the 
Vendors or their respective affiliates or suppliers, 
and that all such right, title and interest is and 
shall remain owned by Wellmark, Vendors, or 
their respective affiliates or suppliers, as 
applicable. 
 
5. Changes in Law and Regulations. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Exhibit, if any federal, state or local 
governmental agency or court of competent 
jurisdiction passes, issues, interprets or 
promulgates any law, rule, regulation, standard, 
decision or interpretation (collectively, an “Act”) 
at any time while this Exhibit is in effect that 
prohibits the performance of, or materially 
enlarges, Wellmark’s obligations hereunder, or 
otherwise impairs, restricts, limits or otherwise 
materially and adversely affects Wellmark’s 
rights, benefits, or obligations hereunder, 
Wellmark may give Account notice of intent to 
amend this Exhibit to the reasonable satisfaction 
of Wellmark in order to comply with any such 
Act. 

 
6. Disclaimer of Warranties; Limitation of 
Liability. THE MEDICAL MANAGEMENT 

-153-

Item G.2.d. 



 

 
Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit – SF SCH Version: 01/01/2018 

4 

 

AND WELL-BEING CONSULTING 
SERVICES ARE EDUCATIONAL AND 
INFORMATIONAL TOOLS ONLY AND DO 
NOT CONSTITUTE CLINICAL SERVICES. 
EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN 
THIS EXHIBIT, WELLMARK DOES NOT 
MAKE AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY 
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF 
ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, REGARDING THE 
MEDICAL MANAGEMENT AND WELL-
BEING CONSULTING SERVICES, THEIR 
ABILITY TO REDUCE COSTS OR IMPROVE 
OUTCOMES. WELLMARK IS NOT 
RESPONSIBLE FOR DATA INACCURACIES 
IN THE SOURCE DATA PROVIDED BY 
ACCOUNT OR MEMBERS. IN NO EVENT 
SHALL WELLMARK BE LIABLE FOR 
INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, OR SPECIAL 
DAMAGES, LOSS OF DATA OR LOST 
PROFITS, EVEN IF WELLMARK HAS BEEN 
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH 
DAMAGES. WELLMARK’S AGGREGATE 
MONETARY LIABILITY TO ACCOUNT OR 
ITS MEMBERS OR AFFILIATES UNDER 
THIS EXHIBIT AND WITH RESPECT TO 
THE MEDICAL MANAGEMENT AND 
WELL-BEING CONSULTING SERVICES 
FURNISHED HEREUNDER (WHETHER 
UNDER CONTRACT, TORT, OR ANY 
OTHER THEORY OF LAW OR EQUITY) 
SHALL NOT EXCEED, UNDER ANY 
CIRCUMSTANCES, THE FEES PAID BY 
ACCOUNT TO WELLMARK FOR THE 
MEDICAL MANAGEMENT AND WELL-
BEING CONSULTING SERVICES UNDER 
THIS EXHIBIT DURING THE ONE (1) YEAR 
PERIOD PRECEDING THE CLAIM, LESS 
THE AMOUNT OF ANY PLS FEES 
REIMBURSED TO ACCOUNT DURING 
THAT TIME. THE FOREGOING 
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY REPRESENTS 
THE ALLOCATION OF RISK BETWEEN THE 
PARTIES AS REFLECTED IN THE PRICING 
HEREUNDER AND IS AN ESSENTIAL 
ELEMENT OF THE BASIS OF THE BARGAIN 
BETWEEN THE PARTIES. 
 

HEALTH INFORMATION PROVIDED BY 
WELLMARK OR THROUGH ITS VENDORS 
OR THEIR AFFILIATES IS BASED ON 
MEDICAL LITERATURE. HOWEVER, USE 
OF SUCH INFORMATION IS NOT 
INTENDED TO REPLACE PROFESSIONAL 
MEDICAL ADVICE AND CARE FROM A 
HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONAL. THE 
HEALTH INFORMATION IS INTENDED TO 
HELP PEOPLE MAKE BETTER HEALTH 
CARE DECISIONS AND TAKE GREATER 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR OWN 
HEALTH, BUT MAY NOT RESULT IN 
ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT OF THESE 
GOALS. ACCOUNT EXPRESSLY 
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT 
WELLMARK IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR 
THE RESULTS OF ITS MEMBERS’ USE OF 
SUCH INFORMATION, INCLUDING, BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO, MEMBERS CHOOSING 
TO SEEK OR NOT TO SEEK PROFESSIONAL 
MEDICAL CARE, EMERGENCY CARE, OR 
MEMBERS CHOOSING OR NOT CHOOSING 
SPECIFIC TREATMENT. 
 

-154-

Item G.2.d. 



*Reported at the Wellmark Corporate level
Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit Schedule Version 01/01/2018
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7 

Performance Guarantee Schedule  
to  

Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit 

Condition Support 

Condition Support requires a minimum purchase period of 12 months of the relevant program year. Account must 
remain a customer of Wellmark through the date Wellmark determines performance guarantee credits relating to 
Account for the applicable time period. The following measures are tracked at the Wellmark Corporate level and not 
at the Account level. 

Type of Guarantee Measure Target 
Performance Weight 

PLS Fees (Satisfaction)* Participant satisfaction on a 10 point scale 7 or greater 10.00% 

PLS Fees (Service)* For high- and moderate-risk members with a valid phone 
number: 
Overall member engagement rate (percent of identified 
members who agree to participate in the program) 

45.00% 10.00% 

Maximum Condition Support Fees at Risk for the Program 20.00% 

Pregnancy Support 

Pregnancy Support requires a minimum purchase period of 12 months of the relevant program year. Account must 
remain a customer of Wellmark through the date Wellmark determines performance guarantee credits relating to 
Account for the applicable time period. The following measures are tracked at the Wellmark Corporate level and not at 
the Account level. 

Type of Guarantee Measure Target 
Performance Weight 

PLS Fees (Satisfaction)* Participant satisfaction on a 10 point scale 7 or greater 10.00% 

PLS Fees (Service)* For those members with a valid phone number: 
Overall member engagement rate (percent of identified 
members that agree to participate in the program) 

45.00% 10.00% 

Maximum Pregnancy Support Fees at Risk for the Program 20.00% 

-155-

Item G.2.d. 



*Reported at the Wellmark Corporate level
** Reported at the Account level 

Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services Exhibit Schedule version 01/01/2018
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7 

Online Wellness Center and Wellness Assessment 

Online Wellness Center and Wellness Assessment requires a minimum purchase period of 12 months of the relevant program 
year. Account must remain a customer of Wellmark through the date Wellmark determines performance guarantee credits 
relating to Account for the applicable time period. The following measures are tracked at the Wellmark Corporate level and 
not at the Account level. 

Type of Guarantee Measure Target Performance Weight 
PLS Fees 

(Availability)* 
Average availability of webpage as measured by 
timeliness of loading.  

99.00% - 99.49% 
98.50% - 98.99% 
98.00% - 98.49% 
97.50% - 97.99% 

< 97.50% 

2.00% 
4.00% 
6.00% 
8.00% 

10.00% 
PLS Fees (Average 
Response Time)* 

Average response time calculated from when a 
webpage is requested until the first byte is returned. 

5.01 -  6.00 seconds 
6.01 – 7.00 seconds 
7 .01 – 8.00 seconds 
8.01 – 9.00 seconds 

> 9.00 seconds 

1.00% 
2.00% 
3.00% 
4.00% 
5.00% 

PLS Fees (Eligible 
Individual 

Satisfaction)*  

Satisfaction as measured annually by a user survey. 75.00% - 79.99% 
70.00% - 74.99% 

< 70.00%   

1.00% 
2.00% 
3.00% 

Maximum Online Wellness Center and Wellness Assessment Program Fees at Risk for the Program 10.00% 

Telephonic Health Coaching 
Telephonic Health Coaching requires a minimum purchase period of 12 months of the relevant program year. Account must 
remain a customer of Wellmark through the date Wellmark determines performance guarantee credits relating to Account 
for the applicable time period. This guarantee requires that Health Coaching is triggered immediately following Wellness 
Assessment completion, that 60% of the Wellness Assessment participants in one year complete a Wellness Assessment in 
the subsequent year, and that a minimum of 500 participants are enrolled in and complete Telephonic Health Coaching per 
coaching protocol purchased (high, moderate, low). Performance guarantee calculations apply only to individuals identified 
as eligible who have participated for 10 full months. The following measures are tracked at the Account level. 

Type of Guarantee Measure Target 
Performance Weight 

PLS Fees 
(Enrollment in 

Program)** 

Of those individuals identified as eligible for the 
Telephonic Health Coaching based upon completion of 
Wellness Assessments, at least 45% will enroll as 
participants in the program. 

40.00% - 44.99% 
35.00% - 39.99% 

<35.00% 

1.00% 
2.00% 
3.00% 

PLS Fees 
(Satisfaction)** 

Satisfaction measure is based upon Telephonic Health 
Coaching participants who have completed at least two 
coaching sessions and who have completed a satisfaction 
survey with a 5 point scale.  “1” = very dissatisfied and 
“5” = very satisfied.  Target average score is 4.0 out of 
5.0.  This satisfaction guarantee requires a minimum of 
300 survey participants. 

3.50 – 3.99 
3.00 - 3.49 

<3.00 

1.00% 
2.50% 
4.00% 

PLS Fees (Risk 
Mitigation)** 

At least 50% of Telephonic Health Coaching high- and 
moderate-risk participants who complete telephonic 
coaching will migrate to a lower risk level in at least one 
of the 12 modifiable risk factors as measured by 
subsequent year Wellness Assessment results.  The 
modifiable risk factors are weight, blood pressure, 
cholesterol, blood sugar, nutrition, tobacco use, emotional 
health, stress, alcohol use, exercise, preventive screening 
and sleep. 

40.00% - 49.99% 
<40.00% 

2.50% 
5.00% 

Maximum Telephonic Health Coaching Fees at Risk for the Program 10.00% 

-156-

Item G.2.d. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Brenda Balvanz, Personnel Specialist 

 DATE: June 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY19 Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield Group Insurance Policy 
  for City’s Blue Dental Plan    
    
 
Attached for your approval is the Group Insurance Policy that will be applicable to the City’s 
fully insured Blue Dental plan to be administered by Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield 
beginning July 1, 2018.    If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact 
Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 
 
Attachment 
 

-157-

Item G.2.e. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Form Number: IA WBCBSI LG FI SS Version: 10/17 
 
  

 
 
 

G R O U P  I N S U R A N C E  P O L I C Y  
 

  

issued by 
 
 
 

WELLMARK BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD OF IOWA 
 
 

-159-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 1 Version: 10/17 

 
GROUP INSURANCE POLICY 

 
 THIS GROUP INSURANCE POLICY (herein “Agreement”) is issued by Wellmark, Inc., 
doing business as Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Iowa, an Iowa mutual insurance 
company, (herein “Wellmark”) to Account. 
 

RECITALS 
 
1. Account is the plan sponsor of either a small group health plan or a large group health 

plan within the meaning of and in accordance with applicable federal or state law for its 
common law employees and other eligible individuals and this Agreement is issued to 
Account as the "group policyholder". 

 
2. Account desires that Wellmark provide group health insurance and services for its small 

group health plan or large group health plan and Wellmark is willing to provide such 
insurance and services subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1  
AGREEMENT DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1 “Affordable Care Act” or “ACA” means the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, 

enacted March 23, 2010, and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act, as 
amended, (collectively, “ACA”), including implementing regulations. 

 
1.2 “Agreement” means this Group Insurance Policy, including any schedules, Exhibits, 

Benefits Document(s), amendments, employer contribution information form, Plan 
Member enrollment form(s), and any COBRA Administrative Services Agreement or 
Addendum. 

 
1.3 “Benefits Document” means the written document(s) made available to Members that 

describe and define the terms, benefits, and limitations of the Plan and may be titled 
Benefits Certificate, Coverage Manual, or something similar. Account may at its option 
incorporate the Benefits Document into its ERISA Summary Plan Description (SPD).  

 
1.4 “Claims Paid” means the dollar amount of Wellmark’s payment for Incurred Claims. 
 
1.5 “COBRA” means the group health coverage continuation provisions of the Consolidated 

Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, including implementing 
regulations and similar state or federal laws. 

 
1.6 “Confidential Information” means all non-public confidential or proprietary information, 

in any form, delivered or made available (whether pursuant to this Agreement or 
otherwise) by one party or its affiliates, directors, officers, employees and agents (the 
“Disclosing Party”) to the other party, its affiliates, directors, officers, employees and 
agents (the “Receiving Party”). Confidential Information shall include, but not be limited 
to, employee, Plan Member, and Member information (including names, addresses and 
Social Security numbers), Protected Health Information, personally identifiable 
information, medical records, Plan claims data, and payment data. Any information with 

-160-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 2 Version: 10/17 

respect to Wellmark’s systems, procedures, methodologies and practices used by it in 
connection with claims processing, claims payment or utilization management, together 
with the fees, terms, payment arrangements, discounts with providers, and related 
information shall be deemed to be Wellmark Confidential Information. Confidential 
Information shall not include information which (a), at the time of disclosure, is available 
to the general public; (b) becomes at a later date available to the general public through 
no fault of Receiving Party and then only after such later date; (c) Receiving Party can 
demonstrate was in its possession before receipt from Disclosing Party; (d) Receiving 
Party can demonstrate was independently developed; or (e) is disclosed to Receiving 
Party without restriction on disclosure by a third party who has the lawful right to disclose 
such information. 

 
1.7 “Covered Charges” means the dollar amount a health care provider bills a Member or 

Wellmark for Covered Services in accordance with the terms of the Benefits Document. 
 
1.8 “Covered Services” means the medically necessary health care services provided to a 

Member as described in and covered by the applicable Benefits Document. 
 
1.9 “Effective Date” means the date (beginning at 12:01 a.m., local time) specified on the 

group enrollment forms signed by the Account. This Agreement supersedes any prior 
Agreement issued by Wellmark to Account for the Plan. 

 
1.10 “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, 

including implementing regulations. 
 
1.11 “Grandfathered Health Plan or Non-Grandfathered Health Plan” mean the same as 

such terms are used in ACA. 
 
1.12 “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as 

amended, including implementing regulations. 
 
1.13 “Host Blue” means the local Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield plan or licensee in a 

geographic area outside of the Wellmark service area. 
 
1.14 “Incurred Claims” means claims for payment of health care services that are provided to 

Members pursuant to the Plan with a date of service within the period of time this 
Agreement is in effect. 

 
1.15 “Incurred Date” means the date health care services are provided to Members. With 

regard to inpatient hospital or facility services, the date of the Member's admission to the 
facility is considered as the Incurred Date. 

 
1.16 “Maximum Allowable Fee” means a dollar amount Wellmark establishes using various 

methodologies for Covered Services and supplies. For medical services, this amount is 
developed from various sources, such as charges billed for the same service or supply by 
most health care providers within Iowa, economic indicators, or relative value indices 
developed or approved by Wellmark, and is based on the simplicity or complexity of the 
service provided. For medical services received outside of Iowa or South Dakota, the 
Maximum Allowable Fee is either determined in accordance with the section of this 
Agreement entitled Out-of-Area Services or is the amount as described in the preceding 
sentence. 

-161-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 3 Version: 10/17 

 
For all dental procedures covered under this Agreement, the fee schedule is developed 
based on Wellmark’s contracts with dentists, input from its dental consultants, and the 
charges billed for the same procedure by dentists in Iowa. 

 
1.17 “Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services” means health 

management and wellness services Wellmark may provide to Members designed to 
encourage good health and help them make decisions about health care. These services 
may include, but are not limited to, BeWell 24/7, condition support, pregnancy support, 
advanced care management, or other programs. 

 
1.18 “Member” means a person, including a Plan Member’s spouse or eligible dependent 

children, who is eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the terms of the Plan 
as determined and identified by Account, and as accepted by Wellmark. 

 
1.19 “Plan” means the group health plan or plans established, sponsored and maintained by 

Account, the terms of which are described in the applicable Benefits Document. 
 
1.20 “Plan Member” means a common law employee or other individual identified by Account 

as a person eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the Plan subject to the 
terms, conditions, and limitations described in the Plan documents and who is the 
applicant on a completed enrollment form that has been provided to and accepted by 
Wellmark. 

 
1.21 “Plan Year” means, for the purpose of implementing ACA requirements, either the twelve 

month period commencing on the Effective Date of Account health plan’s annual renewal 
with Wellmark or an alternative twelve month period, as designated by Account and 
communicated to Wellmark. In the event that Wellmark has not received the Plan Year 
designation from Account, the Plan Year is determined in accordance with the following: 
 
a. The deductible/limit year used under the Plan; 

 
b. If the Plan does not impose deductibles or limits on a yearly basis, the plan year is 

the policy year; 
 

c. If the Plan does not impose deductibles or limits on a yearly basis, and either the 
Plan is not insured or the insurance policy is not renewed on an annual basis, the 
plan year is Account’s taxable year; or 

 
d. In any other case, the plan year is the calendar year. 

 
1.22 “Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means the same as the term “protected health 

information” in 45 CFR §160.103. 
 

ARTICLE 2  
RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACCOUNT 

 
2.1 Group Health Plan Compliance. Account is the plan administrator and plan sponsor of 

the Plan for purposes of this Agreement and applicable law, and is responsible for group 

-162-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 4 Version: 10/17 

health plan design and compliance. Account will exercise its responsibilities in the time 
required by law and has full responsibility for all of the following: 

 
a. Maintaining the Plan as either a small group health plan or a large group health 

plan and notifying Wellmark of changes in Plan size; determining Plan design; 
 

b. Determining eligibility criteria for Members subject to certain Wellmark enrollment 
and underwriting guidelines, including the requirements for locations or Members 
located outside of Iowa; Account is responsible for enrolling and canceling 
individuals in the Plan in accordance with such criteria and agrees to terminate 
coverage for ineligible individuals; 

 
c. Designating the Plan Year for the Plan; 

 
d. Complying with all applicable laws, reporting and disclosure requirements, 

including specifically, (i) preparing and furnishing Members with Plan documents 
or notices as may be required by law, including the summary of benefits and 
coverage (“SBC”), any notice of material modification, employer notice of the 
availability of coverage options under the health insurance marketplace, and 
applicable HIPAA notices relating to health coverage portability such as the 
Special Enrollment Notice. Account will also make available to Members on 
request the uniform glossary of insurance-related terms; (ii) complying with any 
applicable non-discrimination laws; and (iii) furnishing any notices and 
requirements with regard to COBRA continuation coverage. Account's 
responsibilities for COBRA administration requirements may be delegated to 
Wellmark, but only to the extent expressly specified and agreed upon with 
Wellmark in a COBRA Administrative Services Agreement or Addendum;  

 
e. Delivering or making available Benefits Document(s), and Provider directories if 

applicable, to Plan Members; 
 

f. Providing to Wellmark written notice of benefit selections, limitations, and 
exclusions, changes in the benefits or Plan size at renewal, or material 
modifications at any time during the Plan Year. Account shall provide such 
notice(s) in the time and manner required by Wellmark to fulfill the issuance of 
SBCs, preparation of Benefits Documents, or issuance of other required notices 
within the time required by law; 

 
g. If the coverage of any Plan Member or Member is terminated retroactively, Account 

represents that it either has not collected any premium contribution from the 
retroactively terminated Member, or has refunded any premium contribution to the 
retroactively terminated Member, for the period following the effective date of the 
termination; 

 
h. Payment of any state premium tax, use tax, health insurer fee, or similar tax, or 

any similar benefit or Plan-related charge, tax, surcharge or assessment, however 
denominated, that may be assessed on the Plan or related to the administration of 
the Plan, including any penalties and interest payable with respect thereto; 

 
i. Compliance with any income and employment tax withholding, depositing, and 

reporting obligations (including state or federal income tax withholding, FICA tax 

-163-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 5 Version: 10/17 

withholding, employer, FUTA taxes, and Form W-2 wage reporting) applicable to 
rewards incentives or value-added benefits that may be provided under this 
employer-sponsored group health plan to Members covered under the Plan. 
Account is responsible for including the value of any such incentives or value-
added benefits as reported by Wellmark to Account in the applicable employees’ 
wages for federal or state income tax, employment tax, and Form W-2 reporting 
purposes; and 

 
j. If the Account has a Grandfathered Health Plan, Account shall provide Wellmark 

with written notice, at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective date, of any change 
in the employer contribution information or any other information that may impact 
the Grandfathered Health Plan determination. Upon any renewal of this 
Agreement, Account shall provide a written representation to Wellmark regarding 
Account’s contribution rate for the Plan Year covered by the renewal. 

 
2.2 Payment of Premium; Automatic Funds Withdrawal; Interest Charges on Late 

Payments.  
 

a. Wellmark shall bill Account and Account agrees to pay to Wellmark, at Wellmark’s 
office, in advance and when due, the full premium amounts billed for Members’ 
health coverage. Such payment may be made by wire transfer, check, electronic 
(ebilling) payment, or automatic funds withdrawal and must be received in 
Wellmark's offices before 2:00 p.m. Central Time on the due date. If Account elects 
automatic funds withdrawal, it shall execute the necessary authorization. Any 
portion of the premium that is deducted from Plan Members’ wages, salaries or 
commissions, as authorized by such Plan Members, shall be held by Account and 
shall be promptly delivered to Wellmark. 

 
b. If Account elects to authorize automatic funds withdrawal from a deposit account, 

the automatic withdrawal shall change periodically to correspond with the 
applicable premium, service fee, and any other applicable taxes or fees. Account’s 
authorization for automatic funds withdrawal shall include authorization for 
automatic withdrawal of any changed amount unless Account calls or provides its 
bank with written notice not less than three (3) business days before a scheduled 
withdrawal to stop the payment. If Account calls its bank to stop payment, Account 
may be required to provide a written request within fourteen (14) days after the 
call. Account will be responsible for any fee assessed by its bank for stop-payment 
orders made by Account. 

 
c. If the Account fails to make premium payments in full when due, Wellmark may 

terminate this Agreement as provided in Section 7.4, Termination for Nonpayment 
of Premium, and premiums shall include an interest charge on the current premium 
from the due date until payment is made in full at the then current prime rate as 
published periodically in the Midwest edition of The Wall Street Journal plus two 
percent (2%). Late fees are calculated on the entire premium amount due 
regardless of any partial payments. If Account's payment is returned for insufficient 
funds Wellmark reserves the right to impose additional fees. The acceptance by 
Wellmark of any late premium payments or partial payments shall not constitute a 
waiver of any rights under this Agreement. If Account fails to make payments when 
due for two or more consecutive months, Wellmark may impose additional late 
fees of up to eighteen percent (18%) per annum. 

-164-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 6 Version: 10/17 

 
 
2.3 Enrollment Information; Account Size; Social Security Number Reporting; 

Information Requirements.  
 

a. Account agrees to furnish Wellmark with reports, data, and information, including 
but not limited to, the number of employees for purposes of determining group size, 
eligibility, enrollment information, physical home address, and Social Security 
number for each Member, benefit selection or benefit changes for the Plan, and 
information necessary for the administration of the Plan. Account shall provide all 
such information in a time, form, format, and manner required by Wellmark and is 
responsible for the timeliness, integrity, retention, and accuracy of information and 
records provided to Wellmark. Account represents to Wellmark that it has 
accurately reported the average number of full-time, part-time, and seasonal 
employees it employed on business days during the preceding calendar year 
regardless of eligibility for the Plan. 

 
b. Account acknowledges that IRS Form 1095-B must be provided annually to 

Members and to the IRS. To accomplish correct reporting, Account shall provide 
to Wellmark in the time and manner requested the Account’s legal name, Employer 
Identification Number (“EIN”), and the names and Social Security numbers of all 
Plan Members and Members. Account’s failure to provide the required information 
may result in tax penalties including a $50 penalty per violation. 

 
c. Wellmark shall be entitled to rely upon such information in determining any 

person’s rights to benefits under the Plan, in determining the availability or 
renewability of health plans that may be offered to Account, in making required 
filings with state or federal government agencies, and in discharging its 
responsibilities under this Agreement. Account recognizes the importance to the 
successful provision of the administrative services the timely, accurate, and 
complete reporting of the information set forth in this section and should that 
reporting be inaccurate, untimely, or incomplete, Wellmark shall not be responsible 
for the provision of the administrative services affected by such inaccuracy or 
delay. 

 
d. Eligibility or enrollment information shall be provided to Wellmark in a standard 

medium and layout using Wellmark’s proprietary format, the HIPAA ANSI 834 
standard format, or an application such as BluesEnroll, unless the parties agree in 
writing to a non-standard format or application. Account acknowledges that it may 
be responsible for additional fees if it uses a non-standard format or if Wellmark is 
required to perform a comparison study of the full eligibility file. 

 
2.4 Account Representation regarding Eligibility; Notice of Persons Eligible for 

Coverage; Changes in Eligibility. Account represents to Wellmark that the terms of any 
eligibility criteria, conditions, and/or waiting period imposed under the Plan are, and shall 
be for so long as this Agreement is in effect, in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations, including specifically, the prohibition on excessive waiting periods and 
applicable provisions on non-discrimination. Account shall enroll persons eligible for 
coverage in the Plan in advance of each person’s effective date of coverage and shall 
provide Wellmark with each person’s name, Plan selection, Social Security number, and 
other required identifying information. Account shall provide all initial enrollment 

-165-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 7 Version: 10/17 

information in advance of the Effective Date of this Agreement. As new persons become 
eligible, or as eligibility changes occur, including any special enrollment events that require 
a person to be offered coverage or changed to a different enrollment status such as 
COBRA, Account shall provide Wellmark with updated required information as such 
changes occur. Account shall provide Wellmark with enrollment updates no less often than 
weekly and in advance of the effective date of the change if possible. Account's delay in 
providing eligibility changes more than three (3) months following the effective date of the 
change shall delay the requested effective date of coverage for the person and may cause 
Incurred Claims not to be paid. 

 
2.5 Notice of Persons Terminated or No Longer Eligible for Coverage; Account’s 

Liability for Premiums or Claims Paid for Ineligible Individuals. Account shall notify 
Wellmark of each person’s termination or ineligibility for coverage under the Plan in 
advance, but in no event no later than three (3) months following the requested date of 
coverage termination. No requested coverage termination shall be effective any earlier 
than three (3) months prior to the date Wellmark receives the required notice from 
Account. If Incurred Claims prior to the date Wellmark is notified of the coverage 
termination have been paid and are not recouped, Account shall be responsible for the 
monthly premium or the Claims Paid. For Claims Paid prior to the date Wellmark is notified 
of the coverage termination related to pharmacy services or supplies, Account shall pay 
the monthly premium or the amount of the Claims Paid. For Claims Paid prior to the date 
Wellmark is notified of the coverage termination for all other services or supplies, Wellmark 
shall, at its election, (a) attempt to recoup such payments from the individual or the 
involved provider, unless Wellmark determines recoupment is not feasible under the 
circumstances, or extends beyond an eighteen (18) month recoupment period; or (b) bill 
Account for the monthly premium for the individual and Account shall pay the amount due 
to Wellmark. 

 
2.6 Medicare Secondary Payer (“MSP”). Federal law mandates coordination of health care 

benefits in certain instances where a Member is covered under both a group health plan 
and Medicare. Proper coordination of benefits in this context depends on obtaining and 
maintaining accurate and timely information regarding such dual health coverage. 
Pursuant to contract and applicable law, Wellmark provides information to Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) regarding such dual health coverage for 
Members and Account enrollment on a quarterly or more frequent basis. 

 
In the event Account does not timely provide to Wellmark information requested by 
Wellmark regarding Account’s size and status and Employer Identification Number 
(“EIN”)(s), or does not gather and timely provide information to Wellmark concerning the 
Medicare enrollment of Members, Account enrollment, and related information (including, 
without limitation, Member Social Security numbers), or such other information as 
requested by Wellmark for inclusion on the Confirmation of MSP form submissions and 
other disclosures, Account shall be solely responsible for non-compliance with MSP laws 
and other requirements, including, without limitation, any damages, losses, taxes, interest 
charges, and administrative penalties (including, without limitation, any civil money 
penalties) that may be assessed or otherwise result in connection therewith (including, 
without limitation, any claims by Members, providers or other claimants), and mistaken 
payments to CMS on behalf of Medicare enrolled Members. 

 
2.7 Grandfathered Health Plan Representation. In the event Account is being issued a new 

Agreement by Wellmark and the Plan is to be treated by Wellmark as a Grandfathered 

-166-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 8 Version: 10/17 

Health Plan, Account represents and warrants to Wellmark that (a) its prior health plan 
coverage was, immediately prior to termination of such coverage, a Grandfathered Health 
Plan, and (b) the Plan will include no changes that will result in loss of treatment as a 
Grandfathered Health Plan as of the Effective Date. 

 
ARTICLE 3  

WELLMARK’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3.1 Determination of Claims; Administrative Services. During the Term of this Agreement 

and subject to Account’s payment to Wellmark, when due, of the premiums and other fees 
for coverage, Wellmark shall provide the health insurance coverage and administrative 
services as specified in this section as follows: 

 
a. Wellmark shall provide Account with Benefits Document(s) setting forth the 

insurance protection, benefits, terms and conditions of the Plan for delivery to Plan 
Members; 

 
b. Wellmark shall provide access to a network(s) of health care providers and shall 

make information about the network and network providers available to Members; 
 

c. Wellmark shall prepare, print, and deliver identification cards to Plan Members; 
 

d. Wellmark will perform its administrative services and retain records regarding such 
administrative services in compliance with applicable laws, including, but not 
limited to, applicable provisions on non-discrimination; 

 
e. Wellmark shall provide or make available to Account forms of ACA or HIPAA 

required notices, including the summary of benefits and coverage (“SBC”) and 
applicable HIPAA notices relating to health coverage portability such as the 
Special Enrollment Notice. Wellmark shall make available the uniform glossary of 
insurance-related terms; 

 
f. Wellmark shall determine benefits and process Incurred Claims for health services 

furnished Members in accordance with the terms, limitations and conditions set 
forth in the Plan, the Benefits Document(s), this Agreement, applicable laws and 
regulations, the terms of the applicable provider agreements, and the claims 
administration and medical policies of Wellmark, all of which may be revised from 
time to time. Processing of claims includes payment and reporting of benefits to 
providers or Members, coordination of benefits, and the monitoring, detection, and 
investigation of potentially abusive or fraudulent claims submitted by providers or 
Members. Wellmark reserves the right to terminate individuals from the Plan that 
it has determined are ineligible for coverage. Except as provided in Sections 2.4 
and 2.5 of this Agreement, Wellmark shall not be required to reprocess claims as 
a result of any changes made to information relating to a Member or the Member's 
benefits; 

 
g. Wellmark shall maintain a single-level internal appeal procedure for Members to 

appeal adverse benefit determinations and shall have a process for responding to 
external review requests of final internal adverse benefit determinations, in 
accordance with applicable Plan and regulatory requirements; and 

 

-167-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 9 Version: 10/17 

h. Wellmark shall exercise its discretion to make determinations in connection with 
the administration of this Agreement and the Plan including, without limitation, 
determinations regarding whether health care services are medically necessary in 
accordance with Plan terms or whether charges for health care services are 
reasonable. Wellmark shall make determinations that are not arbitrary or 
capricious and such determinations shall be final and conclusive to the extent 
permitted by this Agreement, the terms of the Benefits Document, and by law. 

 
3.2 Medical Management and Well-being Consulting Services. Wellmark may, at its sole 

discretion, offer or arrange for various Medical Management and Well-being Consulting 
Services to be available to Members for no additional cost. Account may, at its option, 
elect to purchase additional services. Medical Management and Well-being Consulting 
Services may be changed, replaced, or discontinued from time to time and may be 
modified or removed at any time without notice or amendment of this Agreement. 

 
3.3 Value-Added Services; Identity Protection. Wellmark, at its sole discretion, may offer 

or arrange for value-added services or benefits for Account and its Members, including, 
for example, Member Identity Protection services from a third-party vendor. Identity 
Protection services are offered at no additional charge to Account or Members. Account 
may at its option accept or reject Identity Protection services for its Members. 

 
3.4 Change of Premium. The premium rates are effective as of the Effective Date, provided, 

however, that premiums or other fees may be changed by Wellmark at any time during 
the Term upon thirty (30) days written notice to Account. Premium rates will be changed 
at renewal. Any premium changes will be reflected on Account's monthly bill. 

 
ARTICLE 4  

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; REPORTING; EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
 
4.1 Protected Health Information. Account and Wellmark shall not disclose or use Members' 

Protected Health Information except in accordance with applicable law including, when 
required, receipt of proper authorization from the individual involved. 

 
4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. All information and data collected or 

developed by Wellmark related to claims, cost, utilization, outcomes, quality, and financial 
performance of the Plan in connection with this Agreement shall be referred to as “Data”. 
Without limiting the foregoing, the term “Data” includes any claims, payment, and pricing 
information relating to, but not limited to, Medical Management and Well-being Consulting 
Services, and pharmacy benefits provided by Wellmark, its vendors, or its pharmacy 
benefits manager(s) to Account. Wellmark may provide Account with reports derived from 
the Data. In recognition of the fact the Data may contain confidential, proprietary, or 
personally identifiable financial or health information, including Protected Health 
Information, the following additional provisions apply to Data that is not de-identified: 

 
a. The Data shall be used solely for payment and health care operations and shall 

not be disclosed or otherwise made available to any entity or person except those 
value-based programs, health care providers, business associates, employees, or 
agents who have a legitimate need to have knowledge of the Data or as otherwise 
permitted by law; 

 

-168-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 10 Version: 10/17 

b. Safeguards shall be adopted by the parties as necessary to ensure that such Data 
remains confidential; and 

 
c. Employees and agents of the parties shall be instructed regarding the penalties for 

unauthorized disclosures of the Data, not to use the Data except to the extent 
required by the employee's or agent's job, and to use the Data only as allowed by 
law. 

 
4.3 Wellmark’s Right to Use Confidential Information. Wellmark shall have the right to de-

identify or remove direct identifiers from the Confidential Information so that it no longer 
constitutes Protected Health Information, and so that such Confidential Information is no 
longer identifiable with respect to Account, and to aggregate such de-identified 
Confidential Information for any purpose whatsoever; provided that such use is in 
accordance with all applicable laws, including but not limited to HIPAA. Such Confidential 
Information, after it is de-identified or limited pursuant to HIPAA, shall no longer be subject 
to Section 4.2 and shall thereafter be Wellmark’s property. 

 
4.4 Right to Examine Records. Wellmark or its authorized representative may at its own 

expense examine the financial, enrollment, and claims records of Account reasonably 
related to the administration of this Agreement, as reasonably often as Wellmark deems 
appropriate, to reconcile enrollment information and records, to determine whether 
Account can make the payments required by this Agreement, or to determine payment of 
benefits under the Plan. Such examination shall be conducted during regular business 
hours, upon reasonable advance written notice. The examination period may cover the 
most recent twenty-four (24) months only, if applicable. 

 
4.5 Website Access and Reporting. Wellmark may provide Account while this Agreement is 

in force with secured access to Wellmark’s website, web-based applications, or other 
electronic databases with respect to the Plan and Members for the purpose of Plan 
administration and health care operations, reporting, billing, or for self-service. Web-based 
applications or databases with Member and Plan specific Confidential Information may be 
hosted or supported by third parties on Wellmark's behalf. If Account or a third party acting 
on Account's behalf accesses such websites or information, Account is subject to and 
agrees to all of the terms and conditions, including the confidentiality requirements of this 
Agreement, and security restrictions and user requirements as established by Wellmark 
with respect to such access, as such terms are set forth in the applicable Terms and 
Conditions posted at Wellmark's website (Wellmark.com). 

 
4.6 Survival. Any obligations of either party to the other under this Article of the Agreement 

survive any termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 5  
PROVIDER PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS; REBATES; VALUE-BASED PROGRAMS 

 
5.1 Provider Payment Arrangements. Wellmark will be responsible for negotiating and 

entering into separate payment arrangements with health care providers. Such provider 
payment arrangements and agreements shall apply to services by such providers for all 
Members entitled to benefits under plans insured or administered by Wellmark, including 
Members under this Plan. 

 

-169-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 11 Version: 10/17 

Wellmark shall determine, in its sole discretion, the payment arrangements with health 
care providers including, without limitation, the Maximum Allowable Fees for Incurred 
Claims. Without limiting the foregoing, Wellmark may compensate providers pursuant to 
a variety of payment arrangements, including the following: 

 
a. Fee for service arrangements, including, without limitation, per diem and percent 

of charge arrangements; 
 

b. Fixed fee or other payment methodology that is based on pre-determined criteria; 
or 

 
c. Episode of care arrangements under which payment is based on a pre-established 

rate for a health care encounter, including, without limitation, a hospital stay or 
outpatient visit. In the event such an arrangement is utilized, consistent with the 
methodology established by Wellmark for such arrangement, Wellmark is not 
required to impose cost share responsibility on Members for each Covered Service 
Members receive. An episode of care arrangement payment may cover both 
Covered Services and non-Covered Services that are incidental to the Covered 
Services. 

 
5.2 Non-Contracting or Non-Network Providers. If the applicable Benefits Document 

provides benefits for Covered Services rendered by health care providers that have not 
contracted with Wellmark or another Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plan (“Non-Contracting 
Providers”), Members may be liable to Non-Contracting Providers for any difference 
between the Covered Charges and the Maximum Allowable Fee and Members are 
responsible for paying the provider in full. 

 
5.3 Premium Rebates. In the event federal or state law requires Wellmark to pay Account or 

Plan Members a rebate for a portion of the annual premium payment, Wellmark will pay 
the Account the total rebate amount applicable to Account. In accordance with applicable 
law, the Account shall use the portion of the rebates attributable to the amount of 
premiums paid by Plan Members, if any, for the exclusive benefit of Plan Members so that 
the Plan Members receive the benefit of the rebates. The Plan Member portion of the 
rebates may be used to reduce the Plan Members' portion of the premiums in subsequent 
years or provided as a cash refund or, if the Plan is subject to ERISA, for other permissible 
Plan purposes. 

 
Account shall develop and retain records and documentation evidencing its use of the 
rebates and shall provide such records to Wellmark upon request. If the Plan is neither a 
governmental plan nor a plan subject to ERISA, the Account agrees that it has provided 
or will provide Wellmark with written assurance that any rebates received by Account will 
be used to benefit current Plan Members. 

 
5.4 Disclosure of Prescription Drug Rebates. Wellmark contracts with third-party pharmacy 

benefits manager(s) (“PBM”) to provide pharmacy benefits management services, 
including pharmacy network administration, claims adjudication, clinical services, and 
rebate management. PBM receives rebates from pharmaceutical manufacturers for claims 
for prescription drugs filled at PBM's participating network pharmacies for PBM's entire 
book of business and Wellmark receives rebates from the PBM for prescription drug 
claims processed by the PBM for Members. Any rebates Wellmark receives from the PBM 
for Members shall be retained by Wellmark. The rebates shall not be allocated or 

-170-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 12 Version: 10/17 

distributed in any manner to Account or to Members nor shall the rebates be taken into 
account in determining any applicable deductibles, coinsurance, copayment, or out-of-
pocket maximum amounts for which a Member is responsible. 

 
5.5 Value-Based Programs. A “Value-Based Program” is an outcomes-based payment 

arrangement and/or a coordinated care model facilitated with one or more local providers 
that is evaluated against cost and quality metrics/factors and is reflected in provider 
payment. Wellmark or Host Blues may enter into collaborative arrangements with Value-
Based Programs under which the health care organizations participating in such programs 
are eligible for financial incentives relating to quality and cost-effective care of Wellmark 
members. Identifiable Data regarding Account's Members may be included in information 
Wellmark or Host Blues provide to Value-Based Programs and used by the Value-Based 
Program and its providers.  

 
ARTICLE 6  

LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES 
 
6.1 Account’s Liability. Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement, Account 

agrees to release, hold harmless, and indemnify Wellmark and its employees, officers, 
and directors against any and all amounts, expenses, losses, liability, claims, lawsuits, 
injuries, damages, taxes, interest charges, administrative penalties, and other costs or 
obligations, including reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, for which Wellmark may 
become liable: 

 
a. due to a release of Confidential Information to Account, the Plan, or a third party 

at Account’s direction or arising out of any improper use of Confidential Information 
by Account or such third party; 

 
b. due to Account’s failure to timely provide requested information to Wellmark for 

inclusion on the Confirmation of MSP form submissions and other disclosures that 
relate to Account’s size and status, EIN(s), the Medicare enrollment of Members, 
Account enrollment, and related information (including, without limitation, Member 
Social Security numbers), or such other information requested by Wellmark 
resulting in processing of claims not in compliance with MSP laws and other 
requirements in accordance with Section 2.6; 

 
c. due to Account’s failure to comply with applicable law relating to issuing or failing 

to issue the required notices in accordance with Section 2.1(d); 
 

d. due to Account’s failure or delay in providing complete, timely, and accurate 
reports, data, and information regarding group size and number of employees, 
eligibility, enrollment, and Social Security numbers for each Member, changes to 
Account name, EIN, address, benefit selection, limitations, exclusions, or benefit 
changes for the Plan, and other information necessary for Wellmark to prepare IRS 
Form 1095-B reporting to the Internal Revenue Service, or administer the terms, 
coordination of benefits, limitations, and exclusions contained in the Plan; 

 
e. due to the Account’s or its employees’ or agents’ negligence or material breach of 

their obligations under this Agreement, except to the extent that any such losses 
are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Wellmark; or 

 

-171-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 13 Version: 10/17 

f. arising from any other acts or omissions of Account that constitute a material 
breach of an obligation hereunder or which, in the aggregate, constitute a failure 
on the part of Account to perform its obligations under this Agreement in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
6.2 Wellmark’s Liability. Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement, Wellmark 

agrees to release, hold harmless, and indemnify Account and its employees, officers, and 
directors against any and all amounts, expenses, losses, liability, claims, lawsuits, injuries, 
damages, taxes, interest charges, administrative penalties, and other costs or obligations, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, for which Account may become liable 
arising from any allegation of a breach of confidentiality arising out of the release of 
Confidential Information to Wellmark or a third party at Wellmark’s direction or arising out 
of any improper use of Confidential Information by Wellmark or such third party. 

 
6.3 Disclaimer of Warranties; Limitation of Liability. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET 

FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, WELLMARK DOES NOT MAKE AND HEREBY 
DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, REGARDING ANY OF THE SERVICES WELLMARK 
PROVIDES OR ARRANGES TO PROVIDE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. IN NO EVENT 
SHALL WELLMARK BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, 
PUNITIVE, OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, LOSS OF DATA OR LOST PROFITS, EVEN IF 
WELLMARK HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE 
FOREGOING LIMITATION OF LIABILITY REPRESENTS THE ALLOCATION OF RISK 
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS REFLECTED IN THE PRICING HEREUNDER AND IS AN 
ESSENTIAL ELEMENT OF THE BASIS OF THE BARGAIN BETWEEN THE PARTIES. 

 
THE MEDICAL MANAGEMENT AND WELL-BEING CONSULTING SERVICES ARE 
EDUCATIONAL AND INFORMATIONAL TOOLS ONLY AND DO NOT CONSTITUTE 
CLINICAL SERVICES. HEALTH INFORMATION PROVIDED BY WELLMARK OR 
VENDORS OR THEIR AFFILIATES IS BASED ON MEDICAL LITERATURE. HOWEVER, 
USE OF SUCH INFORMATION IS NOT INTENDED TO REPLACE PROFESSIONAL 
MEDICAL ADVICE AND CARE FROM A HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONAL. THE 
HEALTH INFORMATION IS INTENDED TO HELP PEOPLE MAKE BETTER HEALTH 
CARE DECISIONS AND TAKE GREATER RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR OWN 
HEALTH, BUT MAY NOT RESULT IN ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT OF THESE GOALS. 
ACCOUNT EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT WELLMARK IS NOT 
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE RESULTS OF ITS MEMBERS’ USE OF SUCH 
INFORMATION INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, MEMBERS CHOOSING TO SEEK 
OR NOT TO SEEK PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CARE, OR MEMBERS CHOOSING OR 
NOT CHOOSING SPECIFIC TREATMENT. WELLMARK DOES NOT MAKE AND 
HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY 
AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, REGARDING THE MEDICAL 
MANAGEMENT AND WELL-BEING CONSULTING SERVICES, THEIR ABILITY TO 
REDUCE COSTS, OR IMPROVE OUTCOMES. 

 
6.4 Grandfathered Health Plan Disclaimer. Account has the sole obligation to determine the 

status of its Plan as either a Grandfathered Health Plan or a Non-Grandfathered Health 
Plan. 
 

-172-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 14 Version: 10/17 

Wellmark does not make any representation or warranty and Wellmark expressly 
disclaims any and all representations or warranties, oral or written, regarding the past, 
present, or future Grandfathered Health Plan status of the Plan. 
 
No federal or state official has determined that this Plan qualifies as a Grandfathered 
Health Plan, and to the extent that this Plan is determined to be eligible as a Grandfathered 
Health Plan, Wellmark makes no representation or warranty that this status will be retained 
during the current Plan Year or any future renewal. 
 
Wellmark is not responsible and shall not be liable for any claims, costs, liabilities, losses, 
penalties, damages or other expenses of any kind whatsoever that, directly or indirectly, 
arise from or relate to this Plan’s past, present and future Grandfathered Health Plan 
status, lack thereof, or any changes regarding the Plan’s past, present and future 
Grandfathered Health Plan status, including, but not limited to, any representation made 
by any employee, broker, agent, or independent contractor of Wellmark regarding this 
Plan’s past, present and future Grandfathered Health Plan status. 

 
6.5 No Testing for Non-Grandfathered Health Plans. Wellmark will not determine whether 

coverage is discriminatory or otherwise in violation of Internal Revenue Code Section 
105(h). Wellmark also will not provide any testing for compliance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 105(h) and will not be held liable for any penalties or other losses resulting 
from Account offering coverage in violation of Section 105(h). 

 
6.6 Survival. The indemnities set forth in this Article, including any liability of either party to 

the other for indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 7  
TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
7.1 Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and 

thereafter shall continue in force until replaced by a subsequently issued Agreement or 
terminated as elsewhere provided in this Agreement. 

 
7.2 Termination by Account. This Agreement may be terminated by the Account upon 

providing Wellmark ten (10) days prior written notice in advance of the termination date. 
In the absence of ten (10) days prior written notice by Account, Account shall be 
responsible for any and all fees and/or premiums billed to Account by Wellmark. Account 
is solely responsible for notifying its Plan Members of the termination of this Agreement. 

 
7.3 Termination by Wellmark. Wellmark may only nonrenew or discontinue this Agreement 

for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

a. Account fails to make payment on time and in full of fees and premiums as required 
under this Agreement; 

 
b. Account's fraud or intentional misrepresentation of a material fact under this 

Agreement, including the situation in which Account made a material 
representation to Wellmark in connection with the issuance of this Agreement and 
such representation is no longer accurate or correct; 

 
c. Account's noncompliance with Wellmark’s minimum participation requirements; 

-173-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 15 Version: 10/17 

 
d. Account's noncompliance with Wellmark’s employer contribution requirements; 

 
e. Wellmark ceases to offer this type of small group or large group coverage in Iowa 

in accordance with Section 7.6; 
 

f. the Commissioner of Insurance for the state of Iowa finds that continuation of the 
coverage would not be in the best interest of the Members; 

 
g. the renewal or continuation of this Agreement would otherwise be prohibited by 

applicable law. 
 

Account shall be deemed to be in noncompliance of subsection c or d, above regarding 
participation or contribution requirements, upon Account’s failure to provide reasonable 
documentation requested by Wellmark to satisfy its inquiry. 

 
7.4 Termination for Nonpayment of Premium. Wellmark may terminate this Agreement at 

any time, upon ten (10) days written notice to Account, if Account fails to make complete 
payments, including late fees, when due, in accordance with this Agreement. Account is 
solely responsible for notifying its Plan Members of the termination of this Agreement for 
nonpayment or for any other reason. 

 
7.5 Effects of Termination. If Wellmark terminates this Agreement for nonpayment, 

Wellmark shall not be required to pay any Incurred Claims for services received after the 
date of termination. 

 
7.6 Uniform Termination of Coverage. 
 

a. If Wellmark decides to discontinue offering the type of coverage provided under 
this Agreement in the small and/or large group market, such coverage may be 
discontinued only if: 

 
i. Wellmark provides notice to each Account, and all Plan Members under 

this type of coverage in such market of the discontinuation at least ninety 
(90) days prior to the date of discontinuation of such coverage; and 

 
ii. Wellmark offers to each Account covered under this type of coverage in 

such market the option to purchase all (or, in the case of the large group 
market, any) other coverage currently being offered by Wellmark to groups 
in such market. 

 
b. If Wellmark elects to discontinue all coverage in the small and/or large group 

markets in Iowa, it may discontinue coverage under this Agreement only if 
Wellmark provides notice to each Account, all Plan Members covered under such 
coverage, and the Commissioner of Insurance for the state of Iowa of such 
discontinuation at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the date of such 
discontinuance. 

 
7.7 Survival. Any liability of either party to the other for amounts owed or owing under this 

Agreement, unless such amounts are de minimus, shall not be extinguished by the 
termination of this Agreement. 

-174-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 16 Version: 10/17 

 
ARTICLE 8  

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD DISCLOSURES AND INTER-PLAN ARRANGEMENTS 
 
8.1 Blue Cross and Blue Shield Disclosure Statement. Account on behalf of itself and its 

Members, hereby expressly acknowledges its understanding this Agreement constitutes 
a contract solely between Account and Wellmark, which is an independent corporation 
operating under licenses from the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association, an association of 
independent Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans (the "Association"), permitting Wellmark 
to use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Service Marks in the state of Iowa, and that 
Wellmark is not contracting as the agent of the Association. Account on behalf of itself and 
its Members, further acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered into this Agreement 
based upon representations by any person other than Wellmark and that no person, entity, 
or organization other than Wellmark shall be accountable or liable to Account for any of 
Wellmark’s obligations to Account created under this Agreement. This section shall not 
create any additional obligations whatsoever on the part of Wellmark other than those 
obligations created under other provisions of this Agreement. 

 
8.2 Account Locations or Members Outside of Iowa. Account understands and agrees that 

Wellmark defines a National Account as a company headquartered and located in Iowa 
that also has employees in other states whose claims are processed through Inter-Plan 
Arrangements. If Account is headquartered in Iowa, any employees or persons associated 
with Account are eligible for coverage under the Account’s Plan, including those employed 
or working at Account locations outside Iowa. If Account is not headquartered in Iowa, 
only those employees or individuals associated with the Iowa business locations are 
eligible for coverage under the Account’s Plan, and coverage will be void for any persons 
associated with Account locations outside of Iowa. Eligibility of persons located outside of 
Iowa, or associated with Account locations outside of Iowa, is subject to applicable law 
and Association guidelines. 

 
8.3 Out-of-Area Services. Wellmark has a variety of relationships with other Blue Cross 

and/or Blue Shield Licensees referred to generally as “Inter-Plan Arrangements.” These 
Inter-Plan Arrangements operate under rules and procedures issued by the Blue Cross 
Blue Shield Association (“Association”). Whenever Members access health care services 
outside the geographic area Wellmark serves, the claim for those services may be 
processed through one of these Inter-Plan Arrangements. The Inter-Plan Arrangements 
are described generally below. 

 
Typically, when accessing care outside the geographic area Wellmark serves, Members 
obtain care from health care providers that have a contractual agreement (“participating 
providers”) with the local Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield Licensee in that other geographic 
area (“Host Blue”). In some instances, Members may obtain care from health care 
providers in the Host Blue geographic area that do not have a contractual agreement 
(“nonparticipating providers”) with the Host Blue. Wellmark remains responsible for 
fulfilling its contractual obligations to Account. Wellmark payment practices in both 
instances are described below. 

 
a. BlueCard® Program. The BlueCard® Program is an Inter-Plan Arrangement. 

Under this Arrangement, when Members access Covered Services within the 
geographic area served by a Host Blue, the Host Blue will be responsible for 

-175-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 17 Version: 10/17 

contracting and handling all interactions with its participating providers. The 
financial terms of the BlueCard Program are described generally below. 

 
i. Member Liability Calculation Method Per Claim. Unless subject to a 

fixed dollar copayment, the calculation of the Member liability on claims for 
Covered Services processed through the BlueCard Program will be based 
on the lower of the participating provider’s billed charges for Covered 
Services or the negotiated price made available to Wellmark by the Host 
Blue. 

 
ii. Claims Pricing. Host Blues determine a negotiated price, which is 

reflected in the terms of each Host Blue’s provider contracts. The 
negotiated price made available to Wellmark by the Host Blue may be 
represented by one of the following: 

 
a) An actual price. An actual price is a negotiated rate of payment in 

effect at the time a claim is processed without any other increases 
or decreases; or 

 
b) An estimated price. An estimated price is a negotiated rate of 

payment in effect at the time a claim is processed, reduced or 
increased by a percentage to take into account certain payments 
negotiated with the provider and other claim- and non-claim-related 
transactions. Such transactions may include, but are not limited to, 
anti-fraud and abuse recoveries, provider refunds not applied on a 
claim-specific basis, retrospective settlements, and performance-
related bonuses or incentives; or 

 
c) An average price. An average price is a percentage of billed 

charges for Covered Services in effect at the time a claim is 
processed representing the aggregate payments negotiated by the 
Host Blue with all of its health care providers or a similar 
classification of its providers and other claim- and non-claim-related 
transactions. Such transactions may include the same ones as 
noted above for an estimated price. 

 
The Host Blue determines whether it will use an actual, estimated, or 
average price. Host Blues using either an estimated price or an average 
price may prospectively increase or reduce such prices to correct for over- 
or underestimation of past prices (i.e., prospective adjustment may mean 
that a current price reflects additional amounts or credits for claims already 
paid to providers or anticipated to be paid to or refunds received or 
anticipated to be received from providers. However, the BlueCard Program 
requires that the amount paid by the Member is a final price; no future price 
adjustment will result in increases or decreases to the pricing of past 
claims. The method of claims payment by Host Blues is taken into account 
by Wellmark in determining Account’s premiums. 
 
In some instances federal or state laws or regulations may impose a 
surcharge, tax or other fee. If applicable, Wellmark will include any such 
surcharge, tax or other fee in determining Account’s premium. 

-176-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 18 Version: 10/17 

 
b. Nonparticipating Providers Outside Wellmark’s Service Area.  

 
Member Liability Calculation. 

 
i. In General. When Covered Services are provided outside of Wellmark’s 

service area by nonparticipating providers, the amount(s) a Member pays 
for such services will be based on either the Host Blue’s nonparticipating 
provider local payment or the pricing arrangements required by applicable 
state law. In these situations, the Member may be responsible for the 
difference between the amount that the nonparticipating provider bills and 
the payment Wellmark will make for the Covered Services as set forth in 
this paragraph. Payments for out-of-network emergency services will be 
governed by applicable federal and state law. 

 
ii. Exceptions. In some exception cases, Wellmark may pay claims from 

nonparticipating providers for Covered Services outside of Wellmark's 
service area based on the provider’s billed charge. This may occur in 
situations where a Member did not have reasonable access to a 
participating provider, as determined by Wellmark or by applicable law. In 
other exception cases, Wellmark may pay such claims based on the 
payment Wellmark would make if Wellmark were paying a nonparticipating 
provider for the same Covered Services inside of Wellmark’s service area. 
This may occur where the Host Blue’s corresponding payment would be 
more than Wellmark’s in-service area nonparticipating provider payment. 
Wellmark may choose to negotiate a payment with such a provider on an 
exception basis. 

 
Unless otherwise stated, in any of these exception situations, the Member 
may be responsible for the difference between the amount that the 
nonparticipating provider bills and the payment Wellmark will make for the 
Covered Services as set forth in this paragraph. 

 
c. Blue Cross Blue Shield Global™ Core.  

 
General Information. If Members are outside the United States, the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands (hereinafter: “BlueCard 
service area”), they may be able to take advantage of the Blue Cross Blue Shield 
Global Core when accessing Covered Services. The Blue Cross Blue Shield 
Global Core is not served by a Host Blue.  

 
Inpatient Services. In most cases, if Members contact the Blue Cross Blue Shield 
Global Core Service Center for assistance, hospitals will not require Members to 
pay for covered inpatient services, except for their cost-share amounts. In such 
cases, the hospital will submit Member claims to the Blue Cross Blue Shield Global 
Core Service Center to initiate claims processing. However, if the Member paid in 
full at the time of service, the Member must submit a claim to obtain reimbursement 
for Covered Services. Members must contact Wellmark to obtain 
precertification for non-emergency inpatient services. 

 

-177-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 19 Version: 10/17 

ARTICLE 9  
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
9.1 Change of Agreement. If Account makes changes in the Plan, Account shall give 

Wellmark sufficient advance notice of such changes. If Account makes any material 
changes in the Plan or in the health care benefits described in the Benefits Document, 
including the addition or deletion of benefits, or makes material changes in membership 
or eligibility requirements, such as a change in the number of enrolled individuals of ten 
percent (10%) or more, types of coverage offered, business entities covered, or offerings 
of other health insurers’ coverage to eligible individuals, Wellmark shall have the right at 
its option to amend this Agreement, including an adjustment of premiums. 

 
9.2 Use of Trademarks and Names. Wellmark and Account reserve the right to control the 

use of their respective corporate names and any other respective symbols, assumed 
names, trademarks, and service marks, presently existing or subsequently established. 
Wellmark and Account agree not to use the corporate name, symbol, assumed names, 
trademarks, or service marks of the other in advertising, promotional materials, or 
otherwise without the prior written consent of the other. Any previously approved usage 
shall cease immediately upon the termination of this Agreement and any materials using 
such names or marks are the property of the appropriate namesake and shall be returned 
to the appropriate property owner upon request or at the termination of this Agreement. 

 
9.3 Complete Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement, including, without limitation, any 

Exhibits or amendments hereto, the employer contribution information form, and the 
COBRA Administrative Services Agreement or Addendum, if any, constitute the complete 
and exclusive agreement and statement of the relationship between the parties with 
regard to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all related discussions, 
understandings, proposals, exhibits, amendments, prior and concurrent agreements, 
representations and warranties, whether oral or written, and any other communications 
between the parties in regard to the subject matter hereof. A copy of the Account’s 
application, if any, is attached to this Agreement or shall be furnished to Account within 
thirty (30) days after the Agreement is issued. All statements made by the Account or by 
the Members are deemed to be representations and not warranties. No statement made 
by any person insured shall be used in any contest unless a copy of the document 
containing the statement is furnished to such person. This Agreement, including, without 
limitation, any Exhibits hereto, may be amended from time to time by Wellmark, and such 
amendments to this Agreement shall be effective only when the written amendment has 
been signed by an authorized representative of Wellmark and delivered in accordance 
with Section 9.9. This Agreement shall take precedence over any other documents that 
may be in conflict with it. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if this Agreement supersedes a prior Agreement, health 
services with an Incurred Date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement shall be 
processed pursuant to the terms of the applicable superseded Agreement. 

 
9.4 Force Majeure. The parties to this Agreement shall be excused from any performance 

under this Agreement, other than payment of amounts due, for any period and to the extent 
they are delayed, restricted, or prevented from performing under this Agreement as a 
result of an act of God, war, civil disturbance, court order, labor dispute, act of terrorism, 
or other cause beyond their reasonable control. 

 

-178-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 20 Version: 10/17 

9.5 Limitation of Action. Notwithstanding Sections 4.6, 6.6, and 7.7, no legal or equitable 
action or claim, may be brought against Wellmark for an action or claim arising under or 
relating to this Agreement more than two (2) years after the cause of action arose. 

 
9.6 Assignment. The Agreement shall be binding on the parties and their respective 

successors and permitted assigns. Neither party may assign this Agreement to any third 
party, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other; provided, however, 
Wellmark may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, to any entity that controls, is 
controlled by, or is under common control with Wellmark. 

 
9.7 Waiver. The failure of any party to enforce any terms or provisions of the Agreement shall 

not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of the enforceability of such provision. 
Similarly, the failure to enforce any remedy arising from a default under the terms of the 
Agreement shall not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of such default. Any waiver 
of any provision of this Agreement, and any consent to any departure from the terms of 
any provision of this Agreement, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the 
specific purpose for which made or given. 

 
9.8 Nature of Relationship; Authority of Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement and 

no action taken or omitted to be taken by Account or Wellmark pursuant hereto shall be 
deemed to constitute Account and Wellmark a partnership, an association, a joint venture 
or other entity whatsoever. Wellmark shall at all times be acting as an independent 
contractor under this Agreement. No party has the authority to bind the other in any respect 
whatsoever. 

 
9.9 Notices and Communication. The parties shall be entitled to rely upon any 

communication or notice from the other in connection with this Agreement to be genuine, 
truthful, and accurate, and to have been authorized, signed, or issued by an officer or 
agent of such entity empowered to make such representation on behalf of the entity. 

 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed given when delivered personally, placed in the U.S. mail (postage 
prepaid), delivered to a recognized courier service for delivery (delivery charges prepaid), 
or sent by electronic means and addressed to the last address furnished in writing. Until 
another address is furnished in writing, notice to Account may be addressed to the address 
as it appears in Wellmark's records. 

 
Notice to Wellmark may be addressed: 

 
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Iowa 
Attention: Procurement and Contracts 
1331 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, Iowa  50309-2901 

 
9.10 State of Issue; Applicable Law; Venue. This Agreement is issued and delivered in the 

state of Iowa and is performed in Des Moines, Iowa. To the extent not superseded by the 
laws of the United States and without regard to any conflict of law rule, this Agreement 
shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the state of Iowa. Any 
action in regard to this Agreement or arising out of the terms of this Agreement shall be 
instituted and litigated in the Iowa District Court or the United States District Court located 
in Des Moines, Polk County, Iowa, and no other. 

-179-

Item G.2.e. 



 

IA WBCBSI LG FI SS 21 Version: 10/17 

 
ARTICLE 10  

EFFECTIVENESS OF AGREEMENT AND WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL 
 
THIS AGREEMENT shall be deemed to be effective and in full force as of the Effective Date upon 
the affixation of Wellmark’s authorized signature below and the Account’s payment to Wellmark 
of the premium required by this Agreement. ACCOUNT AND WELLMARK WAIVE ANY RIGHT 
TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESPECT TO AND IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, CLAIM, 
COUNTERCLAIM, DEMAND OR OTHER MATTER WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF THIS 
AGREEMENT. 
 
 Wellmark, Inc., doing business as 

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Iowa 
 
 

 
By:   

 
 David S. Brown 

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 
and Treasurer 

 

-180-

Item G.2.e. 



N-4308 11/17 

NOTICE OF PROTECTION PROVIDED BY IOWA LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE 
GUARANTY ASSOCIATION 

 

This notice provides a brief summary of the Iowa Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association (the 
“Association”) and the protection it provides for policyholders. This safety net was created under Iowa 
law, which determines who and what is covered and the amounts of coverage. 
The Association was established to provide protection in the unlikely event that your life, annuity or health 
insurance company becomes financially unable to meet its obligations and is taken over by its Insurance 
Department. If this should happen, the Association will typically arrange to continue coverage and pay 
claims, in accordance with Iowa law, with funding from assessments paid by other insurance companies. 
The basic protections provided by the Association are: 
 
Life Insurance 
 $300,000 in death benefits 
 $100,000 in cash surrender and withdrawal values 
 
Health Insurance 
 $500,000 in basic hospital, medical-surgical or major medical insurance benefits 
 $300,000 in disability income protection insurance benefits 
 $300,000 in long-term care insurance benefits 
 $100,000 in other types of health insurance benefits 
 
Annuities 
 $250,000 in annuity benefits, cash surrender and withdrawal values 
 
The maximum amount of protection for each individual, regardless of the number of policies or contracts, 
is $350,000. Special rules may apply with regard to hospital, medical-surgical and major medical 
insurance benefits. 
Note: Certain policies and contracts may not be covered or fully covered. If coverage is available, it 
will be subject to substantial limitations and exclusions. For example, coverage does not extend to any 
portion(s) of a policy or contract that the insurer does not guarantee, such as certain investment additions 
to the account value of a variable life insurance policy or a variable annuity contract. There are also 
various residency requirements under Iowa law. 
To learn more about the Association and the protections it provides, as well as those relating to group 
contracts or retirement plans, please visit the Association's website at www.ialifega.org, or contact: 
 
 Iowa Life and Health Insurance 
 Guaranty Association 
 700 Walnut Street, Suite 1600 
 Des Moines, IA 50309 
 (515) 248-5712 

 
 Iowa Insurance Division 
 Two Ruan Center 
 601 Locust, 4th Floor 
 Des Moines, IA 50309-3738 
 (515) 281-5705 

 
Information about the financial condition of insurers is available from a variety of sources, including 
financial rating agencies such as AM Best Company, Fitch Inc., Moody's Investors Service, Inc., and 
Standard & Poor's. That information may be accessed from the “Helpful Links & Information” page located 
on the website of the Iowa Insurance Division at www.iid.iowa.gov. 
The Association is subject to supervision and regulation by the Commissioner of the Iowa Insurance 
Division. Persons who desire to file a complaint to allege a violation of the laws governing the Association 
may contact the Iowa Insurance Division. State law provides that any suit against the Association shall be 
brought in the Iowa District Court in Polk County, Iowa. 
Insurance companies and agents are not allowed by Iowa law to use the existence of the 
Association or its coverage to encourage you to purchase any form of insurance. When selecting 
an insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage. If there is any inconsistency 
between this notice and Iowa law, then Iowa law will control. 

-181-

Item G.2.e. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Brenda Balvanz, Personnel Specialist 

 DATE: June 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY19 Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield   Health Plan     
   Stop Loss Policy   

 

Attached for your approval is the health plan Stop Loss Policy and rate exhibit for FY19.  If 
you have questions regarding the attached, please contact Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-
5108. 
 
 
Attachment 
 

-183-

Item G.2.f. 



 



 

 
 

Stop Loss Policy Effective Date: July 1, 2018 
Stop Loss Period: July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
 
Form Number: IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP Version: 10/17 

 
 
 
 
 

S T O P  L O S S  P O L I C Y  
 
 
 
 
 

WELLMARK, INC. 
 
 

issued to 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
 

 
 

-185-

Item G.2.f. 



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 1 Version: 10/17 
 

 
STOP LOSS POLICY 

 
 
 THIS STOP LOSS POLICY (herein “Policy”) is issued by Wellmark, Inc., doing business 
as Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Iowa, an Iowa mutual insurance company, (herein 
“Wellmark”) effective as of the first day of July 2018, (“Effective Date”) to City of Cedar Falls 
(herein “Account”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
1. Account is the plan sponsor of a self-funded group health plan (herein called “the Plan”) 

within the meaning of and in accordance with applicable federal or state law for its common 
law employees and other eligible individuals. The Plan is designed, maintained and funded 
by Account and Account is solely responsible for Claims. 

 
2. Account desires that Wellmark reimburse it for Claims Eligible for Reimbursement that 

satisfy the amounts and terms specified in this Policy. Account acknowledges this Policy 
provides it with reimbursement only for Claims meeting the terms and conditions specified 
in this Policy and Wellmark provides no insurance coverage for the Plan. Wellmark 
assumes no financial obligations except as specified in this Policy. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1  
POLICY DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1 “Aggregate Deductible” means the percentage of expected Claims Eligible for 

Reimbursement for all Members during the Stop Loss Period that is Account’s liability 
before any reimbursement is made under the aggregate stop loss coverage of this Policy. 
The Aggregate Deductible amount is shown on Exhibit “A”, Stop Loss Premiums and 
Financial Terms, which is attached to this Policy and incorporated by this reference. 

 
1.2 “Attachment Point” means the amount of expected Claims Eligible for Reimbursement 

per Plan Member for each benefit classification. The Attachment Point is used to 
determine Account’s Aggregate Deductible and Minimum Aggregate Deductible and is 
shown on Exhibit “A”, Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms, which is attached to 
this Policy and incorporated by this reference. 

 
1.3 “Benefit Services Administrator” means the company or companies providing health 

benefit plan administration services to Account pursuant to a separately executed 
administrative services agreement in effect during the Stop Loss Period as shown on 
Exhibit “A”, Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms. 

 
1.4 “Claims” means the dollar amount of the Benefit Services Administrator’s payment on 

behalf of the Account for covered health care services provided to Members under the 
terms of the Plan administered by the Benefit Services Administrator. Claims do not 
include: (a) amounts paid for health care services as a Plan exception made at the 
direction of Account; (b) amounts paid for health care services determined by the Benefits 
Services Administrator to be investigational or experimental as defined under the terms of 
the Plan; (c) amounts paid for health care services determined by the Benefits Services 

-186-

Item G.2.f. 



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 2 Version: 10/17 
 

Administrator to be not medically necessary as defined under the terms of the Plan; or (d) 
any amounts paid that are not for covered health care services under the terms of the 
Plan. 

 
1.5 “Claims Eligible for Reimbursement” means Claims that have both an Incurred Date 

and Paid Date within the Stop Loss Period specified on Exhibit “A”. 
 
1.6 “Incurred Date” means the date health services are provided to Members. With regard to 

inpatient hospital or facility services, the date of the Member's admission to the facility is 
considered as the Incurred Date. 

 
1.7 “Individual Deductible” means the fixed dollar amount of Claims Eligible for 

Reimbursement for each Member during the Stop Loss Period that is the Account’s liability 
before any reimbursement is made under the individual stop loss coverage of this Policy. 
The Individual Deductible amount is shown on Exhibit “A”. 

 
1.8 “Member” means a person, including a Plan Member’s spouse or eligible dependent 

children, who is eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the terms of the Plan 
as determined and identified by Account, while this Policy is in force. A Member includes 
a person enrolled in the Plan and entitled to receive benefits under the Plan during the 
Run-in Period who dies before the Policy Effective Date. A Member does not include an 
individual enrolled in the Plan during the Run-in Period who is not enrolled in the Plan on 
the Policy Effective Date. 

 
1.9 “Minimum Aggregate Deductible” means an amount that is the Account's minimum 

liability under the aggregate stop loss coverage of this Policy. The Minimum Aggregate 
Deductible is the product of the number of Plan Members in effect for each Attachment 
Point, multiplied by each Attachment Point shown on Exhibit "A", multiplied by 90%. The 
results of the calculations shall be added together each month during the Stop Loss Period 
resulting in the year-to-date (YTD) Minimum Aggregate Deductible. The Minimum 
Aggregate Deductible is calculated at the beginning of the Stop Loss Period, based on the 
enrollment under each Attachment Point and may be recalculated during the Stop Loss 
Period due to a benefit change. 

 
1.10 “Paid Date” means the date, on which a Claim payment is made by the Benefit Services 

Administrator. The Benefit Services Administrator may adjust Claims for a period of up to 
eighteen (18) months after the Claim is first processed. If a Claim is subsequently 
adjusted, the date of the final adjustment is considered the Paid Date, provided, however, 
that if a Claim is adjusted in accordance with a decision of an Independent Review 
Organization making an external review determination under applicable law, the date of 
the Benefit Services Administrator's internal adverse benefit determination is considered 
the Paid Date for purposes of this Policy. 

 
1.11 “Plan” means the group health plan or plans established, sponsored and maintained by 

Account, the terms of which are described in the applicable Plan documents. 
 
1.12 “Plan Member” means a common law employee or other individual identified by Account 

as a person eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the Plan subject to the 
terms, conditions, and limitations described in the Plan documents as administered by the 
Benefit Services Administrator. 

-187-

Item G.2.f. 



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 3 Version: 10/17 
 

 
1.13 “Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means the same as the term “protected health 

information” in 45 CFR §160.103. 
 
1.14 “Run-In Period” means the period of time set forth on Exhibit “A” prior to beginning of the 

Stop Loss Period, during which Claims may have Incurred Dates. 
 
1.15 “Stop Loss Claims” mean amounts that qualify for reimbursement under this Policy. 
 
1.16 “Stop Loss Period” means the period of time set forth on Exhibit “A” or the most recent 

revision to Exhibit “A” issued to Account and attached to this Policy and incorporated by 
this reference. 

 
1.17 “Stop Loss Premium” means the amount that Wellmark charges Account for stop loss 

coverage. The Stop Loss Premium may include broker fees or commissions and is shown 
on Exhibit “A”. 

 
ARTICLE 2  

RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACCOUNT 
 
2.1 Payment of Premiums. Wellmark shall bill Account and Account agrees to pay Wellmark 

the amount of the Stop Loss Premiums and any applicable taxes or fees billed for the 
preceding month. Such payment may be made by wire transfer, electronic (ebilling) 
payment, or automatic funds withdrawal. If Account elects automatic funds withdrawal, it 
shall execute the necessary authorization, including an authorization for automatic 
withdrawal of any changed amount as reflected on Account's bill. Any adjustments due to 
membership or eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for the month in which 
the membership or eligibility change is made. Adjustments to Stop Loss Premiums shall 
be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to the date the Benefit Services 
Administrator processes the Member eligibility change. The bill will show the amounts due 
and will also show any credits during the preceding month. Account shall promptly pay 
Wellmark at Wellmark’s office, the total amount due, no later than the due date on the bill. 

 
2.2 Late Payments. All payments must be paid on time and when due in accordance with 

Section 2.1. If the Account fails to make payments in full when due, Wellmark may 
discontinue the reimbursement of all Stop Loss Claims for the Account or may setoff or 
recoup late payments from other amounts that may be due to Account. Payments not 
made when due shall include an interest charge on the outstanding amounts from the due 
date until payment is made in full at the then current prime rate as published periodically 
in the Midwest edition of The Wall Street Journal plus two percent (2%). Late fees are 
calculated on the entire amount due regardless of any partial payments. The acceptance 
by Wellmark of any late payments or partial payments shall not constitute a waiver of any 
rights under this Policy. If Account fails to make payments when due for two or more 
consecutive months, Wellmark may impose additional late fees of up to eighteen percent 
(18%) per annum. 

 
2.3 Providing Information; Account Representations. Account shall provide all information 

and representations reasonably necessary and as may be requested by Wellmark during 
the underwriting and issuance of this Policy and to establish loss for which reimbursement 
is claimed under this Policy. Account shall provide such information in a time, form, format, 
and manner required by Wellmark and is responsible for the timeliness, integrity, retention, 

-188-

Item G.2.f. 



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 4 Version: 10/17 
 

and accuracy of information and records provided to Wellmark. Wellmark shall be entitled 
to rely upon such information in underwriting and issuing this Policy and in discharging its 
responsibilities under this Policy. Account’s failure to provide complete and timely 
information may cause Stop Loss Claims to be denied. 

 
2.4 Records Retention - Audit Privileges. Account agrees that any records, including 

records from a third-party if applicable, relating to the submission or reimbursement of 
Stop Loss Claims shall be made available to Wellmark or its authorized representatives 
during and for a period of up to twenty-four (24) months following the end of a Stop Loss 
Period. 

 
2.5 Notice of Persons Eligible for Coverage. Account shall notify Wellmark of individuals 

eligible and enrolled in the Plan and of changes in eligibility in accordance with the manner, 
time, and procedures set forth in the separate Administrative Services Agreement entered 
into between Account and the Benefit Services Administrator. Notwithstanding the 
effective date Account establishes for Member eligibility, no eligibility change shall be 
effective under this stop loss coverage more than three (3) months prior to the date the 
Benefit Services Administrator processes the Member eligibility change. 

 
2.6 Right of Reimbursement or Recovery. In the event Account receives or is eligible to 

receive a payment or credit from a third-party or the Benefit Services Administrator for any 
portion of Claims, including, but not limited to, pharmaceutical manufacturer rebates, and 
Wellmark has previously paid or reimbursed Account for all or any portion of such Claims 
pursuant to this or a prior Stop Loss Policy, Account shall repay Wellmark the full amount 
of the recovery received by Account up to the full extent of Wellmark’s stop loss 
payment(s), regardless of whether this Policy is in force on the date of Account’s recovery. 
Such recovery or reimbursement cannot be used to satisfy any deductible or attachment 
point under this Policy. 

 
2.7 Subrogation Recovery. Account acknowledges and agrees that Wellmark, as the stop 

loss carrier, has priority of any recovery in the event Stop Loss Claims exceed applicable 
attachment points or deductibles. Account shall pursue and prosecute any and all 
subrogation interests or other valid claims that Account may have against a third-party or 
any current or former Member who recovers or has a right of recovery from a third-party 
as a consequence of any occurrence resulting in Claims. If Account initiates any action for 
recovery, Account shall notify Wellmark of such action within ten (10) days of filing such 
action. Account shall cooperate with Wellmark and, upon request of Wellmark, Account 
shall execute and deliver to Wellmark an assignment and any other instrument that may 
be necessary to secure Wellmark’s right of recovery. Account shall not waive any rights 
to pursue recovery from a third-party without Wellmark's written consent. Account may 
delegate responsibility for subrogation recovery services to the Benefit Services 
Administrator. 

 
In the event Account recovers all or any portion of Claims from a third-party or from a 
current or former Member, and Wellmark has previously paid or reimbursed Account for 
all or any portion of such Claims pursuant to this or a prior Stop Loss Policy, Account shall 
repay Wellmark the full amount of the recovery received by Account up to the full extent 
of Wellmark’s stop loss payment(s), regardless of whether this Policy is in force on the 
date of Account’s recovery. Such recovery or reimbursement cannot be used to satisfy 
any deductible or attachment point under this Policy. On a case by case basis, and only if 
Wellmark has agreed in writing and in advance, Account may reduce the amount it repays 

-189-

Item G.2.f. 



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 5 Version: 10/17 
 

to Wellmark by reasonable and necessary expenses incurred directly by Account in 
obtaining recovery from the third party. 

 
ARTICLE 3  

STOP LOSS COVERAGE 
 
3.1 Individual Stop Loss Coverage. Wellmark shall reimburse Account for the excess 

amount when the Claims Eligible for Reimbursement for a Member exceed the Individual 
Deductible shown on Exhibit “A”, subject to any Policy limitations set forth on Exhibit “A”. 
Reimbursement is generally provided as a statement credit on Account's next statement 
from the Benefit Services Administrator. 

 
3.2 Aggregate Stop Loss Coverage. Wellmark shall determine the aggregate stop loss 

coverage reimbursement as described in this Section.  
 

a. For each month of the Stop Loss Period, the monthly Claims Eligible for 
Reimbursement shall be calculated by accumulating all Claims for that month, less 
any reimbursement made under the individual stop loss coverage during the same 
Stop Loss Period, less any Claims excluded from the aggregate stop loss 
coverage. The monthly Claims Eligible for Reimbursement shall be added together 
for all months during the Stop Loss Period, resulting in the year-to-date (YTD) 
Claims Eligible for Reimbursement; 

 
b. For each month of the Stop Loss Period, the number of Plan Members in effect for 

each benefit classification shall be multiplied by the Attachment Point for each 
benefit classification shown on Exhibit “A”. The results of the calculations shall then 
be added together, resulting in the monthly Aggregate Deductible. Each monthly 
Aggregate Deductible shall be added together for all months during the Stop Loss 
Period, resulting in the year-to-date (YTD) Aggregate Deductible; and 

 
c. If the YTD Claims Eligible for Reimbursement exceed the greater of the YTD 

Aggregate Deductible or the YTD Minimum Aggregate Deductible, Wellmark shall 
reimburse Account for the excess amount within sixty (60) days after the end of 
the Stop Loss Period. If the YTD Claims Eligible for Reimbursement is less than 
the greater of the YTD Aggregate Deductible or the YTD Minimum Aggregate 
Deductible, no reimbursement by Wellmark will be made. 

 
ARTICLE 4  

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
 
4.1 Protected Health Information. The rights and responsibilities of the parties and permitted 

uses and disclosures with respect to Protected Health Information shall be set forth in the 
separately executed Business Associate Agreement.  

 
4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. The rights and responsibilities of the 

parties and permitted uses and disclosures with respect to information and data collected 
or developed by Wellmark related to Claims, cost, utilization, outcomes, quality, and 
financial performance of the Plan during the term of this Policy (“Confidential 
Information”) shall be as set forth in the separately executed administrative services 
agreement between Account and the Benefit Services Administrator. 

 

-190-

Item G.2.f. 



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 6 Version: 10/17 
 

4.3 Right to Examine Records of Account or Benefit Services Administrators. Wellmark 
or its authorized representative may at its own expense examine the financial, enrollment, 
and Claims records of Account or its Benefit Services Administrator(s) reasonably related 
to the administration of this Policy, as reasonably often as Wellmark deems appropriate, 
to reconcile enrollment information and records or to determine appropriate payment of 
Stop Loss Claims under this Policy. Such examination may be conducted either before or 
after reimbursement and shall be conducted during regular business hours, upon 
reasonable advance written notice. The examination period may cover the most recent 
twenty-four (24) months only, if applicable, and may cover Account's prior or third-party 
Benefit Services Administrator. 

 
4.4 Survival. Any obligations of either party to the other under this Article of the Policy survive 

any termination of this Policy. 
 

ARTICLE 5  
TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
5.1 Term; Termination of Plan or Administrative Services Agreement. This Policy shall 

become effective on the Effective Date and shall continue in force for the Stop Loss Period 
as set forth on Exhibit “A”, unless earlier terminated as provided in this Policy. If the Plan 
is terminated, or if Account’s administrative services agreement with the Benefit Services 
Administrator is terminated, this Policy shall terminate as of the date the Plan is terminated 
or as of the date the administrative services agreement is terminated, whichever is 
applicable and whichever date is earlier. 

 
5.2 Renewal Terms; Notice of Non-Renewal. This Policy may be renewed for successive 

Stop Loss Periods only when a new or amended Policy with an updated Exhibit “A” 
specifying a new Stop Loss Period is issued and executed by Wellmark. Wellmark shall 
have the right to change the Stop Loss Premiums for any renewal term as reflected on an 
updated Exhibit “A”. If Wellmark decides not to renew the Policy, it shall provide Account 
written notice of non-renewal at least forty-five (45) days prior to the end of the Stop Loss 
Period. 

 
5.3 Termination for Nonpayment. Wellmark may terminate this Policy at any time, upon ten 

(10) days written notice to Account, if Account fails to make complete payments, including 
late fees, when due in accordance with this Policy. The notice shall include the reason for 
the termination. Wellmark may recoup or set-off from any Stop Loss Claims any premiums 
or other fees or amounts owed by Account. 

 
5.4 Effects of Termination. If Wellmark terminates this Policy for nonpayment by the 

Account, Wellmark shall not reimburse Claims beyond the effective date of the termination 
regardless of when services were received or the Claims were paid. If this Policy 
terminates other than at the expiration of the Stop Loss Period, the effective date of the 
termination shall become the end of the Stop Loss Period. 

 
5.5 Survival. Any liability of either party to the other for amounts owed or owing under this 

Policy, unless such amounts are de minimus, shall not be extinguished by the termination 
of this Policy. 

-191-

Item G.2.f. 



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 7 Version: 10/17 
 

 
ARTICLE 6  

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
6.1 Complete Policy; Amendment. This Policy, including any exhibits or amendments, 

constitutes the complete and exclusive agreement and statement of relationship between 
the parties with regard to the subject matter of this Policy and supersedes all related 
discussions, proposals, prior policies, agreements, understandings, prior and concurrent 
agreements, representations and warranties, whether oral or written, and any other 
communications between the parties in regard to the subject matter of this Policy. 
Changes or amendments to this Policy shall be effective only when the written amendment 
has been signed by an authorized representative of Wellmark and delivered in accordance 
with Section 6.10. This Policy shall take precedence over any other documents that may 
be in conflict with it. 

 
6.2 Change of Policy. If Account makes changes in the Plan or benefits documents, Account 

shall give Wellmark sufficient advance written notice of such changes. If Account makes 
any material changes in the Plan administered by the Benefit Services Administrator, or if 
material changes are required by law, including the addition or deletion of benefits, a 
material change in group composition or membership or eligibility requirements, such as 
an increase in the ratio of family to single contracts of twenty percent (20%) or more, a 
change in the number of eligible individuals of ten percent (10%) or more, percentage of 
individuals enrolled, type of coverage offered, business entities covered, change in Benefit 
Services Administrator, or offerings of other health insurers’ coverage to eligible 
individuals, Wellmark shall have the right at its option to amend this Policy, including an 
adjustment of stop loss premiums or Individual Deductible shown on Exhibit “A”, or 
terminate this Policy. 

 
6.3 Provider Payment Arrangements; Claims Submission. The Benefit Services 

Administrator has entered into payment arrangements or contracts with health care 
providers or other service providers that affect the submission, timing, frequency, and the 
amount of payment of Claims. Not all health care providers participate in or agree to such 
payment arrangements and the Benefit Services Administrator does not determine, direct, 
or control the timing or accuracy of any Claims submissions. Claims do not become Claims 
Eligible for Reimbursement unless both the Incurred Dates and Paid Dates are within the 
required periods set forth in this Policy and Exhibit “A”. 

 
6.4 State of Issue; Applicable Law and Venue. The Policy is issued and delivered in the 

state of Iowa and is performed at Wellmark's offices in Des Moines, Iowa. To the extent 
not superseded by the laws of the United States and without regard to any conflict of law 
rule, this Policy shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the 
state of Iowa. Any action in regard to this Policy or arising out of the terms of this Policy 
shall be instituted and litigated in the Iowa District Court or the United States District Court 
located in Des Moines, Polk County, Iowa, and no other. 

 
6.5 Force Majeure. The parties to this Policy shall be excused from performance under this 

Policy for any period and to the extent they are delayed, restricted, or prevented from 
performing under this Policy (other than payment) as a result of an act of God, war, civil 
disturbance, court order, labor dispute, acts of terrorism, or other cause beyond their 
reasonable control and such nonperformance shall not be grounds for termination or 
default. 

-192-

Item G.2.f. 



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 8 Version: 10/17 
 

 
6.6 Limitation of Action. Notwithstanding Sections 4.4 and 5.5, no legal or equitable action 

or claim may be brought against Wellmark for an action or claim arising under or relating 
to this Policy more than two (2) years after the cause of action arose. 

 
6.7 Assignment. The Policy shall be binding on the parties and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns. Neither party may assign this Policy, in whole or in part, without 
the prior written consent of the other; provided, however, Wellmark may assign this Policy, 
in whole or in part, to any entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control 
with Wellmark. 

 
6.8 Waiver. The failure of any party to enforce any terms or provisions of the Policy shall not 

be deemed or construed to be a waiver of the enforceability of such provision. Similarly, 
the failure to enforce any remedy arising from a default under the terms of the Policy shall 
not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of such default. Any waiver of any provision of 
this Policy, and any consent to any departure from the terms of any provision of this Policy, 
shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which made 
or given. 

 
6.9 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Policy is for the benefit of Account and Wellmark and 

not for any other person. It shall not create any legal relationship between Wellmark and 
any employee, Member, or any other party claiming any right, whether legal or equitable, 
under the terms of this Policy or of the Plan. 

 
6.10 Notices and Communication. The parties shall be entitled to rely upon any 

communication or notice from the other in connection with this Policy to be genuine, 
truthful, and accurate, and to have been authorized, signed, or issued by an officer or 
agent of such entity empowered to make such representation on behalf of the entity. 

 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Policy shall be in writing and be 
deemed given when delivered personally, placed in the U.S. mail (postage prepaid), 
delivered to a recognized courier service for delivery (delivery charges prepaid) or sent by 
electronic means and addressed to the last address furnished by the respective party. 
Until another address is furnished in writing, notice to Account may be addressed to the 
address shown on Exhibit “A” attached to this Policy. 

 
Notice to Wellmark may be addressed: 

 
Wellmark, Inc. 
Attention: Procurement and Contracts 
1331 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, Iowa  50309-2901 

 
ARTICLE 7  

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD DISCLOSURE 
 
7.1 Blue Cross and Blue Shield Disclosure Statement. Account on behalf of itself and its 

Members, hereby expressly acknowledges its understanding this Policy constitutes a 
contract solely between Account and Wellmark, which is an independent corporation 
operating under licenses from the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association, an association of 
independent Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans (BCBSA), permitting Wellmark to use the 

-193-

Item G.2.f. 



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 9 Version: 10/17 
 

Blue Cross and Blue Shield Service Marks in the state of Iowa, and that Wellmark is not 
contracting as the agent of BCBSA. Account on behalf of itself and its Members, further 
acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered into this Policy based upon 
representations by any person other than Wellmark and that no person, entity, or 
organization other than Wellmark shall be accountable or liable to Account for any of 
Wellmark’s obligations to Account created under this Policy. This section shall not create 
any additional obligations whatsoever on the part of Wellmark other than those obligations 
created under other provisions of this Policy. 

 
ARTICLE 8  

EFFECTIVENESS OF POLICY AND WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL 
 

THIS POLICY shall be deemed to be effective and in full force as of the Effective Date indicated 
on the first page of the Policy and upon the affixation of Wellmark’s authorized signature below 
and the Account’s payment to Wellmark of the premium required by this Policy. ACCOUNT AND 
WELLMARK WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESPECT TO AND IN ANY 
ACTION, PROCEEDING, CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, DEMAND OR OTHER MATTER 
WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF THIS POLICY. 
 
 Wellmark, Inc. 
 
 

 
 
By:   

 

 
 David S. Brown 

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 
and Treasurer 

 
  

 

-194-

Item G.2.f. 



Stop Loss Policy  

Exhibit "A" - Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms

Wellmark, Inc.

Account/Plan Sponsor Full Legal Name and Address

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA  50613-2726

Benefit Services Administrator(s)

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

Express ScriptsPharmacy Benefits Manager:

The Stop Loss Period begins on 7/01/2018 and ends on 6/30/2019. 

Stop Loss Period:

Claims Eligible for Reimbursement. Claims shall be considered for reimbursement under this 

Policy only if all of the following conditions are completely satisfied as determined by Wellmark.

Stop loss coverage is administered with a Run-in Period as a 24/12 arrangement, which means:

-  The Claims shall have Incurred Dates within the Stop Loss Period or within 12 months prior to the 

beginning of the Stop Loss Period (the Run-in Period); and

-  The Claims shall have Paid Dates within the Stop Loss Period. 

Claims with Paid Dates following the end of the Stop Loss Period are not Claims Eligible for 

Reimbursement. 

$99.54

Monthly Stop Loss Premiums-Health (subject to any policy limitations listed below):

per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on last day of billing month.

Individual Stop Loss Coverage (subject to any policy limitations  listed below):

Individual Deductible: $85,000 per Member

Covered Benefits: Health  X   Drug CardX

Aggregate Stop Loss Coverage (subject to any policy limitations  listed below):

Aggregate Deductible:  125 % of expected Paid Claims.

Covered Benefits: X Health Dental                  X   Drug Card 
Attachment Point: per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on last day of billing 

month.

FamilySingle

$756.82 $1,892.05AS 500 Non-Union

$756.82 $1,892.05AS 500 Union

Policy Limitation(s):

Claims in excess of the Account's Individual Stop Loss deductible level will not be covered 

under the Aggregate Stop Loss coverage. 

379Page 1 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7

-195-

Item G.2.f. 



Stop Loss Policy  

Exhibit "A" - Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms

Wellmark, Inc.

Any adjustments to monthly stop loss premiums and attachment points due to membership or 

eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for the month in which the membership or eligibility

change is made and shall be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to the date Wellmark

processes the Member eligibility change.

Run-in coverage applies to those individuals enrolled in the Account's Plan effective with the beginning 

of the Run-in Period and continuously enrolled in the plan on this Stop Loss Policy Effective Date.  

Only those individuals included in the Wellmark stop loss proposal to Account are eligible for 

coverage.

Exhibit "A" Issue Date: 5/17/2018

379Page 2 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7

-196-

Item G.2.f. 



-197-

Item G.2.g. 



-198-

Item G.2.g. 



-199-

Item G.2.g. 



-200-

Item G.2.g. 



-201-

Item
 G

.2.g. 



-202-

Item
 G

.2.g. 



-203-

Item G.2.g. 



-204-

Item G.2.g. 



-205-

Item
 G

.2.g. 



-206-

Item
 G

.2.g. 



-207-

Item
 G

.2.g. 



 



-209-

Item G.2.h. 



-210-

Item G.2.h. 



-211-

Item G.2.h. 



-212-

Item G.2.h. 



-213-

Item G.2.h. 



-214-

Item G.2.h. 



-215-

Item G.2.h. 



-216-

Item G.2.h. 



-217-

Item G.2.h. 



-218-

Item G.2.h. 



-219-

Item G.2.h. 



-220-

Item G.2.h. 



-221-

Item G.2.h. 



-222-

Item G.2.h. 



-223-

Item G.2.h. 



-224-

Item G.2.h. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Funding Agreement with Greater Cedar Valley Alliance 

 
Attached is the agreement with Greater Cedar Valley Alliance.  The agreement sets 

forth the requirements that must be met by GCVA in order to receive $23,500 of 

economic development funds for FY19, with the option for incentive payments. The 

FY19 agreement provides for a maximum incentive of $20,000.    

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Karen Howard or myself.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-225-

Item G.2.i. 



 



-227-

Item G.2.i. 



-228-

Item G.2.i. 



-229-

Item G.2.i. 



-230-

Item G.2.i. 



-231-

Item G.2.i. 



-232-

Item G.2.i. 



-233-

Item G.2.i. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Funding Agreement with College Hill Partnership 

 
Attached is the agreement with College Hill Partnership (CHP).  The agreement sets 

forth the requirements that must be met by CHP in order to receive $4,000 of economic 

development funds for FY19.  

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Karen Howard or myself. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

-235-

Item G.2.j. 



 



-237-

Item G.2.j. 



-238-

Item G.2.j. 



-239-

Item G.2.j. 



-240-

Item G.2.j. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Funding Agreement with College Hill Partnership 

 

Attached is the agreement to Support the Economic Development Program of Cedar 

Falls College Hill Partnership (CHP).  The agreement sets forth the requirements that 

must be met by CHP in order to receive SSMID funds in FY19, which are estimated at 

$31,230. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Karen Howard or myself.   

-241-

Item G.2.k. 



 



-243-

Item G.2.k. 



-244-

Item G.2.k. 



-245-

Item G.2.k. 



-246-

Item G.2.k. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Funding Agreement with Community Main Street 

 
Attached is the agreement with Cedar Falls Community Main Street (CMS).  The 

agreement sets forth the requirements that must be met by CMS in order to receive 

$15,000 of economic development funds for FY19.  

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Karen Howard or myself.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-247-

Item G.2.l. 



 



-249-

Item G.2.l. 



-250-

Item G.2.l. 



-251-

Item G.2.l. 



-252-

Item G.2.l. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Funding Agreement with Community Main Street 

 
Attached is the agreement to Support the Economic Development Program of Cedar 

Falls Community Main Street (CMS).  The agreement sets forth the requirements that 

must be met by CMS in order to receive SSMID funds in FY19, which are estimated at 

$202,870. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Karen Howard or myself.   

-253-

Item G.2.m. 



 



-255-

Item G.2.m. 



-256-

Item G.2.m. 



-257-

Item G.2.m. 



-258-

Item G.2.m. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: June 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Banking Services Contract 
 
The City of Cedar Falls sent out a request for proposal (RFP) for banking services for 
the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2023.  Seven financial institutions submitted 
bids.  After reviewing the bids and interviewing the top two bidders, I would recommend 
the continuing with Farmers State Bank as our provider of banking services.  
 
The recommendation is based on several factors.  These factors include the interest 
rate earned on our deposits, the minimal fees charged, on-line banking services 
provided, sorting of various city deposits, and other banking services provided.  
Farmers State Bank has been our banking services provider for the past seven years.  
In addition, the interest rate earned on our deposits is very competitive, and they are 
able to provide the banking services as requested by the City.   
 
As part of the RFP the City requested information on additional services which a 
financial institution may provide, including positive pay and remote deposit.  Farmers 
State Bank is able to provide free of charge Positive Pay.  Positive Pay is an automated 
fraud detection tool.  The City will be able to upload issued checks, void checks, 
decision exception items and search for items through the Farmers State Bank online 
banking positive pay portal.  Farmer State Bank highly recommends this fraud 
protection service.  The City will begin the Positive Pay service in FY2019.   
 
Attached is the contract with Farmers State Bank for your approval. If you have any 
questions about the contract, or the RFP process, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
Cc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 

-259-

Item G.2.n. 



 



-261-

Item G.2.n. 



-262-

Item G.2.n. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: June 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Merchant Processing Services Contract 
 
The City of Cedar Falls sent out a request for proposal (RFP) for merchant processing 
services for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2023.  Seven financial institutions 
submitted bids.  After reviewing the bids and interviewing the top bidders, I would 
recommend approval of Professional Solutions Financial Services as our new provider 
of merchant processing services. 
 
The recommendation is based on several factors. Professional Solutions Financial 
Services had the lowest fee schedule. Professional Solutions Financial Services is 
associated with Lincoln Savings Bank. They also are able to provide on-line reporting 
for each merchant account.   
 
Attached is the contract with Professional Solutions Financial Services for your 
approval. If you have any questions about the contract, or the RFP process, please feel 
free to contact me.  
 
 
Cc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 

-263-

Item G.2.o. 



 



-265-

Item G.2.o. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

    M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: June 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Office Supply and Copy Paper Quotes 

 
The City of Cedar Falls sent out bid requests and received quotes from two vendors to 
provide office supplies and copy paper to all departments of the City for a three-year 
period from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.  A summary of the quotes from a sample 
office supply and copy paper listing is as follows: 
 

Matt Parrott/Storey Kenworthy   $20,139.63 
Rite Price Office Supply   $21,319.75 

 
Based on our review of the comparison summary, you will note that Matt Parrott/Storey 
Kenworthy submitted the lowest bid.  Matt Parrott/Storey Kenworthy is the vendor that is 
currently supplying the City with office supplies and copy paper. They have no delivery 
charge, their turnaround time and product quality is acceptable and they have been 
very pleasant to work with the past seven years. 
 
Since Matt Parrott/Storey Kenworthy submitted the lowest bid and based on our current 
quality of service from the vendor, I would recommend approval of Matt Parrott/Storey 
Kenworthy as the office supply provider to the City of Cedar Falls for the period July 1, 
2018 – June 30, 2021.  I have enclosed the proposed contract with Matt Parrott/Storey 
Kenworthy.   
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 
cc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
  
 
 

-267-

Item G.2.p. 



 



-269-

Item G.2.p. 



-270-

Item G.2.p. 



-271-

Item G.2.p. 



-272-

Item G.2.p. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

    M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: June 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Uniform Quotes 

 
The City of Cedar Falls sent out bid requests and received quotes from two vendors to 
provide uniforms to the City for a three-year period from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021. 
When bid requests were received and reviewed, one was complete and one was 
incomplete.  Based on our review of the complete bid received from ServiceWear 
Apparel we have selected them.  Consideration was given to service provided, delivery 
terms, quality of uniforms, and available sizes.   
 
This bid is under the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance, TCPN Contract 
R160801 Apparel Uniforms Accessories Products and Services, which is a national 
government purchasing cooperative. The Iowa Code allows public agencies to 
piggyback on this national contract.  We have been very happy with the current service 
from ServiceWear Apparel and they have no delivery charge and their turnaround time 
and product quality is acceptable.    
 
I would recommend approval of ServiceWear as the uniform provider to the City of 
Cedar Falls for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.  I have enclosed the proposed 
contract with ServiceWear, which you will note includes the master contract under the 
National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance. 
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
cc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 Brian Heath, Public Works & Parks Manager 
 Mark Ripplinger, Director Municipal Operations & Programs 
 Jamie Castle, Inspection Services Manager 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 
 Mike Nyman, Water Reclamation Manager 

 

-273-

Item G.2.q. 



 



-275-

Item G.2.q. 



-276-

Item G.2.q. 



-277-

Item G.2.q. 



-278-

Item G.2.q. 



-279-

Item G.2.q. 



-280-

Item G.2.q. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

    M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE:   June 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Janitorial Products Quotes 

 
The City of Cedar Falls requested and received quotes from four vendors to provide 
janitorial products, such as paper towels, toilet paper, trash can liners, cleaning 
chemicals and soaps to all departments of the City for a three year period from July 1, 
2018 to June 30, 2021.  Of the four bids received two were incomplete. In review of the 
remaining two bids Martin Brothers Distributing Company, Inc. submitted the lowest bid. 
 
 Martin Brothers Distributing Co., Inc.  $31,491.35 
 Storey Kenworthy     $33,740.90 
 
Martin Brothers is able to meet all specifications, they have no delivery charge, they will 
provide a quality product and their turnaround time is acceptable.   
 
Since Martin Brothers submitted the lowest I would recommend approval of Martin 
Brothers as the Janitorial products vendor for the City of Cedar Falls for the period July 
1, 2018 – June 30, 2021.  I have enclosed the proposed contract with Martin Brothers 
Distributing Co., Inc. 
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 
cc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 Matt Buck, Building Maintenance Supervisor 
  
 
 

-281-

Item G.2.r. 



 



-283-

Item G.2.r. 



-284-

Item G.2.r. 



-285-

Item G.2.r. 



 



-287-

Item G.2.s. 



-288-

Item G.2.s. 



-289-

Item G.2.s. 



-290-

Item G.2.s. 



-291-

Item
 G

.2.s. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3148 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, June 12th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2018 
Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project. A total of three (3) bids were 
received, with Feldman Concrete the low bidder: 
 

 
Bid Total 

Feldman Concrete $122,877.68 
Lodge Construction, Inc. $143,607.13 
K Cunningham Construction Co., Inc. $162,644.76 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $136,429.38. Feldman Concrete of 
Dyersville, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $122,877.68, which is 9.9% 
below the Engineer's Estimate. Attached is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
As a result of the competitive bids, we recommend acceptance of the low bid from 
Feldman Concrete in the amount of $122,877.68. On July 9th, 2018, the Contract, 
Bonds and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
  
 

-293-

Item G.2.t. 



 



PROJECT BID TAB

PROJECT NAME: 2018 PUBLIC SIDEWALK AND PEDESTRIAN TRAIL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: SW - 000 - 3148

BID OPENING: June 12, 2018 (1) (2) (3)

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BID EST. UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.F. 2424.0 $1.75 $4,242.00 $1.75 $4,242.00 $2.50 $6,060.00 $3.55 $8,605.20

2 REMOVE PEDESTRIAN TRAIL., P.C.C. S.F. 6199.2 $2.00 $12,398.40 $1.75 $10,848.60 $2.50 $15,498.00 $2.55 $15,807.96

3 REMOVE DRIVEWAY, P.C.C. S.Y. 81.8 $6.00 $490.80 $9.00 $736.20 $20.00 $1,636.00 $13.10 $1,071.58

4 PLACE SIDEWALK, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.F. 5090.3 $4.75 $24,178.93 $4.75 $24,178.93 $3.75 $19,088.63 $5.80 $29,523.74

5 PLACE SIDEWALK, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH (PEDESTRIAN RAMPS) S.F. 965.4 $6.00 $5,792.40 $6.00 $5,792.40 $10.25 $9,895.35 $12.50 $12,067.50

6 PLACE DETECTABLE WARNING PANELS S.F. 164.0 $25.00 $4,100.00 $30.00 $4,920.00 $35.00 $5,740.00 $48.00 $7,872.00

7 PLACE PEDESTRIAN TRAIL., P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.F. 6199.2 $6.00 $37,195.20 $5.50 $34,095.60 $6.25 $38,745.00 $4.90 $30,376.08

8 PLACE DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. 80.4 $42.00 $3,376.80 $42.00 $3,376.80 $48.00 $3,859.20 $54.75 $4,401.90

9 EXCAVATION, SIDEWALK S.F. 6648.4 $1.50 $9,972.60 $1.25 $8,310.50 $1.75 $11,634.70 $1.25 $8,310.50

10 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. 140.70 $65.00 $9,145.50 $50.00 $7,035.00 $55.00 $7,738.50 $70.00 $9,849.00

11 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING S.F. 10549.0 $0.75 $7,911.75 $0.85 $8,966.65 $0.75 $7,911.75 $0.70 $7,384.30

12 VALVE ADJUSTMENT EACH 7.00 $175.00 $1,225.00 $125.00 $875.00 $500.00 $3,500.00 $250.00 $1,750.00

13 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT EACH 5.00 $200.00 $1,000.00 $200.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 $3,750.00 $575.00 $2,875.00

14 GRANULAR BACKFILL TONS 100.0 $25.00 $2,500.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 $45.00 $4,500.00

15 UNSTABLE MATERIAL, OVER EXCAVATION C.Y. 50.0 $18.00 $900.00 $20.00 $1,000.00 $21.00 $1,050.00 $65.00 $3,250.00

16 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

TOTAL $136,429.38 TOTAL $122,877.68 TOTAL $143,607.13 TOTAL $162,644.76

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

ENGINEERING DIVISION

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
Feldman Concrete Lodge Construciton Inc.

K. Cunningham 

Construciton Co., Inc.

-295-

Item
 G

.2.t. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor    
 
 DATE: June 12, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Hartman Reserve Educational Partnership   
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls, along with several other communities in the area, partner 
annually with Hartman Reserve Nature Center to provide public outreach and education 
programs related to improving water quality and stormwater run-off. These programs 
help students and visitors to Hartman Reserve understand the importance of improving 
water quality in urban areas as it helps to protect the environment and preserve our 
local natural resources for continued public recreational use and enjoyment.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls’ annual contribution for 2018-2019 is $1,630.77, which is paid 
for out of the Stormwater Fund. This program helps the City meet the Public Education 
and Outreach requirement of our National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit.  
 
Attached is the proposed contract. 
 
Engineering requests your approval of this contract.  
 
If there are any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:   Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 
 
 

-297-

Item G.2.u. 



 



Contracted Education Proposal June 1, 2018 

Between Hartman Reserve Nature Center and City of Cedar Falls 

Hartman Reserve Nature Center (HRNC) will partner with the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa to organize and 

conduct stormwater education sessions.  This effort will occur under the direction of City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa staff.  Education sessions will occur throughout FY2019 and consist of primarily school groups and 

summer camps. 

OVERVIEW 

 Hartman Reserve will provide classrooms with hands-on water quality themed lessons. In 2018 

Hartman Reserve hosted over 2,500 students at multiple locations throughout our area. In 2019 

we will be hosting school field trips and summer day camps at Hartman Reserves 340 acre 

property and also at other Black Hawk County Conservation properties. 

 Programs such as pond study involve finding and identifying macro invertebrates to assess 

water quality. Other water quality themed programs such as a stream table lesson which 

demonstrates the watershed concept and provides a good lesson on the forces of erosion, live 

animal room where children get to meet the animals that depend on clean water, fishing and  

canoe/kayaking can provide a lifelong recreational activities that are directly impacted by water 

quality. These activities, and more, are available to teachers as they plan a field trip with us. 

 A wide range of programming is provided through a typical year. School Trips, public and private 

programs, summer camp, and educational events are offered. 

 

PROJECT COORDINATION 

Hartman Reserve will handle program planning, set-up, equipment usage, equipment maintenance and 

storage, billing and registration, and training. Reports will be submitted as requested. 

 

STAFF 

Currently, Hartman Reserves Assistant Program Coordinator (APC), under the direction of the lead 

naturalist plans, organizes, and implements outdoor education programs for children and adults. This 

position will lead the Watershed Education Initiative. 

 

 

 

 

-299-

Item G.2.u. 



BUDGET 

A budget not to exceed $5,500 is itemized below:   

Cedar Valley Stormwater Education Initiative     

FY 2019 
 City of 
Cedar Falls 

Hartman Total 

 Hartman Staff .25 FTE (10 hrs/week) = $5,504 $1630.77 ----- $1630.77 

Supplies   0 $200 $200 

Travel 0 $100 $100 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

TOTAL $1630.77 $300 $1930.77 

 

DELIVERABLES 

We provide classrooms with hands-on water quality themed lessons. In 2018 Hartman Reserve 

hosted over 2,500 students at multiple locations throughout our area. In 2019 we will be hosting 

school field trips and summer day camps at Hartman Reserves 340 acre property and also at 

other Black Hawk County Conservation properties. 

Hartman Reserve will provide a report of the educational activities over the last fiscal year. This 

report will be provided by May 15.  

INVOICE 

HRNC will invoice the City of Cedar Falls at beginning of FY 2019 and it will be payable within 60 days. 

 

 

__________________________________   

HRNC, Ed Gruenwald 

 

________________________________________ 

City of Cedar Falls 

 

-300-

Item G.2.u. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 
Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Street Construction Project 
  City Project Number RC-000-3141 
  Cyber Lane – Change Order 
  
 
The City of Cedar Falls has awarded the 2018 Street Construction Project to Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. of Reinbeck, Iowa. This contractor will be reconstructing/repairing 
portions of sixteen (16) streets as a part of this project.  
 
During the construction of a pervious subdivision (CF Technology Park Phase II), side 
streets within the industrial park were not extended to the limits of the plat at the time of 
construction. It was known that at a future date the City may be required to pave a 
street to serve the developable area to the south. 
 
Over the last few months the City has been working with a development in the 
Northeast corner of Hudson Road and Ridgeway Avenue. This change order would be 
for the extension of Cyber Lane south of Technology Parkway to the limits of the plat. I 
have attached a location map for reference. 
 
This work will involve the construction new storm sewer, water main, and concrete 
pavement for Cyber Lane from Technology Parkway south approximately 400’.  
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this change order is $206,527.35 with 
funding from the Economic Development Fund and reimbursed by the South Cedar 
Falls Urban Renewal as revenue is generated.  
 
The Department of Community recommends approving and executing the change order 
with Peterson Contractors, Inc. for 2018 Street Construction Project.  
 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development  
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 

-301-

Item G.2.v. 



 



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

CHANGE OF WORK ORDER 
         No.         2                                                    Non-Substantial   

                                          Substantial 
 

Contract Number RC-000-3141 Project 2018 Street Construction Project 

Kind of Work PCC Paving Date Prepared June 8, 2018 

Contractor Peterson Contractors Inc.   

 
You are hereby ordered to make the following changes from the plans or do the following extra work on your contract 
dated March 5

th
, 2018.  

 
 
A.  Description of change to be made or extra work to be done: 
 

EWO #3 
7000 - Saw Cutting for Removals       100 LF  @ $5.50/LF 
7001 - Pavement Markings       50 STA  @ $35.00/STA  
7002 -  Modified Subbase, 12”        987 SY @ $13.30/SY 
7003 - Compaction of Subgrade       5 STA  @ $250/STA 
7004 - Hydraulic Seeding       10,000 SF  @  $0.40/SF 
7005 - Sidewalk, PCC, 4”, Class “C”      300 SY  @  $40/SY 
7006 - Intake, SW-507        4 Each  @  $3,900/Each 
7007 - Intake, SW-508        2 Each  @  $4,300/Each 
7008 - Storm Sewer, 18”, Plastic Perforated     119 LF  @  $58/LF 
7009 - Subdrain, Perforated, 6”       505 LF  @  $9.35/LF 
 
 
8002 - Pavement, PCC, 9” , Class “C”      1,493  SY  @ $47.00/SY 
8003 - Class 10 Excavation       822 CY  @  $5.00/CY 
8004 - Strip Top soil        499 CY  @  $3.50/CY 
8005 - Respread topsoil Cyber ROW      334 CY  @  $11.50/CY 
8006 - Storm Sewer, 18” RCP       65 LF  @  $65/LF 
8007 - Storm Sewer, 30”, Plastic Perforated     164 LF  @  $90/LF 
8008 - Storm Sewer, 30”, RCP       87 LF  @  $95/LF 
8009 - Flared End, RCP, 30”       1 Each  @  $1,200/Each 
8010 - Water Main, DIP, 12”       368 LF  @  $68.50/LF 
8011 - Fire Hydrant Assembly       1 Each  @ $4,500/Each 
 
 
 
 

B.  Reason for ordering change or extra work: 
Gateway Business Park – Cyber Lane Extension 
 
 (Continued on reverse side) 
 
Approved,                                                                         , 2018                                                                          , 2018 
Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer                          Date                Chase Schrage,  Project Engineer      Date 
 
Peterson Contractors Inc.                                                           By,                                                                      , 2018 
Contractor                  Matt Bohlen, Project Manager             Date 
 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS: 
 
Approved by the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this             day of                                                                      , 2018 
 
Attest                                                  ,                      , 2018                                                       ,                        , 2018 

City Clerk Date Mayor                                 Date 

 

 

 

 

 

6/13

6/13 6/13

-303-

Item G.2.v. 



CHANGE/WORK ORDER NO.             2                     
 
 

C - Settlement for cost of work to be made as follows: 
7000-7001 - Contract Price 
7002  - Agreed unit price per item 
7003-7009 - Contract Price 
8002-8011 -  Agreed unit price per item 
 

Contract Modifications:  

All underground utility work (i.e.: Storm Sewer, Water Main) will need to be completed by August 24, 2018 or liquidated damages in 

the amount of $600 per day will be assessed for each working day that the underground utility work remains. 
 
Add 40 Working Days to the contract 
Total Working Days for contract: 160 Working Days 
 
 

D - ITEMS INCLUDED IN CONTRACT 
 
7-10 

 
Item no. 

 
Item Description 

 
Unit Price 

                                  .XXX 

 
Quantity 

                     .XXX 

 
Amount 

                       .XX 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  0 | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0 |  0   |  1   |  0   | 

 
$5.50 per Lineal Foot 

100 $550.00 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  1  | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0  |  0   |  7  |   8  | 

 
$35.00 per Station 

 
50 

 
$1,750.00 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  2  | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0  |  0   |   2  |  6  | 

 
$13.30 per Square Yard 

 
987 

 
$13,127.10 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  3  | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0  |  0   |   2  |  4  | 

 
$250.00 per Station 

 
5 

 
$1,250.00 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  4  | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0  |  0   |   3 |   0  | 

 
$0.40 per Square Foot 

 
10,000 

 
$4,000.00 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  5  | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0  |  0   |   3  |  3  | 

 
$40.00 per Square Yard 

 
300 

 
$12,000.00 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  6  | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0  |  0   |   3  |  8  | 

 
$3,900.00 per Each 

 
4 

 
$15,600.00 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  7  | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0  |   0  |   3  |  9  | 

 
$4,300.00 per Each 

 
2 

 
$8,600.00 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  8  | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0  |  0   |  6  |   1  | 

 
$58.00 per Lineal Foot 

 
119 

 
$6,902.00 

 
|  7 |  0  |  0  |  9  | 

 
Applies to Item         |   0 |   0   |  6  |   7  | 

 
$9.35 per Lineal Foot 

 
505 

 
$4,721.75 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
        Total 

 
$68,500.85 

 

E - ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN CONTRACT 

 
7-10 

 
Item no. 

 
Item Description 

 
Unit Price 

 

 
Quantity 

 

 
Amount 

 

 
|  8 | 0  | 0  |  2 | Pavement, PCC, 9” , Class “C” $47.00 per Square Yard 1493.00 $70,171 

 
|  8 | 0  | 0  |  3 | Class 10 Excavation $5.00 per Cubic Yard 822.00 $4,110 

|  8 | 0  | 0  |  4 | Strip Top Soil $3.50 per Cubic Yard 499.00 $1,746.50 

|  8 | 0  | 0  |  5 | Respread Top Soil Cyber Lane ROW $11.50 per Cubic Yard 334.00 $3,841.00 

|  8 | 0  | 0  |  6 | Storm Sewer, 18”, RCP $65.00 per Lineal Foot 65.00 $4,225.00 

|  8 | 0  | 0  |  7 | Storm Sewer, 30”, Plastic Perforated $90.00 per Lineal Foot 164.00 $14,760.00 

|  8 | 0  | 0  |  8 | Storm Sewer, 30”, RCP $95.00 per Lineal Foot 87.00 $8,265.00 

|  8 | 0  | 0  |  9 | Flared End, 30”, RCP $1,200 per Each 1.0 $1,200.00 

|  8 | 0  | 1  |  0 | Water Main, DIP, 12” $68.50 per Lineal Foot 368.00 $25,208.00 

|  8 | 0  | 1  |  1 | Fire Hydrant Assembly $4,500 per Each 1.0 $4,500.00 

  
 

 
 

 
        Total 

 
$138,026.50 

Change Order #2 Total: $206,527.35  

Change Orders Running Total: $218.767.35 

-304-

Item G.2.v. 



CF Technology Park Phase II 

Project Location:  
Cyber Lane 

NORTH 

-305-

Item
 G

.2.v. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Brown & City Council 
 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: June 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Design review of a property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 
 

REQUEST: 
 

Repainting a portion of the front façade and replacing signage 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Don Blau, owner of 120 Main Street 

LOCATION: 
 

120 Main Street, The Runner’s Flat  
 

 
PROPOSAL 
The owner of 120 Main Street and the tenant, Scott Gall (The Runner’s Flat), are proposing to 
paint the top half of the storefront façade black and replace the wall and projecting signs for the 
business. The proposal also includes removing the gooseneck lights from above the signs. See 
images below.  
 

             
    Existing       Proposed 
 
BACKGROUND 
This item requires review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council as this 
property is located within the Central Business District (Section 29-168). The downtown district 

-307-

Item G.2.w. 



requires a building site plan review (i.e. design review) for any “substantial improvement” to an 
exterior façade, including a color change. A substantial improvement to properties in the CBD 
Overlay is defined in Section 29-186(c) and reads as follows: 
 

"Substantial improvement” includes any new building construction within the overlay 
district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 
doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 
changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awnings or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk area. A 
substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing building 
height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance. Routine repair or 
replacement of existing roof materials that do not materially change the appearance, 
shape or configuration of the existing roof will not be considered a "substantial 
improvement. Owner-occupied detached single family residences will not be subject to 
these regulations.” 

 
ANALYSIS 
This property is located in a C-3, commercial zoning district, and falls within the Central 
Business District Overlay. As noted above, all proposed substantial improvements to structures 
within the overlay district shall be reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City 
Council. The following is an evaluation of the proposed project with regard to the design review 
requirements: 
 
1. Proportion: The proportions of the building are not being altered. This criterion does not apply. 
 
2. Roof shape, pitch and direction: The roof of the building is not being altered. This 

criterion does not apply. 
 
3. Pattern: The surfaces and openings of this structure will remain the same. This criterion does 

not apply. 
 
4. Materials and texture: The materials of the building are not be altered. This criterion does not 

apply. 
 
5. Color: The applicant is proposing to repaint the sign band at the top of the storefront. The sign 

band acts as the backing for a wall sign for the storefront tenant. The sign band is 
currently painted red. The applicant is proposing to paint it black. All other areas and 
colors on the building will remain the same. The proposed new color is 
complementary to the storefront design and consistent with colors used in the 
district.  This criterion is met. 

 
6. Architectural features: The architectural features of the building are remaining the same. This 

criterion does not apply. 
 
 7. Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting: this criterion does not apply 

for this review 
 
8. Signage: The applicant is proposing to repaint the existing wall and projecting signs and put 

-308-

Item G.2.w. 



them back on the building in the same locations. Staff has no concerns with the 
removal of the gooseneck lights. This criterion is met. 

 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No comments. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
6/13/2018 

Planner Lehmann presented the proposed façade changes to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission. The Commission noted that they liked the 
improvements. There were no other questions or comments. The proposal 
was unanimously approved by the Commission. 

   
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission and the Community Development Department 
recommend approving the submitted color and signage change for 120 Main Street. 
 
Attachments:   Letter of intent from property owner 
  
 

-309-

Item G.2.w. 



-310-

Item G.2.w. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  
 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: June 13, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Program 
  Grant Administration and Technical Services for Rehabilitation Program  

 
 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds.  In February 2018, Council approved a contract with INRCOG for administrative 
and program responsibilities, after a consultant selection process.  The contract was for 
an initial 6-month period, with an option to renew the agreement for future years(s). 
 
Two rehabilitation projects are underway and more are in the review stages.  Service 
agency reviews have been conducted and payments made.  Required updates to the 
City’s Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan have been made, along with submittal 
of the 2016 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER).  
INRCOG has assisted the City in accomplishing all of this. 
 
Staff recommends continuing with INRCOG by extending the contract for one year.  
Attached is the proposed FY19 agreement with all required attachments. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 

-311-

Item G.2.x. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 
Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 

Water Reclamation Division 
Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This Agreement is made and entered by and between ___the Iowa Northland Regional Council of 
Governments (INRCOG) _____, ____229 East Park Avenue, Waterloo, Iowa 50703____, hereinafter 
referred to as “CONSULTANT" and City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter 
referred to as "CLIENT.” 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 

facilities in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 
  
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONSULTANT 

and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters pertaining to 
this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

 
 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually agreed 

upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional grant 

administrative standards in existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during 
the two year period following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in 
the Services solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, 
CONSULTANT shall re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to 
remedy such error at no cost to CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local 
conditions, the cost of labor and materials, or over competitive bidding and market 
conditions, CONSULTANT does not guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
CDBG Entitlement Funding: Grant Administration and Technical Services for 

Housing Projects 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number  BL-000-CD 
 

-312-

Item G.2.x. 



estimates as compared to contractor's bids or the actual cost to the CLIENT. 
CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express or implied and the parties’ rights, 
liabilities, responsibilities and remedies with respect to the quality of Services, including 
claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of contract, shall be exclusively 
those set forth herein. 

 
 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, 

require from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures 
equipment, materials or services for the project, guarantees with respect to such 
equipment, materials and services. All such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT 
to the full extent of the terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to such 
equipment, and materials obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be 
limited to procuring guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and rendering all 
reasonable assistance to CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the CLIENT covering an extended 

period of time. CONSULTANT does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, marketing or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and understood that 
any estimates, projections or opinions of probable project costs provided herein by 
CONSULTANT are estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s experience and 
represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable judgment as a qualified professional. 
CONSULTANT does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not vary 
from the opinions of probable costs prepared by CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives 
any and all claims that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any such variance.  

 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of the 

Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s requirements; obtain all necessary 

approvals and permits required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over 
the project; and designate a person with authority to act on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters 
concerning the Services. 

  
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to 

the Services, and obtain additional reports, data and services as may be required for the 
project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the 
results of such other services in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of 
Cedar Falls," dated December 13, 2011 as revised January 31, 2017 consisting of 11 pages, 
which are attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set 
out word for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance containing all 
coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth 
in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of 
this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 
 

 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto 

-313-

Item G.2.x. 



and marked Exhibit B. 
 
V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 

PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts Between 

Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of three 
pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 

 
 
VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Administrative 
compensation for: housing rehabilitation services shall not exceed $6,500/unit; housing repairs 
shall not exceed $2,500/unit; total agency allocation shall not exceed $3,500; demolition and 
clearance management shall not exceed $3,500; and total planning and reporting expenses shall 
not exceed $7,500. 
 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services completed at the time of billing. CLIENT 
agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days after receipt 
thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written 
notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions hereof. CLIENT 
agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 

written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement 
may be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of substantial 
failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the 
terminating party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, in the event of a 
non-monetary default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In either case, 
CONSULTANT will be paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of the 
termination in accordance with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Bid documents, specifications, final project specific calculations, plans, reports, and other 
instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments 
of service solely for the purpose of the benefiting the CDBG Entitlement Program. Any 
other use or reuse of original or altered files shall be at CLIENT’s sole risk without liability or 
legal exposure to CONSULTANT and CLIENT agrees to release, defend and hold 
CONSULTANT harmless from and against all claims or suits asserted against 
CONSULTANT in the event such documents are used for a purpose different than originally 
prepared even though such claims or suits may be based on allegations of negligence by 
CONSULTANT. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as limiting or 
depriving CONSULTANT of its rights to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or 
carry out other projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such other projects or 
work are similar to the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on systems and software different 

than those with which they were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no 

-314-

Item G.2.x. 



warranty as to the compatibility of these files with any other system or software. Because of 
the potential degradation of electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict between 
the original documents and the electronic files, the original documents will govern. 

 
IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety 
measures and programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, 
in connection with construction work performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor 
shall CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of CLIENT's construction 
contractors, subcontractors or of any of their employees, agents and representatives of 
such contractors; or for inspecting machinery, construction equipment and tools used and 
employed by contractors and subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall 
not have the right to stop or reject work without the thorough evaluation and approval of the 
CLIENT. In no event shall CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of CLIENT's 
construction contractors, subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the 
construction work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work under 
contracts with CLIENT. 

 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 

hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT shall have no legal responsibility or 

liability for any and all pre-existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any hazardous or 
toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned which was not brought onto such site or sites 
by CONSULTANT. CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any and all liability 
to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-
existing contamination except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, transportation, 

treatment and delivery for disposal of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely 
responsible for obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the disposal facility 
and/or transporter for any responsibility or liability arising from improper disposal or transportation of 
such waste. CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in CLIENT’s 
obligations or responsibilities as a generator in the storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of 
any pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any governmentally required 
forms relating to regulated activities including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, 
treatment, transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or soils sampling, CLIENT shall 

approve selection of the contractors to perform such services, all site locations, and provide 
CONSULTANT with all necessary information regarding the presence of underground hazards, 
utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and if the dispute cannot be 

settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party 

-315-

Item G.2.x. 



shall notify the other party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable 
to resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such dispute shall be 
submitted for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the American Arbitration 
Association (or any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting the dispute 
to mediation can be changed if the parties mutually agree in writing to extend the time between 
receipt of notice and submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be shared 50 
percent by CONSULTANT and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall 
be a condition required before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to or during the 
negotiations or the mediation either party may initiate litigation that would otherwise be barred by a 
statute of limitations, and CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it may have 
to obtain security for the payment of its invoices. 

 
 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any action at law or other 

judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District 
Court, Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and 

supersedes any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, or 
communications heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not be 
changed, modified, or amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event 
of any conflict between this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, the terms 
and conditions of Exhibit C shall control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, 
Exhibit C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor approved 

by CLIENT. In no case shall CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT 
of any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 

such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in or on such 
forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and 

CONSULTANT and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
 

(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its 
exhibits limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either 
party that are available to either party under the law. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written 
below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  __James P. Brown________  Printed Name:          Kevin Blanshan        
 
 

-316-

Item G.2.x. 



Title: __Mayor of Cedar Falls  Title:        INRCOG Executive Director                       
 
 
Date:  Date:  

-317-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
    

Exhibit A 
 

CDBG Entitlement Funding: Grant Administration and Technical Services for 
Housing Projects 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number BL-000-CD 
 

   
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
CDBG GRANT ADMINISTRATION AND TECHNICAL SERVICES FOR HOUSING 

PROJECTS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
Overview 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) is proposing to 
continue administering the City of Cedar Falls’ (City) Housing Rehabilitation, Housing 
Repair, and Agency Grant programs, all of which are funded through the City’s 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement allocation. 
 
 
Qualifications 
 
Housing Rehabilitation and CDBG Experience 
 
As a public agency created under Chapter 28E of the Iowa Code, INRCOG serves a six-
county area. The City of Cedar Falls is a member in good standing our staff has built a 
solid relationship with the City’s staff. We are located in close proximity to Cedar Falls 
City Hall and we are very familiar with the community, including its infrastructure, 
services and its elected and appointed officials.   
 
Our agency is proud of the working relationships we have built with numerous federal 
and state departments, as we have administered numerous programs on behalf of our 
local government members. Included amongst those agencies are the US Department of 
Commerce, Economic Development Administration; US Department of Agriculture; 
Federal Highway and Federal Transit Administrations; Federal Emergency Management 
Agency; Iowa Economic Development Authority; Iowa Department of Transportation; 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources; Iowa Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management; and the Iowa Finance Authority. INRCOG also provides staff and 
oversight for several regional bodies including the Black Hawk County Metropolitan 
Transportation Organization; Regional Transportation Authority; Regional Transit 
Commission; Regional Economic Development Commission; and Regional Housing 
Council. Further, our agency has acted as the procurement and fiscal agent for multi-
county emergency management regions. Through our work, our agency has developed 
relationships with several non-profit organizations, including administration of housing-
related grants which involves working directly with several entities such as The Salvation 
Army, Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity, Cedar Valley Friends of the Family, 

-318-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
Operation Threshold, Exceptional Persons, Inc., Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging; 
Northeast Iowa Community Action Corporation; Community Based Services; and House 
of Hope. 
 
INRCOG has extensive housing rehabilitation and repair experience under the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority’s (IEDA) Housing Rehabilitation and Iowa Finance 
Authority’s (IFA) Local Housing Trust Fund programs.  IEDA’s program is funded 
through the CDBG program, as administered by the US Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, and the IFA program is funded through the State Housing Trust 
Fund. We also have a familiarity with the HOME Investment Partnership Program as 
administered by the US Department of Housing and Development. INRCOG has 
administered housing trust fund grants for the Iowa Northland Regional Housing Council 
since 2003 and since 2014 for the Waterloo Housing Trust Fund. Through the trust 
funds, our staff has developed and administered annual homeowner repair programs 
that serve approximately ten individual households per year. In addition to administering 
the individual home improvement programs, INRCOG has managed numerous housing 
acquisition programs, as funded by the Hazard Mitigation Grant and CDBG Programs, 
following disasters in 1993, 1999, 2000, 2008, and 2016. 
 
Our staff writes the grants for these programs for our member local governments and we 
performs all administrative tasks relative to construction, finance, and professional 
service functions associated with the programs.  We have completed all IEDA basic and 
updated trainings associated with administering CDBG funds, specifically those 
associated with environmental assessments, Davis-Bacon (prevailing wage) compliance, 
historical preservation review and approval, Section 3 (hiring practices) compliance, fair 
housing standards, lead-based paint testing and certification, radon testing, and 
contractor procurement. INRCOG is accustomed to developing the necessary contracts, 
developing file and program management techniques, assisting with city audits, 
successfully preparing for and completing IEDA monitoring reviews, conflict mediation, 
financial management, and closeout processes associated with CDBG projects. 
 
Primary INRCOG Staff Members 
The primary contacts for this proposal and program are 

o Brian Schoon, Director of Development (bschoon@inrcog.org);  
o Cindy Knox, Housing Planner II (cknox@inrcog.org);  
o Rose Phillips, Housing Planner II (rphillips@inrcog.org).   

 
Brian Schoon has been employed by INRCOG since September 1991 and is currently 
serving as the Director of Development. He is a member of the American Institute of 
Certified Planners. His responsibilities include supervision, project administration, budget 
oversight, and planning functions associated with INRCOG’s housing, planning, and 
economic development efforts, including numerous CDBG projects funded by the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority (IEDA).  Schoon also oversees the Iowa Northland 
Regional Housing Council and its local Housing Trust Funds and staffs the Waterloo 
Housing Trust Fund and its financial programs. He is currently providing planning 
services to the City, including updating the Consolidated and Annual Action Plans 
related to its current HUD CDBG Entitlement Program. Schoon has a Bachelors’ degree 
in Landscape Design from South Dakota State University and a Masters’ degree in 
Community and Regional Planning from Iowa State University. 
 

-319-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
Cindy Knox has worked as a housing program specialist for INRCOG for 13 years. 
Knox has administered nearly two dozen CDBG housing rehab programs, as well as 
other housing programs awarded to our member communities from the US Department 
of Agriculture, Federal Home Loan Bank, and Iowa Finance Authority. She has managed 
homebuyer and down-payment assistance programs; housing inspection programs; and 
emergency and rural repair programs for our regional Housing Council. Knox is a 
Certified Lead-Based Paint Sampling Technician and has knowledge of Iowa Minimum 
Housing and Housing Quality Standards. Knox has a Bachelor’s degree in Design and 
the Human Environment from the University of Northern Iowa. 
 
Rose Phillips has been with INRCOG since early 2017 and is responsible for managing 
CDBG housing rehabilitation programs for our member communities. She also develops 
housing needs assessments and manages post-disaster housing acquisition programs 
for our member local governments. Phillips has a Bachelors’ degree in Environmental 
Studies from Mount Holyoke College and a Masters’ degree in Urban and Regional 
Planning from the University of Iowa. 
 
Richard Dewater (INRCOG Subcontractor) will serve as an independent contract 
employee of INRCOG, as he has for over two dozen of our rehabilitation projects.  His 
expenses, which are flat-fee, are included in the Technical Services budget of this 
proposal.  He will perform all initial rehabilitation and lead-based paint inspections, as 
well as draft bid specifications which outlines work to be completed on each selected 
unit.  Dewater will perform all inspections of work by contractor(s), mediate disputes, and 
make himself available for meetings and technical assistance. 
 
 
Description of Technical Services, Grant Administration, and Organizational 
Capacity 
 
INRCOG, through its existing staff, will administer the City’s Fiscal Year 2019 Housing 
Rehabilitation and Housing  
 
Repair Programs and the Agency Grant program, as funded by the US Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). As part of a subsequent contract, INRCOG will 
complete rehabilitation projects and repair homes in the same manner that INRCOG 
currently provides to non-entitlement CDBG communities, and will assist with providing 
agency grants, all under the supervision of City staff. Included in each housing 
rehabilitation project, INRCOG will provide general and technical administrative services, 
which includes income verifications, construction management, vendor procurements, 
lead tests, and oversight of radon testing, as is necessary.  INRCOG will propose per 
unit expenses for each home, including staff time and benefits, travel time and 
expenses, recording, mailing, and other ancillary expenses associated with the program. 
 
INRCOG will be responsible for providing all inspections and the City will be responsible 
for preparing initial project descriptions, with write-ups to INRCOG, as may be 
associated with the programs addressed under this proposal. INRCOG will prepare 
procurement and contract documents as is necessary for each rehabilitation and/or 
repair project. We will then manage each home project including preparation of a 
prioritized list of projects, contracts, and implementation of each contract.  INRCOG will 
present any necessary approvals or reports to the City’s Housing Commission and/or 

-320-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
City Council.  Further, as HUD’s subrecipient, the City will be responsible for obtaining 
HUD reimbursement for all expenses under this proposal with INRCOG assisting with 
obtaining said reimbursements. Likewise, INRCOG will assist the City with any 
necessary HUD or CDBG reports, as requested. 
 
 
 
 
 
Budget 
 
INRCOG is prepared to offer the administrative services for a not-to-exceed price for 
each unit or task completed during the City fiscal year, as outlined below.  Said 
administrative expenses will be billed on an hourly basis, using rates that will be defined 
in the contract between the City and INRCOG. 
 

o Single-Unit Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program 
• $34,500/Unit (Includes all Administration, Construction, and Program 

expenses) 
o INRCOG General and Technical Administration Expense: $6,500/Unit 

o Single-Unit Owner-Occupied Housing Repair Program 
• $12,500/Unit (Includes all Administration, Construction, and Program 

expenses) 
o INRCOG General Administration Expense: $2,500/Unit 

o Agency Awards Program (to City-Determined Agencies) 
• Approximately $5,500/Agency to Six (6) Agencies (Includes all Administration 

Procurement, Monitoring, and Award expenses) 
o INRCOG Expense: $3,500 

o Demolition and Clearance Program 
• Approximately $9,000/Unit (Includes all Administration and Award expenses) 

o INRCOG Expense: $3,500 

o Plan and Report Development 
• Annual Action Plan, CAPER, and Reports (i.e. Section 3, MBE/DBE, SF 425) 

o INRCOG Expense: $7,500 
 
If accepted by the City, INRCOG is willing to negotiate a contract utilizing the City’s 
standard agreement.  INRCOG currently meets the City’s insurance requirements and 
has attached a certificate as evidence.   
 
As with prior contracts, INRCOG will provide monthly invoices to the City for services 
provided by our staff.  Services covered by the agreement will be assigned an individual, 
unique program number through which expenses will be tracked and monitored within 
INRCOG’s monthly financial reports and annual independent audit.  INRCOG shall make 
all financial records available to the City upon request. 
 
Time of Performance 
Work under this proposal would begin upon execution of an agreement and completion 
would be no later than June 30th, 2019.  INRCOG may propose an extension to the 

-321-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
negotiated agreement, in the event it is unable to complete the services defined above.  
Accordingly, the completion date may be extended for a period of up to six (6) months 
upon written request of INRCOG documenting a good faith effort to complete 
performance in a timely manner. 
 
Project Review 
At least annually, but not later than May 1st, 2019 during the contract timeframe, the City 
and INRCOG will meet to review INRCOG’s performance with regard to the services 
provided to the City.  Extending the existing agreement for future years(s) may also be 
discussed at that time. 
 

-322-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
    

Exhibit B 
 

CDBG Entitlement Funding: Grant Administration and Technical Services for 
Housing Projects 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number BL-000-CD 
 

  Original12/13/11 
Revision 01/31/2017 

 
    INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR  

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub-contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 

-323-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 
 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 

All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 
 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 

The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes 
of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 
 

-324-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and 
volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not 
limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way 
responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the 
Contractor due to accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in 
person or property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the 
Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent 
caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   

-325-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 
of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 

-326-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  
 
Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

-327-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

-328-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 

 
CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
  

-329-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 

 

$1,000,000 

-330-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
  

-331-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

-332-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

-333-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 

[Type text] 
 

    
Exhibit C 

 
CDBG Entitlement Funding: Grant Administration and Technical Services for 

Housing Projects  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number BL-000-CD 
 

  2/9/12 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 
CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS 
 

 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, 
“Contractor,” as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 
 

-334-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 

[Type text] 
 

 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 
of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 
court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment A, shall constitute a 
default under this Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Attachment 
A. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, 
Attachment A. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 
 

-335-

Item G.2.x. 



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 

[Type text] 
 

 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services 
furnished to the City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner, in accordance with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good 
and sound practices applicable to the Contractor’s industry or profession, and as 
otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 
extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 

-336-

Item G.2.x. 



The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

2/9/2018

PDCM Insurance
P.O. Box 2597
Waterloo IA 50704

Janet Dufel, CPCU, CIC, CRM, CPIW
319-234-8888 319-234-7702

jdufel@pdcm.com

Philadelphia Ins. Companies
IOWANOR-02 IMWCA

Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments
229 E. Park Avenue
Waterloo IA 50703

* XL Insurance

658193401

A X 1,000,000
X 1,000,000

20,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

X

Y Y PHPK1673821 7/1/2017 7/1/2018

2,000,000

A 1,000,000
X

XX

Y Y PHPK1673821 7/1/2017 7/1/2018

A X X 4,000,000

10,000

Y PHUB589612

X
4,000,000

7/1/2017 7/1/2018

B

N

0640 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 X
5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000
A
C

Professional Liability
Public Officials E&O

PHPK1673821
POL0950362

7/1/2017
7/1/2017

7/1/2018
7/1/2018

Ea Incident/Aggregate
Ea Claim/Aggregate

1000000/2000000
1000000/1000000

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and
their board members, employees and volunteers are an Additional insured on the general liability policy on a primary and non-contributory basis. Governmental
Immunities Endorsement and 30 Day Notice of Cancellation Endorsement are included. Waiver of Subrogation applies under General Liability.

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls IA 50613

-337-

Item G.2.x. 



� � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � �

�  � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � ! � � � � � " � � � # " $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � #

% � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � &' ( ) ) * + ' , - . / * 0 * + - . . , - 1 , . , 2 3 ' ( 4 * + - / * 5 - + 26 ' 7 * 8 9 . ** : : ; < = > ? ; 8 @ = ; A0 @ B ; C : 5 ; D E C F C D ( D G @ F > H @ = > C F I - J J > = > C F @ K , F E L D ; J M A

6 * ' 2 , ( 0 , , N O 7 ( , 6 - 0 , 0 6 9 + * 8 � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �  �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � �  � � P  � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " Q � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  Q � � � � � � � � R Q � � � � � � � S � � � " TR � � � � � � � � �  �  � � T � � R � � � � � �  �  � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � S � � � T  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � �  � � � � � R � � � � $ � � U T � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � P  � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � �� � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � #% � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � Q � � � � � $ � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � �  � � � � Q � � � � � � � � � � � �� � �  � � P  � � � � � V � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � " � W � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �� � �  � � P  � � � � #% � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �   � � �  � � � � � � � � � � Q � � � � � � �  � � � � �    � �  Q � � � � � � � V � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �� � �  � � � � � � T � � � � � � � � � � T $ � � �  � � � � � � � � � V � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � #% � � V � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � X � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � "  � � � � � � � Q � � � �6 * ' 2 , ( 0 , , , N . , ) , 2 6 ( Y , 0 6 9 + - 0 ' * #V � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � "  � � � W � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � �  Q � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �� � �  � � � � � �  � � � � #

Z [ \ ] ^ _ Z ` a b c d b e e fg g h Z e b ] i \Z ` a b c d b e e f j k l m h n o p
q r s t u s t q r v

w w
-338-

Item G.2.x. 



� � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � �� �  � � � � � � �

� �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � !  " # $ " % & ' ( � ) * �

+ , � � � � - . � � � / � � 0 / . - � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 1 � . � � - � - � � - � � 0 , � � . 2 2 . 3 � � 4 56 � 7 7 8 9 6 � : ; < 8 = 8 9 : ; ; � : > � ; � + ? 6 � @ 8 9 : < 8 A : 9 +� B = 8 9 � : = C 6 � = + 9 : 6 + � 9 � A 9 � + 8 6 + � @ 8 ; � : > � ; � + ? 6 � @ 8 9 : < 8 A : 9 +9 : � ; 9 � : C A 9 � + 8 6 + � @ 8 ; � : > � ; � + ? 6 � @ 8 9 : < 8 A : 9 +B � 3 � 2 2 3 � � � �  D . 0 , � � 0 , � � - E � � 0 / � � 0 . � � 2 � � / � � � - � �0 , � - � � � � � � . � F � � � 0 � F � 4 � � � � 0 0 , � � � � � � � -  � � G4 . � � � � / � � 0 � 2 � / / � � � 0 G . � 0 , � � � � � � � -  � � 2 � � � 0 , �� � � � � � - � � H � � � 0 � � � 3 � � 0 � � 4 0 , � 0 3 � � . 0 - . � . !B � � � � � . � � / / � � � 0 G � � � - � � � � � � 3 � 2 2 � . 0 � � D E � � 0 � � 0 .2 � � D � 2 � 0 G � . � � � G 1 . � 0 � . � . � � � 2 � � / . � E � - 4 / � � 0 � �� I � � � � . � 0 , � � 1 1 2 � � � D 2 � 2 � / � 0 . � � � � � � � � � � !

-339-

Item G.2.x. 



� � � � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

 � � � � � � � � � � �  ! " # $  % & ' & # ( ) % & ! � * * ) % & + �  % , + - . / - 0 1 2 3 � 4 5 �

6 7 ) ! &  8 9 # ! & : &  ; : 9 8 ) * ) & ! )  ! " # $  % & < # 9 ( ) 8 & 8 "  8 & # ; 7 & * 9 = = 9 > )  ? �� � � � 
 � � � @ � A 
 � 
 � @ � � � @ 	 � � � 6 � � � B 
 � @ A 
 � @ � 6C  D � E F � �� 1 G 3 � 5 � H H I J I 4 K 1 L � K M N O 3 H 0 3 O M 4 K P M Q� O � O 2 1 K I R 1 J I 4 K P M Q � 4 S 1 J I 4 K P M Q � 5  4 T 3 O 3 H � U 3 O 1 J I 4 K M
�  * 9 # : $ ; ) 9  # & V " ) # & 8 ; 9 % 9 : < = & ; & ; 7 ) ! ' % 7 & 8 " = & + ) *  9 ; ! 7 9 >  $ W 9 ( & + > ) = = W & ! 7 9 >  )  ; 7 & X & % = $ # $ ; ) 9  ! ,� Y C 3 S J I 4 K � � Z [ \ 4 � M � K � K M N O 3 H ) ! $ : &  8 & 8 ; 9)  % = " 8 & $ ! $  $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ; 7 & < & # ! 9  ] ! ^ 9 #9 # ? $  ) _ $ ; ) 9  ] ! ^ ! 7 9 >  )  ; 7 & ' % 7 & 8 " = & + W " ; 9  = `> ) ; 7 # & ! < & % ; ; 9 = ) $ W ) = ) ; ` * 9 # a W 9 8 ) = ` )  b " # ` a + a < # 9 < & # ; `8 $ : $ ? & a 9 # a < & # ! 9  $ = $  8 $ 8 ( & # ; ) ! )  ? )  b " # ` a% $ " ! & 8 + )  > 7 9 = & 9 # )  < $ # ; + W ` �� Y � 9 " # $ % ; ! 9 # 9 : ) ! ! ) 9  ! c 9 #� Y 6 7 & $ % ; ! 9 # 9 : ) ! ! ) 9  ! 9 * ; 7 9 ! & $ % ; )  ? 9  ` 9 " #W & 7 $ = * c)  ; 7 & < & # * 9 # : $  % & 9 * ` 9 " # 9  ? 9 )  ? 9 < & # $ ; ) 9  ! * 9 #; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ] ! ^ $ ; ; 7 & = 9 % $ ; ) 9  ] ! ^8 & ! ) ?  $ ; & 8 $ W 9 ( & ,d 9 > & ( & # �� Y 6 7 & )  ! " # $  % & $ * * 9 # 8 & 8 ; 9 ! " % 7 $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ =)  ! " # & 8 9  = ` $ < < = ) & ! ; 9 ; 7 & & e ; &  ; < & # : ) ; ; & 8 W `= $ > c $  8� Y � * % 9 ( & # $ ? & < # 9 ( ) 8 & 8 ; 9 ; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ) !# & V " ) # & 8 W ` $ % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # $ ? # & & : &  ; + ; 7 &)  ! " # $  % & $ * * 9 # 8 & 8 ; 9 ! " % 7 $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8> ) = =  9 ; W & W # 9 $ 8 & # ; 7 $  ; 7 $ ; > 7 ) % 7 ` 9 " $ # &# & V " ) # & 8 W ` ; 7 & % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # $ ? # & & : &  ; ; 9< # 9 ( ) 8 & * 9 # ! " % 7 $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ,

� Y f ) ; 7 # & ! < & % ; ; 9 ; 7 & )  ! " # $  % & $ * * 9 # 8 & 8 ; 9 ; 7 & ! &$ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ! + ; 7 & * 9 = = 9 > )  ? $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ =& e % = " ! ) 9  ! $ < < = ` �6 7 ) ! )  ! " # $  % & 8 9 & !  9 ; $ < < = ` ; 9 a W 9 8 ) = ` )  b " # ` a 9 #a < # 9 < & # ; ` 8 $ : $ ? & a 9 % % " # # )  ? $ * ; & # �� Y @ = = > 9 # g + )  % = " 8 )  ? : $ ; & # ) $ = ! + < $ # ; ! 9 #& V " ) < : &  ; * " #  ) ! 7 & 8 )  % 9   & % ; ) 9  > ) ; 7 ! " % 7> 9 # g + 9  ; 7 & < # 9 b & % ; ] 9 ; 7 & # ; 7 $  ! & # ( ) % & +: $ )  ; &  $  % & 9 # # & < $ ) # ! ^ ; 9 W & < & # * 9 # : & 8 W ` 9 #9  W & 7 $ = * 9 * ; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ] ! ^ $ ; ; 7 &= 9 % $ ; ) 9  9 * ; 7 & % 9 ( & # & 8 9 < & # $ ; ) 9  ! 7 $ ! W & &  % 9 : < = & ; & 8 c 9 #� Y 6 7 $ ; < 9 # ; ) 9  9 * a ` 9 " # > 9 # g a 9 " ; 9 * > 7 ) % 7 ; 7 &)  b " # ` 9 # 8 $ : $ ? & $ # ) ! & ! 7 $ ! W & &  < " ; ; 9 ) ; !)  ; &  8 & 8 " ! & W ` $  ` < & # ! 9  9 # 9 # ? $  ) _ $ ; ) 9  9 ; 7 & # ; 7 $  $  9 ; 7 & # % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # 9 # ! " W % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 #&  ? $ ? & 8 )  < & # * 9 # : )  ? 9 < & # $ ; ) 9  ! * 9 # $< # )  % ) < $ = $ ! $ < $ # ; 9 * ; 7 & ! $ : & < # 9 b & % ; ,

h i h j k l m n o p k

q r s t u v q w x y z { y | | }

-340-

Item G.2.x. 



0 1 2 3 � 4 5 � � �  ! " # $  % & ' & # ( ) % & ! � * * ) % & + �  % , + - . / -  � � � � � � � � �

 Y f ) ; 7 # & ! < & % ; ; 9 ; 7 & )  ! " # $  % & $ * * 9 # 8 & 8 ; 9 ; 7 & ! &$ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ! + ; 7 & * 9 = = 9 > )  ? ) ! $ 8 8 & 8 ; 9C 3 S J I 4 K � � � Z � I G I J M � 5 � K M N O 1 K S 3 ~� * % 9 ( & # $ ? & < # 9 ( ) 8 & 8 ; 9 ; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ) !# & V " ) # & 8 W ` $ % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # $ ? # & & : &  ; + ; 7 & : 9 ! ; > &> ) = = < $ ` 9  W & 7 $ = * 9 * ; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ) ! ; 7 &$ : 9 "  ; 9 * )  ! " # $  % & �� Y � & V " ) # & 8 W ` ; 7 & % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # $ ? # & & : &  ; c 9 #
� Y @ ( $ ) = $ W = & "  8 & # ; 7 & $ < < = ) % $ W = & � ) : ) ; ! 9 *�  ! " # $  % & ! 7 9 >  )  ; 7 & X & % = $ # $ ; ) 9  ! c> 7 ) % 7 & ( & # ) ! = & ! ! ,6 7 ) ! &  8 9 # ! & : &  ; ! 7 $ = =  9 ; )  % # & $ ! & ; 7 &$ < < = ) % $ W = & � ) : ) ; ! 9 * �  ! " # $  % & ! 7 9 >  )  ; 7 &X & % = $ # $ ; ) 9  ! ,

-341-

Item G.2.x. 



� � � � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

 � � � � � � � � �  � ! " # $ % ! & ' ( ' $ ) * & ' " � + + * & ' , � ! & - , . / 0 .

1 2 * " ' ! 3 4 $ " ' 5 ' ! 6 5 4 3 * + * ' " * ! " # $ % ! & ' 7 $ 4 ) * 3 ' 3 # ! 3 ' $ 6 2 ' + 4 8 8 4 9 * ! : �� � � � 
 � � � ; � < 
 � 
 � ; � � � ; 	 � � � 1 � � � = 
 � ; < 
 � ; � 1� � � > � � 1 ( ? � � � � � 
 1 
 > � � 
 � ; 1 � � � ( � � ; 	 � � � 1 � � � = 
 � ; < 
 � ; � 1@  A � B C � �� D E F � G � H H I J I K L D M � L N O P F H Q F P N K L R N S� P � P T D L I U D J I K L R N S � K V D J I K L � L H B F N V P I W J I K L � G  K E W M F J F H � W F P D J I K L N

� ! + 4 $ 5 % 6 * 4 ! $ ' X # * $ ' 3 6 4 & 4 5 7 8 ' 6 ' 6 2 * " ( & 2 ' 3 # 8 ' , * + ! 4 6 " 2 4 9 ! % Y 4 ) ' , 9 * 8 8 Y ' " 2 4 9 ! * ! 6 2 ' > ' & 8 % $ % 6 * 4 ! " -� Z @ F V J I K L � � [ \ ] K � N � L � L N O P F H * " % 5 ' ! 3 ' 3 6 4* ! & 8 # 3 ' % " % ! % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 6 2 ' 7 ' $ " 4 ! ^ " _ 4 $4 $ : % ! * ` % 6 * 4 ! ^ " _ " 2 4 9 ! * ! 6 2 ' ( & 2 ' 3 # 8 ' , Y # 6 4 ! 8 a9 * 6 2 $ ' " 7 ' & 6 6 4 8 * % Y * 8 * 6 a + 4 $ b Y 4 3 * 8 a * ! c # $ a b 4 $b 7 $ 4 7 ' $ 6 a 3 % 5 % : ' b & % # " ' 3 , * ! 9 2 4 8 ' 4 $ * ! 7 % $ 6 , Y ab a 4 # $ 9 4 $ d b % 6 6 2 ' 8 4 & % 6 * 4 ! 3 ' " * : ! % 6 ' 3 % ! 33 ' " & $ * Y ' 3 * ! 6 2 ' ( & 2 ' 3 # 8 ' 4 + 6 2 * " ' ! 3 4 $ " ' 5 ' ! 67 ' $ + 4 $ 5 ' 3 + 4 $ 6 2 % 6 % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 % ! 3* ! & 8 # 3 ' 3 * ! 6 2 ' b 7 $ 4 3 # & 6 " e & 4 5 7 8 ' 6 ' 3 4 7 ' $ % 6 * 4 ! "2 % ` % $ 3 b -f 4 9 ' ) ' $ �� Z 1 2 ' * ! " # $ % ! & ' % + + 4 $ 3 ' 3 6 4 " # & 2 % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8* ! " # $ ' 3 4 ! 8 a % 7 7 8 * ' " 6 4 6 2 ' ' g 6 ' ! 6 7 ' $ 5 * 6 6 ' 3Y a 8 % 9 h % ! 3� Z � + & 4 ) ' $ % : ' 7 $ 4 ) * 3 ' 3 6 4 6 2 ' % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3* " $ ' X # * $ ' 3 Y a % & 4 ! 6 $ % & 6 4 $ % : $ ' ' 5 ' ! 6 , 6 2 '* ! " # $ % ! & ' % + + 4 $ 3 ' 3 6 4 " # & 2 % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 39 * 8 8 ! 4 6 Y ' Y $ 4 % 3 ' $ 6 2 % ! 6 2 % 6 9 2 * & 2 a 4 # % $ '$ ' X # * $ ' 3 Y a 6 2 ' & 4 ! 6 $ % & 6 4 $ % : $ ' ' 5 ' ! 6 6 47 $ 4 ) * 3 ' + 4 $ " # & 2 % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 -

� Z i * 6 2 $ ' " 7 ' & 6 6 4 6 2 ' * ! " # $ % ! & ' % + + 4 $ 3 ' 3 6 4 6 2 ' " '% 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 " , 6 2 ' + 4 8 8 4 9 * ! : * " % 3 3 ' 3 6 4@ F V J I K L � � � [ � I E I J N � G � L N O P D L V F j� + & 4 ) ' $ % : ' 7 $ 4 ) * 3 ' 3 6 4 6 2 ' % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 * "$ ' X # * $ ' 3 Y a % & 4 ! 6 $ % & 6 4 $ % : $ ' ' 5 ' ! 6 , 6 2 ' 5 4 " 6 9 '9 * 8 8 7 % a 4 ! Y ' 2 % 8 + 4 + 6 2 ' % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 * " 6 2 '% 5 4 # ! 6 4 + * ! " # $ % ! & ' �� Z � ' X # * $ ' 3 Y a 6 2 ' & 4 ! 6 $ % & 6 4 $ % : $ ' ' 5 ' ! 6 h 4 $� Z ; ) % * 8 % Y 8 ' # ! 3 ' $ 6 2 ' % 7 7 8 * & % Y 8 ' � * 5 * 6 " 4 +� ! " # $ % ! & ' " 2 4 9 ! * ! 6 2 ' > ' & 8 % $ % 6 * 4 ! " h9 2 * & 2 ' ) ' $ * " 8 ' " " -1 2 * " ' ! 3 4 $ " ' 5 ' ! 6 " 2 % 8 8 ! 4 6 * ! & $ ' % " ' 6 2 ' % 7 7 8 * & % Y 8 '� * 5 * 6 " 4 + � ! " # $ % ! & ' " 2 4 9 ! * ! 6 2 ' > ' & 8 % $ % 6 * 4 ! " -

k l k m n o p q r s n

t u v w x y t z { | } ~ | � � �

n n
-342-

Item G.2.x. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Administration Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: June 13, 2018  

 SUBJECT: REAP Grant Application: Clay Street Park Water Quality Improvement  
  Project 
 
 
City CIP #60 relates to a drainage improvement from the Clay Street Park to 
Washington Street, budgeting $150,000 for a project.  Staff is seeking opportunities to 
enhance the project, by leveraging these planned improvements with additional best 
management practices that may be grant-eligible.  In December 2017 the City 
requested, but did not obtain, an IDALS grant.  The proposal included two bioretention 
cells and a permeable alley along Clay Street Park, estimated to cost $192,100. 
 
There is another grant that may be a fit for this project: REAP (Resource Enhancement 
and Protection).  REAP’s objective is to support the enhancement and protection of the 
state's natural and cultural resources.  One of the areas REAP grants include is City 
Parks and Open Space.   
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the attached Memorandum of 
Understanding with INRCOG to prepare a REAP application for the Clay Street Park 
Water Quality Improvement Project.  A REAP grant could cover up to $150,000 of 
eligible costs. 
 

-343-

Item G.2.y. 



 



-345-

Item G.2.y. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  
 
 
  
 
 
  
 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  
 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: June 13, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Arbors Third Addition – Final Occupancy Request 

 
 
The Final Plat for Arbors Third Addition (Midwest Development Co.) was approved by 
City Council November 20, 2017.  It included a contract for completion of the remaining 
public improvements with a cash escrow.  This allows a developer to obtain building 
permits.  This is a typical approach in the City and is allowed by our Subdivision Code.   
 
This development has had a unique coordination issue, since access to the new 
elementary school is via Arbors Drive and Eric Road.  Both roads were constructed with 
Arbors Third Addition.  Midwest Development has coordinated closely with the school 
district to maintain access for construction of Aldrich Elementary.  These special 
circumstances have impacted the timeline for Arbors Third Addition and therefore staff 
is requesting City Council consideration of final occupancy prior to formal acceptance of 
all public improvements in the Arbors Third Addition.  This is permitted by the 
Subdivision Code, Section 24-54(e) and has been done in the past.  The most recent 
example was Western Home Villas. 
 
Staff has been working closely with the developer and monitoring progress of the 
improvements and homes under construction.  Lot 25 (5404 Arbors Dr.) is ready now.  It 
recently passed final inspection.  Four more homes will be ready for final inspection by 
the end of July.  A final inspection of the public infrastructure was completed last week 
and the City is working with Midwest Development to address items identified in that 
inspection.  Final acceptance is anticipated following those corrections, which the 
developer is working on. 
 
Attached is a map identifying the lots staff recommends approval of final occupancy 
permits subject to passing a final building inspection. 
 
  

-347-

Item G.2.z. 



Arbors Third Addition Map: 
 

 
 
 

-348-

Item G.2.z. 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 4, 2018.
	[180604MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. Special Order of Business:
	1. Public hearing on the City's FY18-19 Consolidated Annual Plan for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program.
	[PH-Annual Action Plan-ALL.pdf]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published June 8, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	2. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY18-19 Consolidated Annual Plan for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program.

	F. Old Business:
	1. Pass Ordinance #2926, providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the City in connection with the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, upon its third & final consideration.
	[Ord. 2926-South Cedar Falls UR Area.docx]

	2. Pass Ordinance #2927, amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Greenhill Road from Hudson Road to West 27th Street, upon its third & final consideration.
	[Ord. 2927-Greenhill Speed Limit.docx]


	G. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to Boards and Commissions:
(1) Jeremy Rosel, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2022.
(2) Mary-Sue Bartlett, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2022.
(3) Susan Langan, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2021.
(4) Andrew Morse, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2021.
(5) Kei-Che Randle, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2021.
(6) Jeffrey Zaputil, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2021.
(7) David Sturch, Metropolitan Bus Board, term ending 06/30/2021.
	[1-Appt Memo 6-18.docx]
	[2-Art & Culture - Rosel 6-5-18.pdf]

	b. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of June 4, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) Water Quality Initiatives. 
(2) Streetscape Project Update.
(3) FY19 Cash Management Report.
(4) Bills & Payroll.
	[Comm of the Whole 06 04 18.doc]

	c. Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of June 5, 2018.
	[AdminCommMinutes-06.05.18.doc]

	d. Receive and file bids received for the sale of $6,585,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018.
	[Bond Bids.pdf]

	e. Receive and file the bids received for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project.
	[1. Bid Opening Memo.docx]
	[2. BID TAB - 2018 Sidewalk & Trail.pdf]

	f. Approve the following special event related requests: 
(1) Street closures, Sturgis Falls Celebration, June 20-24, 2018.
(2) Street closure, Hearthside Drive, June 30, 2018.
(3) Street closure, Abraham Drive, July 4, 2018.
(4) Accel Triathlon, July 14, 2018.
(5) Parking variance, Teacher Festival, July 26, 2018.
	[0-Special Event Request Council Memo.doc]
	[1-Street closures-Sturgis.pdf]
	[2-Street closure-Hearthside.pdf]
	[3-Street closure-Abraham.pdf]
	[4-Accel Triathlon.pdf]
	[5-Parking variance-Teacher Festival.pdf]

	g. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits: 
(1) Bani's, 2128 College Street.
(2) Five Corners Liquor & Wine, 809 East 18th Street.
(3) Great Wall, 2125 College Street.
(4) Hill Street News and Tobacco, 2217 College Street.
(5) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive.
(6) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street.
(7) The Dragon's Cave, 2225 College Street.
(8) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue.
(9) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard.
	[061818 Tobacco Applications.pdf]

	h. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:
(1) Hong Kong Chinese Restaurant, 6306 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal.
(2) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(3) NewAldaya Lifescapes, 7511 University Avenue, Class A liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(4) Mulligan's Brick Oven Grill & Pub, 205 East 18th Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(5) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal.
(6) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - change in ownership.
(7) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer - adding Class B wine.
(8) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor service. (July 13-July 14, 2018)
	[Liquor Beer 6-18-18.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution directing sale of $6,585,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018.
	[Bond Sale.pdf]

	b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of the renewal of the City's FY19-21 Long Term Disability policy and plan amendments with National Insurance Services.
	[1-LTDrenewal5-2018amend council memoFY19-21 GBS EDITS.pdf]
	[2-LTD-FY19-21Renewal Ltr & 5-2018 Amendments.pdf]
	[3-LTD-Standard Zero Day Language 1-2018.pdf]
	[4-LTD Joinder Agreement - MNL - LTD - 5-1-2018 - SENT - CEDAR FALLS CITY OF - .._.pdf]

	c. Resolution approving the renewal of the City's FY19-20 Group Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment Renewal policy with Standard Insurance Company. 
	[1-Standard Life Renewal-Council Memo 6-2018.pdf]
	[2-Standard Life Renewal Summary 7-1-18.pdf]

	d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Administrative Services Agreement with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield relative to the City's FY19 Employee Health Plan.
	[1-WellmarkAdminServAgree6-2018CouncilMemo.pdf]
	[2-Wellmark-AdminServAgreeFY19.pdf]

	e. Resolution approving the Group Insurance Policy with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield relative to the City's dental plan.
	[1-WellmarkDentalGroupInsPolicy6-2018CouncilMemo.pdf]
	[2-Dental-GroupInsPolicy7-2018 10-17 IA WBCBSI L-SG FI - SS - 101+ - Print Master.pdf]

	f. Resolution approving an FY19 Health Plan Stop Loss Policy with Wellmark, Inc.
	[1-WellmarkStopLossPolicy6-2018CouncilMemo.pdf]
	[2-Wellmark-StopLossPolicyFY19.pdf]

	g. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Client Authorization to Bind Coverage with Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. relative to Insurance Brokerage and Risk Management Services.
	[Arthur J. Gallagher Insurance Renewal.pdf]

	h. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of two Claims Service Contracts with Alternative Service Concepts, LLC.
	[ASC FY19 Claims Service Contracts.pdf]

	i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support "Fulfilling the Vision" Campaign for Economic Vitality of the Greater Cedar Valley Alliance & Chamber relative to an FY19 Economic Development Grant.
	[1.GCVA FUNDING COUNCIL.MEM.doc]
	[2.GCVA FY19 contract.pdf]

	j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the College Hill Partnership relative to an FY19 Economic Development Grant.
	[1-CHP FUNDING COUNCIL.MEM.doc]
	[2-CHP_001.pdf]

	k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support Economic Development Program of the College Hill Partnership relative to FY19 Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds.
	[1-CHP FUNDING SSMID COUNCIL.MEM.doc]
	[2-CHP SSMID_001.pdf]

	l. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support Economic Development Program of Cedar Falls Community Main Street relative to an FY19 Economic Development Grant.
	[1-CMS FUNDING COUNCIL.MEM.doc]
	[2-CMS_001.pdf]

	m. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support Economic Development Program of Cedar Falls Community Main Street relative to FY19 Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds.
	[1-CMS FUNDING SSMID COUNCIL.MEM.doc]
	[2-CMS SSMID_001.pdf]

	n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Banking Services with Farmers State Bank.
	[1-Banking Services Council Memo 2018.doc]
	[2-Banking Services Contract FY19-FY23.pdf]

	o. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Merchant Processing Services with Professional Solutions Financial Services.
	[1-Merchant Processing Services Council Memo 2018.doc]
	[2-Merchant Processing Services Contract FY19-FY23.pdf]

	p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Purchase of Office Supplies and Copy Paper with Matt Parrott/Storey Kenworthy.
	[1-Office SuppliesCopyPaper-Council Memo 2018.doc]
	[2-Office Supply Contract FY19-FY21.pdf]

	q. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Purchase of Uniforms with ServiceWear Apparel.
	[1-Uniforms Council memo 2018.doc]
	[2-Uniform Contract FY19-FY21.pdf]

	r. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Purchase of Janitorial Products with Martin Bros. Distributing Co., Inc.
	[1.Paper Products-Council Memo 2018.doc]
	[2.Janitorial Supp Contract FY19-FY21.pdf]

	s. Resolution designating certain streets for operation of off-road utility vehicles for the duration of one year.
	[Designating Streets for Off-road vehicles.pdf]

	t. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid of Feldman Concrete, in the amount of $122,877.68, for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project.
	[1. Bid Opening Memo.docx]
	[2. BID TAB - 2018 Sidewalk & Trail.pdf]

	u. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contracted Education Proposal with Hartman Reserve Nature Center relative to providing public outreach and educational programs related to improving water quality and stormwater runoff.
	[1. Hartman Contract.docx]
	[2. Contract Cedar Falls.pdf]

	v. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Change of Work Order No. 2 to the contract with Peterson Contractors, Inc. relative to the 2018 Street Construction Project.
	[1. Cyber Lane - Change Order.docx]
	[2. CO#2.pdf]
	[3. Project Location Map.pdf]

	w. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for façade improvements at 120 Main Street.
	[Site Plan - 120 Main - Runners Flat-ALL.pdf]

	x. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement for Grant Administration and Technical Services for Housing Projects with Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) relative to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Funding.
	[PSA - INRCOG - CDBG Entitlement Funding-ALL.pdf]

	y. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) relative to preparation of a Resource Enhancement and Protection (REAP) Grant Application for the Clay Street Park Water Quality Improvements Project.
	[1. Council-Clay St Pk REAP grant 6-18-18.docx]
	[2. MOU.pdf]

	z. Resolution approving five occupancy permits prior to the acceptance of the public improvements in Arbors Third Addition.
	[Arbors Occupancy permit request 6-18-18.pdf]



	H. Allow Bills and Payroll.
	I. City Council Referrals.
	J. City Council Updates.
	K. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental body would receive for that property, following Public Forum.
	L. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	M. Adjournment.
	j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the CollegeHill Partnership relative to an FY19 Economic Development Grant.



